## Phoenix Journal #189



## **By Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn**

## Table Of Contents

FOREWORD	1
MON., DEC. 2, 1996	1
YOU CAN DO IT TOO!	1
RICH FIND NEW WAYS TO AVOID TAX ON PROFITS	1
TECHNIQUES	3
CHAPTER 1	7
SUN., NOV. 10, 1996	7
ARE "YOU" READY?	7
FBI: NAVY MISSILE DID NOT HIT TWA JET	9
THE SCIENCE OF BODY MANIPULATION & PROGRAMMING	. 10
AND NOW, LET'S GET GROSS	. 13
CHAPTER 2	. 16
SUN., NOV. 10, 1996	. 16
BODY MANIPULATIONS	. 16
HAVING SKILLED MEDICAL/LAB TECHNICIANS	. 16
PATHWAYS	. 22
CHAPTER 3	. 25
SUN., NOV. 10, 1996	. 25
MUSIC	
PROGRAMMING DAMAGE TO THE BODY	. 26
PHYSICAL ASPECTS OF THE HUMAN BRAIN	
GENETIC ENGINEERING TO CREATE PROGRAMMED ASSASSINS	. 28
CHAPTER 4	
SAT., OCT. 12, 1996	. 34
TOUGH TIMES? NO, ONLY CHALLENGED EGO	
CONCLUSION	. 44
CHAPTER 5	
WED., NOV. 13, 1996	
A BIT OF FATHERLY ADVICE	
CHAPTER 6	
THU., NOV. 14, 1996	
BE GENTLE—WE ARE BUT INDIVIDUALS	
EBOLA VIRUSES	
MONARCH SLAVES	
VIRUS OUTBREAK HITS PAGEANT	
CEASE-FIRE IN ZAIRE BRINGS OUT LOOTERS	
REBELS HELP HAND OUT RELIEF SUPPLIES	
CHAPTER 7	
SAT., NOV. 16, 1996	. 60
SCIENCE NO. 2—THE TRAUMATIZATION AND	
TORTURE OF THE VICTIM	. 61

THE INITIAL SPLITS AND INITIAL PROGRAMMING DONE AT	
CHINA LAKE, CALIFORNIA	62
HOW CHILDREN ARE TRANSPORTED TO A MAJOR PROGRAMMING SIT	E. 63
BOHEMIAN GROVE CONNECTIONS	64
MORE ABOUT THE SECRET CHINA LAKE BASE	65
CHAPTER 8	
SAT., NOV. 16, 1996	68
WHAT TRAUMA DOES	68
THE TYPES OF TRAUMA	70
CHAPTER 9	76
FRI., NOV. 22, 1996	76
ENEMIES AMONG US, AND ENCOUNTERS OF	
THE WORST KIND—AIDS AND CANCER (Basically the SAME thing)	76
FOOTPRINTS IN THE SAND	79
FARRAKHAN	79
WHAT THE MUSLIMS WANT	81
Most Honorable Elijah Muhummad	81
WHAT THE MUSLIMS BELIEVE	83
CHAPTER 10	85
SAT., NOV. 23, 1996	85
ENEMIES AMONG US	85
WHAT OCCURS WHEN THE MIND SPLITS	87
THE CORE	90
CHAPTER 11	96
SUN., NOV. 24, 1996	96
TRUTH EXISTS	96
ONLY FALSEHOOD HAS TO BE INVENTED	96
GEORGE BUSH:	97
We know about7 ALISHA OWEN and GARY CARADORI and LARRY KING	
We know about the MORALITY of your NEW WORLD ORDER	97
BUSH LINKED TO OMAHA NEBRASKA	
CHILD ABUSE SCANDAL	
IS GEORGE BUSH THE WORLD'S LEADING CHILD MOLESTER?	99
HOMOSEXUAL CHILD ABUSER	100
"INSIDE NEWS"	
THE FRANKLIN COVER UP IN OUTLINE	
EVIDENCE LINKS BUSH TO THE OMAHA CHILD-ABUSE RING	102
NEBRASKA DOCUMENTS LINKING	
MR. BUSH TO OMAHA CHILD ABUSE	
SATANIC ASPECTS OF SKULL AND BONES	103

### FOREWORD

### REC #1 HATONN

### MON., DEC. 2, 1996 7:37 A.M. YR.10, DAY 108

### MON., DEC. 2, 1996

### YOU CAN DO IT TOO!

Once again, as the markets go crazy, precious metal prices drop, and we watch insanity unfolding before our eyes—there is a REASON behind it all. AND, ANYBODY WHO WANTS TO LEARN, CAN DO IT AS WELL AS ANY RICH MAN OR CORPORATION.

I am going to offer a simple article out of the *Bakersfield Californian* from yesterday, Sunday, December 1, 1996. It is going to seem distant and out of reach—in order to make you angry, jealous (yea, envious), and you will think that "Ah, the rich get all the breaks and we get stuck with their bills." If you get stuck with their bills then you aren't managing your financial business well. Expensive? No, not really but it is time consuming and your intentions must be correct lest you blunder into the traps laid forth for the "small people". YOU HAVE TO USE THE LAWS AND ESTABLISHED METHODS OF MANAGEMENT AS UTILIZED BY THE WEALTHY, IN ORDER THAT THEY COVER EVERYTHING.

The government is not even THINKING about giving you tax-breaks. It is that you don't take the time from whatever you are doing in your fixed little worlds to LEARN and involve yourselves in management of your own lives or affairs (business or otherwise). What they realize is that to cut out the shelters— THEY CUT OUT THEIR OWN COVER. Since they are NOT going to do that then I suggest you study carefully what they are doing and get with the program to whatever extent you wish to enter into the management of your own lives. What comes about is that you are convinced you can't participate and, therefore, do not. "They" depend on this very piece of ignorance and human nature.

This article was worthy of its beginning on the first page of the paper edition as a focus item for Sunday. This means that they have to print most of the paper prior to Sunday and therefore only breaking news is covered and the rest is old stuff and filler. So, let us see just what we have hidden by a headline and selective observations of envious writers. Note from the headline that the article is written as if it were somehow dirty business to use the laws for your shelter. This is seen in the headline by the way "rich" is presented and "avoid tax", etc. See what really useful ideas you can pick up from just reading the article.

### [QUOTING:]

The "come on": *The simple fact is that anyone sitting on a big pot of money today probably isn't paying capital-gains taxes.* David Bradford.

### RICH FIND NEW WAYS TO AVOID TAX ON PROFITS

By Diana B. Henriques, N.Y. Times News Service.

Last spring, Wall Street bankers made an irresistible sales pitch to Eli Broad, the billionaire home builder and co-founder of the booming SunAmerica insurance empire. [H: Well, people, that is what they are PAID to do!]

For a fee, they would help him lock in \$194 million in profits on some of his SunAmerica stock and free up cash to pay family debts—best of all, without having to sell the stock and give up all future profits on his shares. He would therefore not owe a penny of the estimated \$54 million in taxes he would face if he sold the shares. **[H: Now, don't you wish YOU had prospects of \$194 million AND SOMEONE TO SHOW YOU HOW TO SHELTER IT LEGALLY**?]

Broad accepted. "We have our cake," he said recently with a chuckle, "and are eating it, too."

The thousands of less affluent investors who also own SunAmerica stock, either individually or through mutual funds, get no such deals. To cash in on their stock, they almost invariably have to sell it and face a federal tax of up to 28 percent on their profits.

Seventy-five years after it was enacted, the federal tax on profits from the sale of stock, land or other assets—known as the capital-gains tax—is becoming largely academic to the nation's wealthiest taxpayers.

Even as a growing number of Americans with more modest incomes are paying capital-gains taxes because of their growing mutual-fund profits, wealthy taxpayers like Broad can take advantage of a growing arsenal of Wall Street techniques to delay or entirely avoid taxes on their investment gains.

These strategies, some granted by Congress and others using the tax code in legal but wholly unanticipated ways, give taxpayers these breaks:

\* Owners of a private business can sell it to their employees without paying capital-gains taxes, as long as they put the proceeds in certain investments—investments that Wall Street is eager to provide. [H: Sounds very sound and good, to me.]

\* Real-estate owners can swap properties without the capital-gains tax required when a sale is made, allowing them to diversify their holdings and raise cash for other purposes.

\* Large shareholders can use any of several exotic Wall Street strategies to raise cash and lock in their stock-market profits without actually selling their shares, which would create a tax bill.

[H: Note, you inquiring minds: all that is necessary is to have a working corporation or more. Nevada is THE place I would recommend for this wondrous corporation development and management. Further, I recommend Nevada Corporate Headquarters, as your corporation agent because there are regular classes offered for your information and strategy in management. A corporation has to be attended as carefully as ANY NEWBORN anything. If your intentions are honorable and you are honest and attend your business lawfully and carefully—ANYONE can gain from the laws already established. You only THINK you can't get ahead like the "big boys" do and it is because of ignorant writers like this one that prevent you from doing good business. But, also, and by the way—you have to DO BUSINESS in some manner, either by lending money, investing, building, etc. You can't just sit and stash money. That does not a corporation make. YOU have to manage the corporation with detail and care and full attention to business regulations, tax regulations, and utilize only shelters covered totally by the IRS. The IRS may well be unconstitutional but it IS LEGAL.]

### TECHNIQUES

Some of these techniques have been around for a dozen years or more but are now being used in new and aggressive ways. **[H: Isn't that what FREEDOM is all about?]** Others are new—the technique Broad used is only three years old. It allowed him to use his SunAmerica stock as a sort of collateral for an ingenious second stock issued and sold by Merrill Lynch. This then passed much of the money raised from that sale back to Broad.

Coming a decade after Congress enacted changes designed to make the tax system simpler and more equitable, the proliferation of these tax-avoidance techniques among the wealthiest American raises questions of fairness in some minds. [H: Well, it shouldn't. Mr. Broad made his money fairly, paid his taxes along the way and this simply protected him from the bankruptcy devastation waiting the unwary business-person. Why do they make this sound like "junk-bond" strategy ripping off Savings and Loan participants? ENVY! There is NO REASON any corporation could not manage big or tiny assets in this manner without hurting or damaging ANYBODY. And, if the corporation in point can get back onto its feet you have new participating employees AND an employee possibility which cannot but help your overall economy. Aren't you about sick to pieces of this kind of "warp" and "spin" on whatever might be sound business opportunity and management.?]

"The simple fact is that anyone sitting on a big pot of money today probably isn't paying capital-gains taxes," said David Bradford, an economist at Princeton University and a critic of the current income-tax system. "And the government can adopt rule after rule after rule—but the people who will get stuck paying capital-gains taxes will be the ordinary investors who own mutual funds." [H: So why don't these "ordinary investors" do so through corporations and have the same breaks as those "pot sitters"?]

William Gale, an economist at the **Brookings Institution [H: Ummmnnn Hummnnn!]**, agreed: "How fair is a tax that the wealthy can apparently avoid but the middle class gets stuck with? I don't see any fairness in that." **[H: Sure he doesn't. He and thousands like him, DO NOT WANT YOU TO KNOW THAT YOU HAVE THE SAME "RIGHTS" AS THE BIG BOYS!]** 

The consequences of Wall Street's ingenuity worry even some of the those who profit from it. "I am torn on the issue," said Robert Willens, a managing director and tax analyst at Lehman Brothers [H: Lehman Brothers? Sure he is... People, go look up these good boys and corporations in the "Committee of 300" book by Coleman. You have to understand that if "everyone" used those things which they have every legal right to use—the taxes paid would drop off the scale. You

### have to keep the public dumbed down, readers, so that it never occurs to any of you that YOU TOO CAN DO THESE SAME THINGS USING BIG OR LITTLE AMOUNTS.]

"As someone who makes my living catering to these clients, I find these products useful and successful. But as a citizen, which I am after about 6:30 every evening, I worry that there is a growing perception that these tax techniques are available only to the wealthy few, that the average citizen and investor doesn't have access to them. **[H: No, they just don't KNOW about them.]** Nothing does more to undermine our tax system than that." **[H: And boy, could your tax-system ever use some** *undermining.*]

For Wall Street these techniques are highly profitable. Rather than producing a one-time payment, many of these deals generate continuing annual fees of as much as 2 percent a year on the profits locked in by the taxpayer—a handsome fee, but still a pittance compared with the 28 percent tax that affluent taxpayers would owe Uncle Sam alone if they sold their assets the old-fashioned way. **[H: Meaning of course, the "old-fashioned"** *stupid* **and uninformed way.**]

As the techniques grow increasingly complex, a dizzying vocabulary is arising among the cognoscenti terms like "upreits", "swaps", "DECS", "Strypes", "ACES" and "zero-cost collars". **[H: And who stops YOU from learning a foreign language. Do you think Computer terms are less interesting? Try** "DMPA", "DRAM", "DRO" and these three are right in a row. There is a book of over 400 pages which is a dictionary JUST for computer terms. So, is the inference here made that you can't LEARN?]

[[[[[H: WHAT I SUGGEST IS THAT YOU-THE-PEOPLE GET BUSY AND IF YOU HAVE THINGS NEEDING SHELTERING <u>THIS MONTH</u> THAT YOU CONTACT NCH—ASAP. Stop wasting money on payment of the Federal Reserve debts and get on with using your funds otherwise for something worthy of your growth.]]]]]

The growing use of such rarely disclosed techniques became a public issue last year after Estee Lauder, the cosmetics-company founder, and her son Ronald Lauder, a prominent Republican politician in New York, used a popular Wall Street tactic to avoid millions in capital-gains taxes when their family business was sold and taken public.

[H: Note that nowhere can even this writer claim EVASION. Do YOU, as a for-instance, know the difference in "avoid" and "evade"? Well, for tax purposes there is about 15-25 YEARS difference in the terms. You have every right within the laws to avoid unnecessary taxes— "evasion" is a no-no under ALL circumstances and you are a foolish person who knows NOT the difference.

The next paragraph has been torn out of the paper by hitting the drive-way but I think we can get the gist as it says enough to know that "these loopholes" will be attended by Congress. Some will undoubtedly be SHUT DOWN. This should be a warning that if you want some "shelter", readers, you can't dawdle with every whim around. Nothing in your world is permanent—NOTH-ING.]

..... Wall Street is already developing startegies that would probably survive, even if the proposed

changes became law. In fact, some tax lawyers say, the Clinton proposals would hit hardest **at the few simple tax-avoidance steps that are available to less affluent investors, while leaving largely intact the more complicated techniques available only to wealthier investors.** [H: B.S.!! If it is available to the wealthier—it is available to the "less affluent". If, however, you are among the "totally non-affluent" then you can't afford corporations or other things to allow for use of this ANYWAY. If you are on welfare then you obviously can't use this because WELFARE IS A PAST IDEAALREADY.]

The Internal Revenue Service has officially challenged one of the elaborate techniques Wall Street has introduced for individual taxpayers in recent years, but tax lawyers say that fight does not affect the other popular strategies now in use.

It is impossible to estimate how much these transactions cost the government in taxes each year, because only corporate officers or other insiders are required to disclose them. But the stakes are clearly high. In just three deals disclosed by corporate officers in the last year, the federal capital-gains tax bills would have totaled as much as \$190 million. [H: Note the slam. Why weren't these do-gooders around when the government paid off the "insiders" to do nasty and dirty business with the Resolution Trust Corporation, Junk-Bond dealers, and other LOSS AND SLAUGHTER manipulators? See how much more diligent the government is when it avoids some encounters with their own IRS and note the line: "cost the government". What is this "government" stuff? I thought they claimed YOU are the government—you know, "of the people, by the people, for the people"??? "COST THE GOVERNMENT"? How can you "cost the government" if this is a valid legal way to have shelter for you-the-people and the taxes only go for paying off banks in the first place? Readers, you have so much to learn and so little time... to learn it.]

### [END OF QUOTING]

I suggest that if you wish to participate in some kind of SHELTERING—if you have anything left by the "government" and lawyers—get busy for 1997 is looming ahead like the death-stalker. There is the help you PRAY FOR if you take the time to learn and USE. If, indeed, you feel that somehow using LEGAL processes is somehow unGodly—then I suggest you look very carefully at who taught you such garbage. You could take that money you like to give away to taxes and give it to that guy who told you it was unGodly and I bet that party would sort-of make a loophole in his limitation prattling! God certainly expects the stewards of HIS ASSETS to use these legal ways of protecting funds for HIS WORK. Wouldn't you really rather plant a SPELTA field than pay Barry Frank's call-boy? No, readers, THIS *IS* THE DIFFERENCE!

It is interesting that I get back an argument, "...but now we have to issue stock in Nevada corporations..." Why does that bother you? Issue it to itself! If you can't separate self ego from factual business—you have the problem, not the system.

"Won't the government be mad at..." us for telling? No, we only have a subscription base of some 1300 subscribers. And by the way, you who do read this paper, in other nations outside the U.S.—IT IS PERFECTLY EASY TO HAVE A NEVADA CORPORATION, U.S.A. *AND* those nifty bankers will happily do business with you as well. Try it, you might like it—ALOT. MISUSE a corporation, however,

and you move right OFF MY LIST OF THOSE TO HELP. If you break the laws of God or Man, misuse, abuse, and dis-USE anything, corporate or otherwise—I know ye not! That is deliberate ploy for gaining what you have—anarchy, chaos, and downfall of societal structures. Intent is the measure of both the man and his project presentation. If you simply want a "higher form of killing" then I don't want you within my recognized share and tell, orbit. You do whatever you want to do but if it is against the law, bends the law or breaks it—IT IS NOT FROM ME YOU GET THAT PERMISSION OR INTENT.

I wonder if this might just do, Dharma, for a "FOREWORD" to whatever journal—number 189 (my goodness)—so that we are off the hook for holding up Dr. Overholt's schedule. We have had a very busy seven years, haven't we? Well, dear, perhaps the good angels will help you make it through this maze of work for there is so much left to write and tell. We'll have 190 by the first of the year—just to prepare the journal attendees. You count up the number of pages my "Fingers" and crew have done in these short seven years!! In addition, there are THOUSANDS of hours of audio taping. I hope you readers will find it worthy of your attention.

Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn December 2, 1996

### CHAPTER 1

### REC #1 HATONN

### SUN., NOV. 10, 1996 7:39 A.M. YR.10, DAY 086

### SUN., NOV. 10, 1996

### ARE "YOU" READY?

What is the cry? The Russians are coming, the Huns are coming, the Christians are coming, the Satanists are coming—and yes, the terrible E. coli is coming, along with idiot doctors, lawyers, thieves and liars.

Readers, E. coli is found in one form or another in almost everybody and yet a child dies after being sick for ALMOSTA MONTH IN HOSPITAL, and surely enough it has to be E. coli 0157:117!!—dirty bounder. YOU are NOT alive and well, people of the world! Satan IS Alive and Well but it looks pretty sad for the rest of you.

I have no intention of passing a child's death off as unimportant or further traumatize parents for lack of attending a child—but my goodness, any time you are taking into your body unpasteurized (or pasteurized) food and drink—YOU ARE AT RISK. In the child's case, whether or NOT it was Escherichia coli becomes suspect in diagnosis. E. coli is easy to identify and it looks like a case, to me, where doctors are going to get off the hook for anything they might NOT have done for the child—and, set up someone for the possibility of a major lawsuit in the process. When physicians can't knock out E. coli in nearly a MONTH, you have a real big problem.

Of course it CAN be so, because I have warned you and warned you—that you no longer have disease anything as you once had—everything is now genetically and DNA-altered to MUTATE. In this way even the old E. coli can become a DEADLY VIRUS—but having nearly a month to treat the child appears suspect to my old brain.

Next, WHEN WILL YOU TAKE ME SERIOUSLY? <u>It would have taken only 3-4 drops of food-</u> grade hydrogen peroxide in the child's drink to purify it! And what of the other drinkers of that particular brand of drink? Why didn't even one other case be reported?

I would like to offer the article in point and allow you to see how quick to judgment is the press and how irresponsible is the medical staff, in this one instance, at the least.

### <u>m</u>

## DENVER (Associated Press) [H: Well, we KNOW from personal experience that you cannot depend on anything the Associated Press reports. Refer to what Abbott had the Associated Press print, globally, about just the Ekkers, and you will find nothing of truth in it.]

A 16-month-old girl died Friday after drinking unpasteurized fruit juice linked to an E. coli outbreak across the West.

Anna Gimmestad is THOUGHT to be the first person to die in the outbreak, which began last month.

The California-based maker of the juice, Odwalla Inc., has since recalled 16 of its fruit drinks, which are thought to have infected five people in Colorado and 44 in California, Washington state and Canada. **[H: Doesn't it remind you of the "Giant Strawberry" myth of early Summer?]** 

[H: Now, pay attention.] Anna was admitted to Children's Hospital ON OCT. 16 AND DIED AFTER GOING INTO CARDIAC AND RESPIRATORY ARREST, A SPOKESMAN SAID. [H: Doesn't this make you assume that the child up and expired that afternoon? Not so, read on.]

Although the E. coli infection HAS NOT YET BEEN CONFIRMED BY LABORATORY TESTS [H: AND JUST WHY HAS IT NOT BEEN LABORATORY TESTED IN NEARLY A MONTH?], health officials strongly *suspect* Anna was infected with the bacteria, said Dr. Richard Hoffman, a STATE EPIDEMIOLOGIST. [H: The child died of a VIRUS and E. coli is a BACTE-RIA!]

Anna fell ill with bloody diarrhea AFTER DRINKING A SMOOTHIE, an Odwalla bottled juice drink. [H: Oh, AND JUST HOW SOON DID SHE "FELL ILL"? That is a critical question, and answer, readers.] Her illness, known as hemolytic uremic syndrome, is a known complication of E. coli 0157:117 bacteria [H: Ah, but nobody tested anything to establish a diagnosis.], which was confirmed in Odwalla fruit drinks. [H: IN THIS PARTICULAR FRUIT DRINK WHERE NOBODY ELSE HAD A SINGLE PROBLEM?] Odwalla produces fresh juices that are made without pasteurization or preservatives. [H: Then couldn't anybody pick up E. coli from eating an apple or any other fresh fruit?]

[H: Now we get down to it:] Odwalla, based in Half Moon Bay, Calif., has offered to give refunds and pay medical costs to people who *CAN PROVE AN ODWALLA PRODUCT SICKENED THEM*. [H: Nobody has done so!]

Odwalla faces TWO lawsuits over the E. coli outbreak—one in Seattle on *BEHALF* OF A 6-YEAR-OLD BOY WHO BECAME ILL AFTER DRINKING APPLE JUICE AND THE OTHER FILED BY A SAN FRANCISCO LAWYER *WHO CLAIMS* TO REPRESENT THE *PUBLIC*.

The Food and Drug Administration is examining Odwalla's plant to determine how the bacteria entered the bottled juices. E. coli contamination is thought to originate in the gut and feces of cows. **[H: Sure, cows pack fruit juice every day!]** 

### [END OF QUOTING]

This is the stuff of POLITICS and you had REALLY better pay attention now, readers. THE INTERNA-TIONAL "SYSTEM" AGAINST HEALTH FOOD STORES—IS GOING TO SHUT DOWN HEALTH FOOD STORES. IT HAS ALREADY HAPPENED IN SEVERAL EUROPEAN NATIONS. THIS is the way it works toward terrifying the pants off all of you and then comes the health food providers going out of business and the LAWYERS of the world managing the full push to disaster. YOU ARE IN *IT*, people, and you had better pay attention because this is EXACTLY the way in which things get totally OUT OF ALL CONTROL—EXCEPT BY THE DESTROYERS.

I wonder why the *Associated Press* doesn't write about the over 3,000 children being Satanized UNDER China Lake Naval Station in Ridgecrest, California? Oh indeed, there is PROOF but the slime-scum don't tell you THAT, do they?

While we're at it regarding the Associated Press:

[QUOTING:]

### <u>FBI: NAVY MISSILE</u> <u>DID NOT HIT TWA JET</u>

### [H: So what DID hit it?]

Nov. 9, 1996 (yesterday)

NEW YORK—Federal officials denied AGAIN Friday that "friendly fire" caused the TWA Flight 800 crash, a theory given new life by journalist Pierre Salinger's claim a Navy vessel accidentally shot down the jumbo jet.

"We can assure the American public and families of the victims that nothing—nothing—like that did take place or would take place," FBI Assistant Director James Kallstrom told reporters. **[H: This is the same FBI that killed all the children at Waco, Texas "to keep them from abuse"?**]

Bristling at the suggestion there was a cover-up of the cause, Kallstrom said, "as I stand here today **IT IS STILL** *UNKNOWN*" whether a bomb, a missile or a mechanical failure caused the July 17 explosion that killed all 230 aboard.

But he said one thing is known: "The military had nothing to do with this horrendous tragedy." [H: Oh, there was only a "*little*" evidence, i.e., a Navy ship in the immediate area practicing missile launches and, the witnesses were pulled off the ship, the ship MOVED out of the area and the witnesses were sent to the deep Atlantic where they were well-trained NOT TO SPEAK ABOUT THIS INCIDENT. BUT OF COURSE YOUR GOVERNMENT WOULDN'T LIE TO YOU, WOULD IT?]

Salinger, a former ABC News correspondent and spokesman for President Kennedy, told reporters in Cannes, France, on Thursday that he has obtained a document detailing how the Navy was testing missiles off Long Island and accidentally hit Flight 800 because the Paris-bound plane was flying lower than expected.

"The truth must come out," Salinger said, adding that he is willing to turn the document over to the FBI. [H: Big deal, the public has had access to the documents since August when the plane was shot down. It has been freely available on the Internet and, face it, you have had a full description of what took place—right in *CONTACT*. It was not some training missile, either. This was a laser beam weapon that electronically killed the plane and then exploded it.]

The FBI has received dozens of calls from people claiming to *have seen a missile at the time of the explosion*.

But investigators have said on several occasions there is no evidence to support the friendly fire theory. **[H: Then what kind of "**EVIDENCE**" is there?]** 

### [END OF QUOTING]

Do you notice something else here? It always happens that the one bringing forth information is always the one who is discounted—not the perpetrators. I have some even closer to home to use as example. When Bo Gritz was WRONG, he didn't ask if he could straighten anything out—he wanted to know who was the "Judas" goat?

Just yesterday, when there was no ill intent in my own message to someone—we get back: "*Who was the Judas who....told?*" Say what? If you are not guilty of something a bit deviant—why would there be suspected a "*Judas*"? And actually JUDAS DID NOT BETRAY ANYONE! Do you see better now just HOW easy it is for the Devil to work his Masterpieces of deception on you-the-public? I further remind anyone who works on or with MY TEAM—THAT NOBODY NEEDS A "JUDAS" ANY-THING—I **KNOW WHAT IS TAKING PLACE!** Further, if you claim to know as much enough to work with me—then you certainly either KNOW THIS or you LIED RIGHT UP FRONT.

I am going to leave our ongoing subject for a day or so to MAKE VERY SURE you are reminded of the incredible methodologies of MIND MANIPULATION. I am NOT going to give you, today, the authors of this information because I must protect them. THIS IS THE "REAL" WORLD, READERS. AT RANDOM I am simply opening a 467-page book and taking the first chapter heading in front of us:

## [H: NO, this is NOT from either Cathy O'Brien OR Mark Phillips but they certainly should be able to verify the facts of the presentation.]

[QUOTING (From CHAPTER 8), PART 1:]

## THE SCIENCE OF BODY MANIPULATION & PROGRAMMING

### A. THE SCARRING OF THE BRAIN STEM.

Early on it was discovered that the brain would overcompensate for scarring on the brain stem. This is a principle similar to weight lifting. By tearing down the muscle fiber by overexertion, the body rebuilds the muscle stronger. By scarring the brain stem, it was discovered that geniuses who had photographic memories could be created. Brain stem scarring was used to create the whiz kids that the NWO needed

to run their big computers. For instance, the computers that **just NASA alone uses** require people who can work in ALGOL, BASIC, COBOL, COBOL 74, MULTICS COBOL ver. 4.4, COBOL Cb.4, COBOL CP-6, EOL, EULOR, FLIP, FORAST, FORTRAN, HAL/S, Illiac 4, JASP, JOSS, JOVIAL,/ LYAPAS, LISP, LISP 2, /MAP/, NuSpeak, PASCAL, PEARL,/PLACE/, PL/1, PL/1-APAREL, PLANIT, Praxis, SA Machine Language, SEMANOL, SNOBEL, UNIX, WANG, ZBIE. It takes good memory to remember computer languages and programming. These whiz kids, who were both programmed with *Monarch* programming and had their brain stems scarred can be seen in some of the University computer departments and the intelligence/military agencies' computer rooms.

For instance, at Ft. Meade, the NSA has 2 buildings which contain a completely self-sufficient intelligence operation. (The complex has its own stores, bank, dry cleaning, dentistry, barber shop, PX, hospital, as well as the normal snackbars and cafeteria that Federal buildings often have.) This complex which is internally guarded by cameras watching all the corridors, has several major computer rooms where whiz kids are employed. Movement by these whiz kids requires that they have the proper I.D. attached to them. The CIA, which has had an ongoing project to create them, has called them "Compu-kids". Some of the elevators are private and operate only with the proper key. The NSA's computers participate in electronically watching the world.

Another example of where compu-kids (slaves with scarred brain stems) work on big computers (incl. a Beast computer) is at *Area 51 (Dreamland)*, Nevada. **[H: I surely hope that Rick gets a copy of this very writing to Norio H.]** 

The method of scarring the reticular formation of the brain stem is accomplished electronically. The RNA piles up and breaks the continuity of the signals coming through. Different people's bodies are able to tolerate different levels of abuse. Many of the brain stem scarring victims die, or end up with a pseudo-Multiple Sclerosis. Many children are coming into hospitals and being misdiagnosed as having Multiple Sclerosis when in fact they are damaged from programming and brain stem scarring.

If the victim is successfully given a photographic memory through their entire alter system due to brain stem scarring, then they are often programmed to see what are called "hieroglyphics" (that is the cover name) which is really just the "Intergalactic Language" THAT NASA DEVELOPED IN THE 1960s and then turned around and used to program slaves with photographic memories. Under the cover of research projects like N67-3042 (17 p. 3022) "Language structure and message decoding for interplanetary decoding". In 1967 and N65-32284 20-3414 in 1965 entitled "Symbol science for communication language of humans, animals, and inanimate objects—application to mathematics, cybernetics, and automation." The actual study no. or no.s for the Intergalactic Language is not known, but they should appear somewhere in the voluminous *Scientific and Technical Aerospace Reports* that NASA puts out each year. The script of this language was shown in the beginning credits of the strange movie *Lawnmower Man*. Some of the symbols are similar to Ascii Computer language (which is a language that interfaces with many other computer languages, so that one language can be translated into another language). The *MONARCH* slaves are told that this is an *alien language*.

Another method that has also been used to enhance memory is hypnosis. Estabrooks was able in the 1930s to create Multiple personalities via hypnosis and get incredible mental feats accomplished by those parties which were asked under hypnosis to have photographic memories. Still another method is to place small transceivers into the head or body of the person. These implants have been attached in the neck or other places, and have been connected to various parts of the brain. They have literally created what the movies called "terminal man". This has allowed special intelligence agents to be linked to large computers. The intelligence asset can get continuous information on anything the intelligence agencies have managed to get into their large computers. Brain implants can download incredible amounts of information to the brain, however, the ability to use this information wisely is still a skill. Having a library of information available doesn't necessarily mean a person is wiser.

For more on slave-computer interfacing see the index for information on ALEX, Amalgamated Logarithmic Encrypted Transmissions, and UNIX systems which are used to tie the Monarch Mind to computers.

Drugs and torture are also used to enhance memory. Brain stem scarring is not the only method to enhance memory, but it has been a "highly successful" (if one doesn't count all the ruined lives when it's failed) method. MPD [*Multiple Personality Disorder*] also naturally increases the brain's functioning several fold, and can help give photographic memories.

In review, drugs, torture, hypnosis and MPD all work to enhance memory. Most slaves have some photographic memory capability. The most serious form of memory enhancement is brain stem scarring, which produces a strong system-wide photographic memory.

### **B: SPLIT BRAIN WORK**

The brain is "bicameral" or two-sided. The two sides (called hemispheres) communicate via a superpowerful connector called the corpus callosum. The left hemisphere is specialized in verbal-linguistic transduction speech and analytical thinking (logic, math, cause & effect, language, & sequential thinking). The right side plays more of a role in holistic-metaphorical information transduction such as imagery (art, dance, intuition, subjective, spontaneous, holistic, & dream imagery). The primary role of creating imagery is carried out by the right side.

Roger Sperry, a neuroscientist, won a Nobel Prize for feeding information to only one side of the brain, and also for feeding simultaneously both sides of the brain different information. His results showed that the two hemispheres could operate separately at the same time. We hate to rewrite history, but the work that won Sperry a Nobel Prize was being done to unwilling human victims before his publicly known experiments. Sperry's research left people wondering if it wasn't possible to have one personality located in one hemisphere, and another person in the other. Psychologist Julian Jaynes wrote a book arguing that mankind used to have two personalities before the two hemispheres evolved an ability to integrate. (His book is *The Origin of Consciousness in the Breakdown of the Bicameral Mind.*)

Before the public had heard about the ability of the two hemispheres to work independently, the Illuminati and MK-Ultra programmers were carrying out split brain programming, by two methods, 1.

shutting down one side and communicating only with one side of the brain; and 2. by simultaneously feeding different information to each hemisphere. This is often shown by the victim being locked in place with their eyes forced open, and different movies shown simultaneously to both eyes. This creates a form of split brain programming. High speed films will be shown with one hemisphere receiving horror scenes and the other getting family settings. This makes the two hemispheres work separately and the victim feel crazy. The mind feels ripped apart. One hemisphere is trying to dissociate and is having a miserable experience, while the other side is experiencing something just the opposite. When high speed films are shown for split brain programming, the films are shown in 5 minute increments. Front alters may be shown good films to make them believe they live in a perfect world with a good family life. Right side Satanic alters may receive horror films shown via the left eye. The right side of the brain doesn't verbalize well, so this is one reason slaves have emotions without the ability to verbalize. A possible third method is to use drugs that block the two hemispheres from communicating. A fourth method in split brain work is to speak into the left ear while giving the right ear confusing noise. This last method is sometimes done to force alters to concentrate when learning scripts.

### AND NOW, LET'S GET GROSS

The split brain programming done by the Illuminati is grotesque. A drug is injected at the base of the skull into one hemisphere of the brain to shut it down, while the other hemisphere is kept awake. Torture is then carried out to split the mind. What this does is create programs and alters which are associated with only half of the brain. The brain is being further divided from itself. Work is done by the Programmers to develop the thinking of alters from one side of the brain to think differently from those of the other side. Split brain programming is not just hypnosis, as some have been led to believe. Split brain programming provides the Programmers one way to keep the left hand from knowing what the right hand is doing. It also gives them the ability to put in body programs or memories which affect only half of the victim's body.

# [H: I am reminded of how many people suggested that there might be a possibility that O.J. Simpson did in fact, murder his victims—but didn't know it. The follow-on question was always: "Is this possible?" YES INDEED and I wrote about it at the time. However, you first have to research everything presenting this particular OPPORTUNITY for such programming. And, if this is FACT, is O.J. ACTUALLY "guilty" of anything? Wow! But the facts are that O.J. DID NOT do the deeds but even he cannot remember where he was or what he was ACTUALLY doing at the time. This is typical of this Split brain response—unfortunately, for O.J. The reason is that "he can't prove otherwise".]

When one hemisphere is dominating in what the brain is doing, the opposite nostril will open and take in air. When the right hemisphere is doing most of the thinking, the left nostril will be doing most of the breathing. Voluntary changes in nostril breathing can help shift the center of brain activity from one side of the brain to the other. When a person lays on his side, the downward side hemisphere will be activated, because the top nostril will breath best. The control of nasal breathing has been part of the Yogi's art to achieve samadhi.

The distinctions between the two hemispheres or two brains are used by the occult world. Moriah values the intuitiveness of the right hemisphere. As one Illuminati mind-control programmer said, "It's the right brain that has an inbuilt propensity for accessing timelessness. There is bound to be some uncon-

scious prompting therefore that alerts us to the imminence of forthcoming disaster, that is, if we are sufficiently sensitive to its message... unless we have the wisdom, the soul age, to affect the use of those additional facilities (to access right brain knowledge) we will find our intelligence sadly limited to the left brain logic of the material world."

While this book is not about occult philosophy, occult philosophy is part of the motivation behind some of the split brain work. In order for the Illuminati to create alters which are highly intuitive and which are able to access the higher demonic spheres, they need to shut down the logic hemisphere. When the left hemisphere is shut down, then the right brain (which controls the left hand and left side of the body, i.e., the left hand path) is able to function without competition. The victim must be able to get in touch fully with his or her intuitive side to go into the "spiritual dimensions" where demons exist. This is very nasty work, because this split brain work involves high level demonology. Most of the deeper Illuminati alters are right brain alters so that they will be very spiritually intuitive.

[H: The motion picture industry and television controllers work full time at producing the desired result of certain triggering. The mind is under full manipulation if you don't know what is hitting you—and only about 100th of 1% of the population has the slightest idea of what is taking place. You, as a world population—are all but totally CONTROLLED and fed thoughts according to the wishes of the manipulators—24 hours a day and moreso while you sleep. There is a continuous and steady barrage of pulsed messages into your brain while your "body" is resting and you assume you are comfortably sleeping.]

*The Lesser Key of Solomon* is an important teaching book of the Illuminati. It states, "An adept enters an abnormal plane and equips himself to 'charge' with magical energy the pentacle and talismans." The training that this takes is called "training of the higher will" and split brain programming is part of how it is accomplished.

### [END QUOTING OF PART 1]

I believe that this topic is important enough to continue until we finish, at the least, this chapter. If YOU don't come to know what is taking place, including in your own mind, you are not going to do well at finding the right pathway to God because Satan is NOT GOING TO PROGRAM YOUR MIND TO SERVE GOD!

Let us have a short break this morning for I feel this important enough to move right smartly along. We can then go BACK and offer the fine work of this author in series—after we have a long, long visit with him.

I know that most of you regular readers are terrified at the assaults against your SOUL EVOLUTION in this illusionary environment of non-reality. A good example of training in its more mass-controlled research programming comes from the Nazi Holocaust mythology. The Holocaust COULD NOT have happened the way it is presented—but you ACCEPT it as if it were happening before your eyes. The LAW comes forth and now REQUIRES that you believe the tales, right or wrong. Therefore, YOU have no alternative but to 'fess up to the LIES. This is exactly the same thing as forcing, through confusion and torture, admissions of guilt when a party may well have never even been near the place of the suggested CRIME. These are public BALLOONS to see how far you are moved into the morass of programming. It also

comes about through political CONFUSION—and then, the confusion turns to presenting less than a 45% turnout of registered voters at the polls. The facts are that the MIND *knows* there was no CHOICE.

How do you KNOW you are not simply "brainwashed" if you find you are recognizing truth in these shameful antics? Because of exactly THAT FACT—you recognize the difference. You who KNOW TRUTH—are NOT the parties under the insult of BRAINWASHING. The ones who pull you down for your "absurd beliefs" are the nonthinking entities and they will, if you allow it, bring you right into their own entrapment. Mostly they will do it through nasty demands and irate tantrums and insults while never realizing the INSULT IS TO THEIR OWN MINDS.

In every direction you take there are seemingly NOTHING save choices following upon one another. That's right! Your whole manifest state is specifically ONE OF CHOOSING. You have basically TWO CHOICES, (perhaps it could be even considered as ONE)—THAT OF MAINTAINING AND HOLD-ING TRUTH AS YOU FULLY RECOGNIZE IT TO BE—OR SIMPLY GOING WITH THE FLOW INTO DEEPER BLINDNESS. You who have to deal with family, friends and bosses who try to force you into their choices, face the most destructive forces ever to confront you.

We have some people who come to visit who have these pressures constantly. They are so absorbed by it that the only time they can hold strong is just enough to visit truth. They will stay in dangerous country JUST to appease the other demanding entity—AND CALLIT LOVE! This attitude ONLY PROVES "need", NOT LOVE.

Worse, what you then really desire is some sort of cult or "master" that will demand your allegiance so you are forced into choosing what you wanted all along. No thank you—NOT HERE WILL YOU FIND SUCH PRESSURES. We have no use for those who have to make decisions under such silly circumstances. GOD IS NOT FORCE; GOD IS NOT COERCION OR DURESS. GOD OFFERS TRUTH—YOU MUST MAKE THE CHOICES. Salu.

### CHAPTER 2

### REC #2 HATONN

### SUN., NOV. 10, 1996 10:46 A.M. YR.10, DAY 086

### SUN., NOV. 10, 1996

### [QUOTING (from Chapter 8), PART 2:]

### BODY MANIPULATIONS

### **C: MEDICAL TECHNOLOGIES**

Medical science has been probing the gray matter that makes up the human brain for several hundred years and they continue to probe it. With the use of various new techniques they can look inside the human brain in ways that were not available before. An enzyme called horseradish peroxidase (HRP) which serves as a marker or highlighter allows brain researchers to visually look at brain cells on functioning brains. Researchers such as Frank Putnam, at the National Institute of Mental Health, have taken PET scans of the brains of people with multiple personalities, whose brain scans from one alter personality to another are very different. This doesn't occur in non-multiple people who pretend to have different personalities. The brain scans have shown that brains with multiple personalities are physically different than other people's brains. The different personalities are often in different neurophysiological states. Medical science has helped the programmers put people into different neurophysiological states for programming. Some of these states are dangerous unless trained medical personnel are available to insure the victim doesn't die. Which, according to ex-Programmers, does happen anyway. **[H: This can also be verified by Cathy O'Brien.]** 

Medical science has identified glutamate which is an amino acid as an important neurotransmitter involved with memory storage. However, after countless tests and all types of research, we still do not know completely how the brain stores memory. However, the NWO's Network understands far more than they have let the public learn.

### HAVING SKILLED MEDICAL/LAB TECHNICIANS

Having the medical know-how doesn't get the job done in itself. Obviously, the Network has needed to have both hospitals and trained medical personnel.

Having skilled workers is part of the success of the Monarch Programming. For instance, the simple interpretation of Alpha BFT instruments, requires that the operator be able to understand what is back-ground interference. Everywhere the instrument is located there is going to be some amount of back-ground interference. Only the good operators can realize when a pseudo-alpha wave has been produced, perhaps from the child sweating in the location of the electrode, or hair movements, or eye blinks or

### twitching.

The Illuminati has their own midwifery training program, which will take teenage Monarch slaves and train them. They also begin training their people in programming and observation from infancy up. By the time they are an adult, the programming alters know programming as second nature. They have no shortages of doctors, nurses, psychiatrists, and other well educated people. If they have to save an important Monarch slave, they may fly in a specialist from wherever the right specialist is.

When it comes to research, some of it done by professionals who don't realize how their research is going to be used. Many researchers are great on seeing detail, but not the bigger picture. They usually don't realize how their research is going to be misused, and are very gullible people. The CIA finds that the researcher is quick to justify in his or her mind the moral value of the research they are doing.

Many members of the Illuminati are involved in secret genetic research.

Having control over numerous big hospitals is an important link in the ability of the Network to program so many people successfully.

Medical personnel are participating in acts that help mind-control. One Christian nurse quit the University Hospital here, because newborns are *secretly* being given implants. A few years ago, it was discovered that The Upjohn Company, an American multinational company, was involved in placing radiotransmitting material in with their liquid cortisone preparation Depomedrone, which created an implant when medical personnel put Depomedrone into their patients.

### **D: HISTAMINES**

Histamine is a chemical (a particular molecule) which the body uses to defend against alien cells. It also has the ability to lower blood pressure and to flare up the skin.

The auditory sense can affect histamine production via programming. Histamine is a molecule which is part of the immune system. Changes in histamine levels affect moles. It affects skin changes in scars. This is how the abusers can magically make scars appear and disappear, which makes the programming seem even more real to alters. The abusers like to create invisible scars that form patterns and pictures. The most popular is the Baphomet head (which stands for Satan). Upon command they can trigger the skin to make these scars visible.

If one pricks someone's skin with a needle having histamine on the tip, it will cause the skin to flare up red.

Biofeedback has allowed people to mentally talk to their skin. Hypnosis has controlled people's immune system. States of mind affect the immune system. Somehow a combination of these is used to allow the handler upon command to trigger the correct state of mind within the victim to increase histamine production within the skin area.

The bone marrow of the body produces stem cells. The stem cells are capable of growing into many different types of cells. First the stem cells grow into some basic different cells and those in turn grow some

more and further differentiate. For instance, a stem cell can become a myeloid, which can become a polymorpho nuclear granulocyte which in turn can become a basophil or mast cell. Both basophils and mast cells are leukocytes and they are part of the body's immune system. Both basophils and mast cells are carriers of histamine. Histamine does several things in the body. Histamine causes dilation of blood vessels, and it allows blood vessels to become permeable (leaky, so to speak) which allows other chemicals and fluid to go through the blood vessels into the area between cells and tissues. All CNS (Central Nervous System) cells of the body have receptors that the histamine can attach itself to like a ship docking. When cells are damaged, or alien cells enter the body, the basophils and mast cells release their histamine.

For the body to have more histamine, it must increase the number of basophils and mast cells. This can be accomplished by changing the ratio of stem cells that develop into other types of cells.

The core of the histamine molecule is an ethylamine. Antihistamines are molecules that resemble histamines enough that they can attach themselves to the histamine receptors on regular cells and prevent the histamine molecules from attaching. If the histamine molecules don't attach, the body disposes of them. The point being that histamine remains in the skin only so long before the body disposes of it. Histamine levels in the body can raise IF the cells which carry the histamine are increased.

It is believed that breast implants have some kind of effect on raising histamine production levels in the body. Whether these breast implants are identical to what all breast implants are, or whether they have something special to agitate the body into higher immune cells' production of the mast cell and basophils type is not known. However, there seems to be some relationship between the Network's need to raise histamine production in their slaves, and the breast implants that they are putting in them. Putting the pieces together leads one to believe that the implants agitate the body's immune system into raising the level of its histamine carrying cells. A number of women who have gotten implants speak about an increase in allergies. The allergic reaction is caused by high levels of histamine. Whether this happens to some or many is not known at the time of this writing.

The three big Illuminati chemical companies are I.G. FARBEN, DuPONT, and DOW CHEMICAL. Dow Chemical began research with implanting silicon in 1956. After 35 years of studies in which they implanted thousands of various animals with silicon, the company knew exactly what silicon would do in the human body. The FDA had public hearings in 1992 where internal documents of the Dow Chemical Co. were released which showed that the company knew all along that their breast implants were **very dangerous**, years before they put them on the market.

There is an incredible search going on for an anti-silicon antibody so that they can clean up the mess they have created in millions of people who have silicon implants. The immediate chest wall and area around the breast implant gets highly agitated. The silicon leaks through the membrane, and then causes great difficulties in the body.

Many of the female Monarch slaves have received breast implants. [H: Most will not even realize they have implants. I suggest that every one of you "rescued" sex-slaves—get yourself checked out because this is a planned bomb ready and waiting to "getcha" under certain circumstances. This is one of the reasons for body infliction of cuts and wounds—so that the victim will not know WHY the body may be having scars, etc.]

### **E: BODY PROGRAMS**

Researchers have come a long way toward understanding the mind. They have discovered, for instance, that under stress the brain will convert nerve signals into "messenger molecules" who then in turn direct the endocrine system to produce steroid hormones that can reach the nucleus of various cells and cause them to change how the body's genes are written out. These genes will then direct the cells as to how to make a variety of molecules which are used in growth, metabolism, sexuality, and the immune systems. In other words, the mind can rewrite genetics. This was the secret that helped get the Monarch Program off to its scientific foundation. Now the actual mechanics of this have been observed by researchers.

One of the leaders in understanding the mind-body relationship was Franz Alexander. Black was one of the researchers into how hypnosis can be used to regulate the body and the body's functions such as the immune system. Ken Bowers also worked in this area. Dr. S.M. Lambert of the Rockefeller Foundation studied how voodoo could cause death by creating certain thoughts in the mind. Most of the research in this area was monitored, if not sponsored by the Intelligence agencies under the auspices of the Illuminati.

The Hypothalamus bridges the mind and the body. It works as part of the Limbic-hypothalamic system. This system is a determining center for what state of mind in which the brain is placed. The immune system communicates directly with the hypothalamus part of the brain with its own "messenger molecules" known as "immunotransmitters". This then is mind-brain link of which the Monarch programmers have taken so much advantage.

Barbara Brown, a physiologist at Veterans Administration Hospital (in Sepulveda, CA) wrote a book *New Mind*, *New Body*. Barbara Brown's research was government funded. Her book got the public interested in biofeedback. Because of repeated success at getting patients to control such things as their heartbeat, Dr. Brown is convinced that a person's heart rate, breathing, muscle tension, and glandular responses are all subject to a person's will. Those who have worked with victims of U.S. Government MK-Ultra mind control know that what Dr. Brown writes is correct and was known years before she published her book.

Biofeedback is now required training in some prisons for some inmates.

It is clear from the final results that Monarch slaves have programming which can carry out the following functions:

- \* Control the pulse rate and heart beat.
- \* Control the body's temperature.
- \* Control the temperature of individual body parts or sides of the body—such as the right side of the body might get hot, and the left side of the body get ice cold. One who has observed this by touching the left and right sides of a victim who was burning hot on the right side and ice cold on the left.
- \* The secretions of various enzymes and histamine production has been trained into the victims and attached to various body programs to keep the slave in line. Histamine production appears to be regulated via surgery carried out on women's breasts. It appears, but hasn't been confirmed, that the surgery where breast implants are placed into female Monarch slaves plays some role in histamine production and programmed control.
- \* Allow the body to pretend that it is dead, when actually it is in an altered state similar to being comatose.

The internal defenses consist in part of body programs that are triggered if the mind-controlled slave steps out of line. Here is a good list of some of these **body programs**:

Auditory problems, a Bone disorder, Blood flow-circulation, Coma (zombie death sleep which makes victim appear dead), Digestive failure, Headaches-split brain, Heart failure, Histamine production, Optic problems such as blindness, Respiratory failure, Sleep deprivation, Sleeping program, and Temperature change.

Body programs will be put in across the board for all alters. The same code will work for all alters when the internal programming alters want to trigger a body program.

If a body program is placed into the slave it may be anchored to something, and that might be something as drastic as the heartbeat. One of the programs causes the victim to hear a heartbeat which is reframed in their minds as the "heartbeat of Satan".

Some of the body programs are carried out by creating an alter which has one mental state—such as an alter fragment which is burning or one that was created by ice torture. This alter or this feeling of being hot or cold is then attached to something in the mind. For instance, if the victim moves toward the world, or a cold alter or a cold feeling of a memory is hypnotically programmed to come up behind the alter holding the body. Sometimes the sensation of burning can be eliminated by getting a firechild to back up from the front of the mind where another alter is holding the body.

Many feelings, body sensations, and drugged states are attached to programs. When the alter hits a stringer, he will go through a series of memories, false memories, hypnotic commands, and body sensations that have been attached together in stringers. The stringer type of programming is often put in to set in a front program which is to deceive an alter.

The abilities of the human brain to control the body have been seriously underrated by people. Biofeedback researchers in the 1960s were surprised to find out that if a single nerve cell's activity is placed upon a screen so that the subject can see its activity graphed, the subject will be able to mentally identify that cell apart from any other nerve fiber cell, and will be able to have voluntary control over that single cell apart from any other. Just to show how complex the body is, a single nerve fiber cell will have 600 connections. This mental feat is simply mind-boggling for researchers.

The Mar. 5, 1972 *Los Angeles Times* reported that patients were being taught how to alter their heart rate without drugs. This had already been happening within the Monarch programming. The heart is controlled by the mind and works with the emotions of a person. There have been people who have literally died from a "broken heart". This is a historical fact. The Monarch programmers have long been taking advantage of the mind's ability to control the heart's beating.

A tiny little bit of tissue not really visible to the visible eye, called the sinus node, sends out electrical signals that regulate and initiate heart beats in an unbroken rhythm. The genetic code concerning the body's metabolism and the genetic code for the sinus node somehow get the entire heart beat generator mechanism started. Two areas of the brain control the changes in heart beats that the sinus node would make. The sinus node sends out the signals but it doesn't change the rate. A very primitive part of the brain

stem is one of the control areas, and the other control area along the spine. Both of these areas connect to the higher thinking areas of the brain. The three most frequent events that change heart beat are emotions, sicknesses, and muscle activity. Since the will influences emotions, the higher brain can control the heart beat and its pulse. Alters are programmed so that they will trance out if anyone tries to prove to them that they have a heart—which they have been programmed to believe was taken away from them by the programmer. The occult world learned this ability from the Indian yogis who have been controlling their hearts for centuries. Some have even shown in the scientific laboratory that they can stop their hearts for up to 30 seconds. (See Green of Menninger Foundation's work.)

[H: Gunther Russbacher got very good at this trick and loved proving it to such as Dharma when we would have meetings. Moreover, he learned, and Rayelan made sure, that he always also called a spirit-being labeled Atalon (the antithesis of Aton). It is amazing if you don't know what is taking place and the poor sucker in the trance has not the slightest idea that he is other than supernatural in his own talented way. The controllers can then carve up a body torso and infect a leg artery pathway and the poor soul hasn't the slightest idea that he didn't simply have a bypass surgery. This is THE WAY the controllers keep CONTROL over their victims. Gunther, for instance, hasn't a prayer of regaining his mental control without getting all the handlers and controllers AWAY from him long enough to deprogram. Ah, but the powers that be DO NOT WANT him deprogrammed—DO THEY? Therefore, readers, you simply have to LEARN how to protect yourselves from such trained, robotically-controlled persons. And beware of the "handlers" for they go forth in their own blind stuporous way and become "authorities" on how the other people are brainwashed. This is DANGEROUS territory. And no, you cannot program into Evil the GOD-CONNECTED BRAIN. Gunther and Rayelan both knew what Gunther was and is-and this is a sad plight for great things could have been accomplished if he had been able to free himself of this nightmare. He knew truth; he experienced truth, and he tried to tell the truth—but he did not have the strength of God connections to maintain his stability.]

The yogi's also developed the skill of changing their body temperatures. For instance, Swami Rama in the lab of Dr. Elmer Green could make one side of his palm hot and the other side of his palm cold simply by mental efforts. This type of body control was learned by the Illuminati years ago, and has been applied to the Monarch programming to make the programming lies seem more real to the victim than is the outside world. A Monarch slave can get cold on the left side and burn on the right side of his body. It has been well-documented that the mind can control the blood flow to various tissues and in this way change temperature in various different parts of the body. This was first reported to the public in 1978 (Barabasz & McGeorge).

It appears that a combination of yogi-type bio-feedback techniques along with classical behavior conditioning is able to account for some of the body programs in slaves. Other body programs appear to be connected to the memories of alters. For instance, if the Programmer wants the body to burn—he has the System pull up an alter which was tortured with fire who comes up behind the alter holding the body, and the body then abreactes and feels like it is burning. As mentioned, one technique is the split-brain programming where the functioning of the two hemispheres of the brain are separated, which allows the patient to feel the "right hand path" and the "left hand path" separately. This type of programming is very powerful in making the programming script seem more real than outside reality.

High blood pressure or hypertension has been found to be largely a function of the mind. However, conventional medicine has ignored this for years, and has a large volume of confusing and misleading research to the opposite. Rather than to admit the cause, the medical establishment has labeled the largest percentage of hypertension cases as "essential" or "idiopathic" which are labels to cover up that they don't know (or refuse to recognize) the cause of the high blood pressure. At any rate the cardiovascular system (heart and blood vessels, etc.) is so complex that it has been very difficult for researchers to get a grasp on many issues involved in blood pressure such as the release of hormones into the blood, and the result of long term stress on the cardiovascular system. When tests show that the stress of unemployment increases high blood pressure problems among men, it would seem that the medical establishment would begin to see the link that the mind has with controlling blood pressure. Again bio-feedback and classic conditioning have been successfully used to radically change a subject's blood pressure. Again the question may be, why would they condition a slave this way? Because, if the Master can call out a hypnotic trigger and change the slave's heart beat and blood pressure, does the reader see how "puppet-like" the slave feels? The slave's mind and body are literally owned by the master. **The slave is not even allowed to control his own body. This is what total mind control is all about.** 

### PATHWAYS

The medical profession used the term "pathways" to describe the ways the mind creates biochemical and physiological changes. In other words, how does the mind consciously decide to change its body? When medical researchers began to understand how the two hemispheres worked, they began to understand better how to facilitate mind-to-body communication so that they could program the slave's mind to control its body.

One of the better books on this subject is *The Psychobiology of Mind-Body Healing* by Ernest Lawrence Rossi. Rossi and Erickson devised a three-stage approach to accessing the person's inner resources for therapy. This type of hypnotic-induced healing is a clue to part of how the Body programs are structured for body control by programming. What some use for good, is used by others for evil. During the hypnotic work, Rossi uses what is called the "inner mind" of the person.

For instance, to get a person to stop bleeding, indirect hypnotic suggestions are made in the following 3 stages: a. A time-binding introduction of "Why don't you stop bleeding? NOW!"; b. There is an accessing of state-dependent unconscious processes that can control the bleeding; and c. There is a response by the person which ratifies that the inner process of stopping the bleeding has actually happened. [H: "Unconscious" is a bad term, Mr. Author. There is nothing "unconscious" at all about this technique—IT IS SUB-CONSCIOUS!]

The hypothalamus is a very small part of the brain. It is only the size of a pea, but it contains an immense amount of important tissues which control all types of inner activities of the body, including the endocrine, the immune, the neuropeptide and automatic systems. It is this area of the brain which is manipulated by hypnosis. The limbic-hypothalamic system is in a constant process of shifting as to in which state of mind the brain IS. There are numerous unconscious [sub-] conscious states to which a mind can be shifted. These are labeled "psycho-neuro-physiological states" because researchers now realize how a state involves the entire person. All learning is associated and depends upon the state in which it was learned.

A new sense organ was discovered, and *U.S. News & World Report*, July 19, 1993, p. 61 reported on it. We do not know when this tiny sense organ, which is located in the nasal cavity, was discovered by the people doing mind-control, but it is already being exploited. This organ responds to chemicals called pheromones, which play an important role in human emotions, such as fear, hunger and love. Human skin gives off odorless pheromones which other people can detect. Basic human drives are controlled by Pheromones. Endorfin is a peptide, of which at least 50 have been charted. By manipulating these chemicals, people can be biochemically put into a different state of mind, and victims have been manipulated by these chemicals.

These chemicals are being used in conjunction with Virtual Reality to control slaves' minds. In the March-April '94 edition of *The Futurist* the author Glenn F. Cartwright, of McGill University announces in his article "Virtual or Real? The Mind in Cyberspace", "Strangely, the developers of virtual reality seem largely unconcerned by the possible dangers inherent in launching individuals into another reality." This is because Virtual Reality is being developed **as another tool of mind-control**.

Computers can dynamically control and synchronize all that needs to be coordinated to give someone a virtual reality experience. The researchers/programmers are trying to immerse as many of the victim's senses into their virtual reality trip as possible. It becomes almost impossible to distinguish reality from the trip for the victim of this type of programming.

McGill University, Dr. White (Cameron's old stomping grounds) did some virtual reality research.

People are now getting involved with what is called MUDs (multi-user dungeons) where a person via virtual reality can create a parallel life. Some people are spending up to 120 hours a week immersed in their virtual reality second life. In 1992, Internet had 207 such games. Now the programmed slave only needs to hook into Internet to be programmed. **[H: And hundreds of thousands do so every day, or night, as the case may be.]** 

Cartwright's article warns that a person's ego-center can be projected somewhere else via Virtual Reality, which destabilizes one's actual understanding of where their own identity is. He also warns that Virtual Reality will create other personalities. He writes on page 24, "Multiple Identities. If it is possible in Virtual Reality or cyberspace to enter an altered state, become disembodied, swap genders, create a virtual ego-center, decenter the self, and assume a different identity, then it may also be possible to assume more than one identity at the same time. In this context, the exponential increase in multiple-personality disorders in recent decades may be of more than just passing interest... having multiple, serial, and simultaneous personae in cyberspace may not only be possible, but may even be encouraged as a part of interacting with others."

Virtual Reality via the computer Internet has now become another tool of the Programmers.

### [END QUOTING OF PART 2]

I want you to stop and think of this for a while before moving on. We can again use a hypothetical example from O.J. Simpson. I did say: HYPOTHETICAL.

Let us say that you have someone who can afford all sorts of experiences from drugs to hypnosis. Let us further suggest that he might well be all but incapacitated by such as "arthritis" which can be easily controlled by simply moving into an altered state of pain resistance, and utilizes the tool for a better quality of life. Now let us move further and watch as he realizes he can't remember a lot of things which seem to have vanished from his consciousness. How do you think a man with missing information and large gaps in his conscious thought process COULD pass a lie-detector test? O.J. Simpson is one of the most spectacular examples of a programmed victim. DON'T ANY OF YOU REMEMBER THAT HE WAS IN THE CIA RIGHT OUT OF HIGH SCHOOL? You are witnessing the FACTS unfolding in a most bizarre way right in front of your eyes and under your nose! HE PROBABLY DOESN'T KNOW, HIMSELF, WHETHER OR NOT HE KILLED THOSE PEOPLE WHEN IT COMES RIGHT DOWN TO IT. HE CAN ONLY ASSUME IT IS NOT WITHIN POSSIBILITY OF HIS "MAKEUP" TO DO SO. THIS POOR SOUL WAS GROOMED FOR THIS ROLE, READERS, AND YOU HAD BEST LOOK AND WEEP FOR SELF—FOR THERE BUT FOR THE GRACE OF GOD—GO YE.

Now, taking it to the more extreme point: "If" O.J. actually did the deed and did so in an altered state AS SOMEONE ELSE—DID O.J. DO ANYTHING AT ALL?

People, you are dancing on the edge of the precipitous point of no-return in your society, for when you no longer KNOW what is consciously TAKING PLACE in your world—you are lost forever through many generations of reinforcements. This means that you are moving from one illusion into another—and have actually LOST ALL ABILITY TO DISCERN THAT THE WHOLE EXPERIENCE IS ONE OF ILLU-SION AND MIND-CONSCIOUSNESS.

This further means, however, that IF YOU TAKE POSSESSION OF YOUR GOD-POWER, YOU MOVE OUT OF THE ILLUSION AND TO AND WITHIN THE TOTAL LIGHT OF *REALITY*. There is nothing "virtual" in TRUE REALITY and within that true reality we CREATE our course of travel in the reality of Universal Truth and Law. Therein, no evil programmer can touch you. And, this is quite a comforting fact to our people. Reality simply TAKES CONTROL of the illusion and the evil subsides as soul always DESIRES to move back within Creator. You don't need to "act out" or "have war" with anyone as you simply CREATE the RIGHT WAY. You will always find the RIGHT PATH if you expect to do so and never bend from that which YOU KNOW TO BE "RIGHT".

Let us end this segment and we will speak of "music" when we next sit to the keyboard.

Good afternoon.

### CHAPTER 3

### REC #3 HATONN

### SUN., NOV. 10, 1996 1:14 P.M. YR.10, DAY 086

### SUN., NOV. 10, 1996

### [QUOTING (from Chapter 8), PART 3:]

### MUSIC

Dissociated tones, beats and music may accompany hypnotic induction drugs. Pulsing beating sounds in the ears can change the brain's waves.

It is no secret that music will put someone into an altered state. Music will change moods, heart rate, and even one's state of consciousness. In a home/church setting in which Fritz participated, the question was asked of a group what they do to overcome depression. Everyone present listed "listen to music" as one of the things they do to overcome depression. [H: Now let us consider, however, that if the music to which a depressed person listens is built around more "somebody done somebody wrong" songs, then what do you think will happen to the depression? If, for instance, you have had to miss Christmas with family and your car blew up and your house burned down—will Christmas music make you feel better—or perhaps a bit worse?]

Sound will change body chemistry, blood pressure, breathing and digestion. (See Jacobson, Steven. "Media Mind Control", *Media Bypass*, Sept. '95, pg. 50). To quote Jacobson, "Fast music will speed up the nervous system while slow music will slow it down. Sounds vibrate in different parts of the body. Low tones will vibrate in the higher portions and on into the head. Much of today's popular rock music is built around a heavy bass pattern louder than the melody. These low-frequency vibrations reverberate in the lower parts of the body so that the music 'feels' good. These loud, low-frequency vibrations and the driving beat of most rock music affect the pituitary gland, which controls male and female responses. The repeating sound pattern induces the hypnotic state of mind that is similar to day dreaming, thus clearing the mind of all thought so that the message can be implanted in the unconscious without resistance."

[H: NOW BEWARE: IF YOU EVER HAD AN ALCOHOLADDICTION OR A DRUG ADDIC-TION (OR EVEN JUST NOMINAL USE OF SAME)—YOU ARE GOING TO *GET INTO SERIOUS TROUBLE WHEN YOU LISTEN TO "TRIGGER" MUSIC.* THIS IS WHEN MORE PEOPLE GO "OFF THE WAGON" THAN ANY OTHER TIME BECAUSE OF THE MIND-ASSOCIATIONS. THE MOST IMPORTANT THING TO CHANGE WHEN YOU ARE TRYING TO CHANGE SELF—IS THE MUSIC TO WHICH YOU LISTEN. IF YOU FEEL YOU HAVE TO HAVE NOISE GOING—THEN GET SOME MEDITATION MUSIC WHICH IS TOTALLY "NOTHING" TO YOU. I am very serious indeed for music brings more "associations" than almost anything, next to smells and taste.] "It is important to note that the lyrics of many rock songs are not clearly distinguishable consciously. When you do not hear the message clearly, you cannot make the conscious choice to accept or reject it. When you cannot make that choice or when that choice is taken away from you, the message is programmed directly to the subconscious, thus circumventing analysis and choice in accepting the content of the message. Sixties rock superstar Jimi Hendrix said: 'You can hypnotize people with music, and when you get them at their weakest point, you can preach into their subconscious whatever you want to say.""

Long term exposure to the heavy metal themes of sadomasochism, Satanism, suicide and drug abuse can only have a negative influence on the minds of the listener. Today's generation of children are being raised on this type of music.

Many of the big rock bands consist of Satanists. This statement isn't made flippantly, but from having learned from many witnesses of the rituals in which these Satanic bands participate. Some of these Satanists, as the reader can already guess, are programmed multiples. For those programmed multiples who participate in heavy rock music, they are simply adding one more type of bondage and mind-control to their already long list.

The spiritual damage done by rock music will be briefly addressed in a later chapter.

[H: This year when the conspiracy got well underway with Steven Horn, Abbott, Fort, Beam, Ence, Green, et al., this garbage started being fed to such as Horn by these misfits of weirdness that Dharma is nothing more than a poor victim of Mind-warp MPD. Well, in almost a decade of exchange with Doris it was apparent that the few times the idiots tried to "test" this theory on her—they lost and she never deviated from one sound, solid and stable personality—even when they had obviously "flipped out". It didn't take long for Horn to back off the issue of a psychiatrist for "Mrs. Ekker". Truth is sufficient for OUR NEEDS and lies seem to be the ONLY tool used by the opposition—so we just go with Truth and leave "them" to fall into their own traps.]

### PROGRAMMING DAMAGE TO THE BODY

Many of the body programs that activate via trigger codes are simply memories of severe torture. For instance, the victim might be placed naked on a block of ice, which contains the body of a frozen person. (This is a common trauma used in programming.) When this memory is triggered, via an alter or alter fragment, the victim's body abreacts and gets very cold. Another common torture is to stick a ureter catheter up the external urethral orifice (whose channel is called the urethra). This is painful. Then the urinary bladder is filled so that the victim is in extreme pain, and is made to hold their bladder in silence. This torture to the body is painful. But the long term effects of this torture, which is done repeatedly to slaves to teach obedience, is to seriously damage their urinary bladders. The abreaction of memories of this helps blackmail alters into obedience.

The bodies of many slaves are only kept functioning, because they are given repeated surgery by doctors working under the auspices of the Illuminati. These doctors can be trusted to keep quiet about the abused bodies they have to keep fixing.

It was mentioned earlier that some people suffering from autism are failures in mind-control program-

ming. We know of one case where a brilliant autistic teenager who'd not talked during childhood began talking, and shocked his parents because he began talking about his spirit guides. Some people diagnosed as MS are really failures of the mind control's brain-stem scarring. Many hundreds of women with breast implants are coming down with symptoms that look like MS & lupus. This may be because part of the women with implants are programmed multiples. Another disease that is believed by some to be caused by programming failures is lupus (aka lupus erythematosus or systemic lupus erythematosus). Establishment medical science claims that the cause of lupus is unknown. *Modern Maturity* (Ap/May '93) and *Nations Business* (May '93) are examples of magazines that have run articles about lupus. Ronald I. Carr and the Lupus Foundation of America put out a handbook on the disease in 1986. The director of the lupus Foundation has been an Illuminati programmed multiple.

The effects of the programming are not just in the mind. It has been scientifically shown that the torture memories are embedded in the cells of the body. In fact, the Illuminati intentionally wants the body injured by trauma pains and trauma memories, because they want to prevent the possibilities of the sanctification of the body such as written about in *2 Timothy 2:21*. Also, the Programmers intentionally and zealously prevent the deeper alters from wanting to love as *1 Corinthians 13* describes.

[H: If YOU have a "cancer" or such other disease in the process of acting up—LOOK CARE-FULLY and associate past experiences wherein you may be reexperiencing—OR attend the present circumstances and see WHO you want to pull from their own tasks and pathway to force attention. This is a serious thing, readers, and happens constantly. No, this will not be a "conscious" realization—it will always be a deeply hidden subconscious manifestation. Is the pain and agony to self really worth it—and just who are you allowing to manipulate YOU? These are the most utilized and prevalent ways the Adversary uses to distract our own people from whatever they may be doing. It is difficult to move on past family loved ones when the attempt is on a much higher level of deception.]

### PHYSICAL ASPECTS OF THE HUMAN BRAIN

Neurobiologists and chemists have learned a great deal about the physical aspects of the brain. One has to be careful about simplification. The concept of the split brain has been over simplified, because the best researchers on the two hemispheres know that there is constant interplay between the brain's two halves—unless the Illuminati have tampered with someone's brain. The split brain concept has been replaced with the Penta-Brain (something akin to a pentagram). The Penta-Brain takes the triune-concept of the brain conceived by brain scientist Paul MacClean and adds it to the split brain hemispheres and the duality of the frontal-posterior dimension also. In this process, "mammalian" and "reptilian" brains (those parts of our brains that mammals and reptiles also have) are accessed and worked on in people.

The best description read by co-author Fritz of the intricate chemical changes that happen during Learning and Memory is a Special Report entitled "The Chemistry of Learning and Memory" *Chemical & Engineering News*, Oct. 7, 1991, pp. 24-41, by Karen J. Skinner, Yale Chemistry Ph.D. in '73, Masters from Kennedy School of Govt., Harvard. This is a very technical report. The programmers do not learn this material, but those who want to understand the nitty-gritty molecular-biology of how the complex memory processes work in the mind might want to try to study this report.

In very basic terms, what it is communicating is: Neurons (nerve cells-of which the brain has 10

billion) meet each other at junctions (gaps) called synapses. At the synapses (gaps), neurotransmitters allow them to communicate. There are 60 trillion synapses. As a person gathers information, the brain changes the synapses, in a sense rewires itself. Part of memory is how the brain "rewires" itself, to use a layman's term. Genetics have an important role in the initial hardwiring of the brain. Genetics also determine receptor diversity (at the synapses) which relates directly to learning and memory because it increases the ways neurons can perceive, process and recall information. The Hippocampus has been found to play a role in long term memory storage. The Hippocampus stores memory in the cortex to be encoded into long term memory. Numerous areas of the brain are busy with processing only one type of memory. In a cacaque monkey, around two dozen distinct visual areas of the brain for memory storage have been discovered. In other reports, it has come out that memory is stored holographically. German researchers have been trying to figure out at the Max Planck Institute for Brain Research at Frankfurt, Germany what mechanism is used to bind the many various parts of information stored into a coherent recollection. The point that should be made at this point is that an alter does not exist in one spot in the mind. The mind perceives that an alter does, but an alter in terms of physical change in the brain is actually a multitude of synaptic changes scattered throughout the brain. The brain's concept/image of an alter and the dissociated state can be played with by the programmers, but they really don't kill alters like they pretend to do during programming. Alters can't be "killed" in the mind. As the mind consolidates info, it fires neurons in harmony (in phase) called a "binding" process. Perceptions which are not memories are initiated this way. It is these perceptions that exist without memories that are so important to the programmers. Some have called these perceptions "global unity" of the brain. These are in-phase frequencies from 40 to 70 Hz. NMDA receptors can perceive patterned firings from nerve cells that are active at the same time, which allows the brain to strengthen some synapses and let others grow weaker. Synaptic efficacy is called LTP. Interested readers can study LTP's molecular mechanism, etc., in Karen Skinner's Report.

Changing subjects slightly, let's discuss how Moriah fertilizes two zygotes and intentionally kills one of the twins in the womb. Studies have shown that in cases where one twin dies in the womb, the other twin usually tries to lead two lives. This has nothing to do with DID (MPD), except that the surviving twin will later be made into a programmed multiple. The Illuminati doctors have perfected a method to kill a developing twin so that the other engulfs it in the womb. This is skillfully done, and creates some interesting mental changes in the survivor. Moriah also believes that it endows the survivor with twice the spiritual power.

### GENETIC ENGINEERING TO CREATE PROGRAMMED ASSASSINS

This next section is somewhat of an appendix to this chapter. Readers may want to skip it, if readers are only wanting to just learn HOW the mind-control is done. However, we felt that since genetic engineering went hand-in-hand with Moriah's mind-control that a look at one specific type of military mind-control model would be worthwhile for some readers.

An example of how genetic engineering is coupled with the trauma-based mind-control is Amphibious Man, a particular top secret model of Monarch slave. The following section is taken from an earlier article by Fritz on this. As far as we know, this was the first and only article ever written on the subject (not counting classified secret documents).

When the public saw the British Royal Navy locate the sunken *Lusitania* in 1935 using the Iron Man Diving Suit, the British Royal Navy told the public that it had no interest and no use for the suit. The Royal Navy lied about the Iron Man Diving Suit that, "no use could be made of it as the Navy [had] no requirements for deep diving." The Royal Navy had no use for deep diving! Do you swallow that? That's a bold enough lie to drown on. They had just used it to locate the *Lusitania*! The lesson here is that when the World Order is using a particular advanced technology, they will tell the public that they have no interest in it. **[H: You can check this out by the new revelations that there is really no use for the HAARP and it will be phased out.]** 

The British, American and German navies continued after WW-I to do research beyond what the public knew was of interest. While the public thought that Aquaman was simply a comic idea—the research went on to develop the ability for humans to swim like fish. When the World Order has discovered a technological breakthrough they pretend that they are still researching the basic concept. Often they prepare the public for their inventions via science fiction novels and movies. The reasons include their need to avoid the future shock that can incapacitate a people.

If the reader has gone fishing, she or he may be familiar with how fish can breathe in the air, they don't die automatically. They have gills which are designed to take oxygen from water, but their gills do absorb some oxygen from the air, enough to keep them alive on land for a while, so that if they are left on the bank after being caught they may jump back into the water and escape. Likewise, people don't automatically die from downing. Near-drowned victims have been recovered after 40 minutes of being immersed in cold water. However, normal humans do not survive breathing water as well as fish breathe air. There are some animals, though, which can breathe both air and water, amphibians.

Over the years, the New World Order has secretly developed the ability to create a subspecies of people who can swim and breathe water.

Recently, the *Oregonian* newspaper (July 28, 1995) *Arts and Entertainment Guide*, p. 22, ran an article entitled "Brave New Waterworld". This is an example of a fictional supposedly futuristic setting for a movie about a technology **they already possess**. The movie *Waterworld* is the most expensive film made recently. It is estimated that it cost between \$140 million to \$200 million to make it. One of the main characters in the movie is Mariner, who is a human who has been genetically changed to have gills behind his ears. As mentioned already, they use movies like this to convince people that their present technology is only something of the future, while still preparing people mentally to accept it. That way the culture is not overwhelmed if they encounter the technology in the near future.

When secret researchers discovered that a particular chemical(s) added to the bloodstream would enable the human lungs to take oxygen and remove carbon dioxide from water, they had the ability to have men swim in water like fish, without scuba gear. Now they needed to cover their tracks, so National Geographic Society (which has great respectability in the public's eye) has written about experiments to find a way for men to breathe water. In the *National Geographic* book *Exploring the Deep Frontier, the Adventure of Man in the Sea*, published in 1980, they show a GE experiment on pg. 248. The picture's caption reads, "To dive like a whale and breathe like a fish: Scientists search for ways to increase man's freedom and range in the sea. In a tank at a General Electric research laboratory fish swim past a parakeet separated from their watery world by a transparent membrane. Watertight but porous, the

membrane allows oxygen and carbon dioxide to pass in and out. Equipped with artificial gills, man may one day breathe liquid while diving."

The example here is that they cover their tracks when they make a discovery by setting up experiments that are allowed to be published that make it look like they are only beginning to understand the subject. Bear in mind, the Allies captured secret Nazi German records, and the Germans did not research using parrots—they used live but expendable people. The Nazis were not above injecting drugs that induce respiratory paralysis or other responses and testing how the person's body would respond to drowning. I would suggest that they analyzed  $O_2$  contents in the human guinea pigs with mass spectrometers. The paperwork of the secret Nazi research projects that the Navy confiscated at the end of WW-II would provide a better picture of what was researched and discovered. [H: Since all these same experiments and ongoing research have never slowed up since the so-called Holocaust—WHO DO YOU BLAME NOW? YOU HAD BEST CHECK AGAIN AS TO WHO WAS DOING WHAT TO WHOM.]

The National Geographic article admitted that they had a membrane though which a parrot could get oxygen via the water around it. Now, logic would tell you that if they have a membrane that will allow a parrot to breathe surrounded by water that the technical difficulties of adapting this to a person can be easily overcome—so the concept of gills for people is quite achievable—however, the ability for humans to directly breathe from water is already achievable due to some other advances they have already used secretly for years.

In order to capitalize on their discovery of how to create Amphibious Man, military minds in the Illuminati went to work trying to think up schemes on how to use men who can swim like fish to their own evil advantages. Here is a discovery that could benefit mankind and yet they are thinking of ways to use it for evil. They basically realized that amphibious man could be used like a glorified Seal team. Seal teams are the navy's semi-secret group of well-trained men, who do primarily land operations after swimming ashore. Monarch slaves are being used in the Seal teams. The Seal teams are being secretly used to carry out assassinations, such as recently they were used to assassinate people in Iraq. They are trained in the ability to land and disguise themselves as natives and carry out illegal assassination work during times of peace. For missions like this only programmed slaves will work, because they need to erase their memories. Seal teams are located around the world, especially in the San Diego HQ area. The Seals were originally given dolphins to train and communicate with via clickers but these were turned over to the EOD (the Navy's ordinance group) so that the dolphins can be used to disarm mine fields or carry explosives. The comic book scenario of Aquaman with dolphins is not fiction any more. The Seals use SDV (Deep Vehicles) which are tight fitting 4-person minisubs to submerge deep into the water, before swimming with gear.

The name which is being used worldwide by people familiar with the concept of men swimming like fish is "amphibious man". There are groups secretly world-wide working on the use of this new subspecies of man. They are genetically trying to engineer new skin and other parts of the human body to make people more suitable for living underwater. In line with this, men, like Frenchman Jacques Rougerie, have been designing and building Aqua-cities so that people could live underwater and have industry such as fish farming to sustain themselves economically. Special "geothermal" generators would help generate heat for the Aqua-cities.

Amphibious man is alive and well today. Understand that the people who are being genetically engineered by the Illuminati are also being raised under their mind-control. The structures of their alter systems are very complex on Amphibious Man models, because so much secrecy is riding on these slaves. The internal systems of these slaves are booby trapped every which way so that no tampering can be attempted, plus the design work on these Systems is some of the best. Things are tied together like a jigsaw puzzle.

Fritz's Summer '95 newsletter revealed for the first time that, today, there are genetically engineered amphibious men who are able to swim underwater without air tanks.

There were a number of difficulties that the elite's scientists had to overcome to create Amphibious Man. Scientists had the benefit of being able to make lots of comparisons between various animals. Some animals can use water, some water and air, and some just air. There are many other comparisons that have been used in underwater research. In almost every physical aspect related to animals living underwater there are differences between various animals which can be identified. Once the feature is identified, then research can begin on how to obtain this feature for human swimmers. For instance, one type of snake (the pelagic yellow-bellied sea snake) which breathes air, can under optimum conditions stay underwater indefinitely. Turtles have an incredible tolerance for anoxia, in comparison to other reptiles, which go underwater. And sea turtles have the best tolerance of all the various turtles. This is the type of difference that lends itself to comparison research.

Underwater comparison research had already begun clear back in 1869, when Paul Bert examined the differences between domestic chickens and Mallard ducks. Doing comparisons it is easy to find out that birds and mammals which dive have greater storage in their bodies for O<sub>2</sub> than humans. The Japanese Ama divers were studied in the early 1930s by German underwater researchers. However, the public has been told that very little research in this area occurred until the 1960s. Kooyman, Gerald L., *Diverse Divers Physiology and Behavior*, Berlin, Ger.: Springer-Verlag, 1989, p. 33 states, "Little further experimental work was done on the subject of gas exchange in human breath-hold divers until the early 1960s." Can you believe that the British, Germans and Americans didn't research such an important underwater subject for 30 years? Yes, they did continue frantic secret research, and they eventually learned how to solve a number of undersea problems facing humans.

First, the regulation of respiration is carried out by what is called the Chemoreceptors which are carotid and aortic bodies which detect the changes in the partial pressure of oxygen and carbon dioxide in the blood. The  $CO_2$  break-point mechanism is sensitive to a number of phenomena, which can prevent it from protecting a person. When a person breathes, he has an ingassing and an outgassing of oxygen, carbon dioxide, nitrogen, and other gasses. The levels of each of these gasses and their nature are important factors in how a person's body underwater either functions or dies. If the level of  $CO_2$  gets too high, the person can become unconscious [H: This is the proper and "good" exampled use for the word "unconscious". This does not, either, suggest that the "sub"-conscious is not working at the same time the person is "without consciousness".] The human circulatory system has to be changed to be able to adapt to the ocean environment.

In dealing with men swimming underwater, all the laws of gasses that regular divers have to deal with still apply to Amphibious Man—such as Amonoton's law, Boyle's Law, Charles' Law, Henry's Law, and

Haldanian's Theory on gas absorption and elimination of body tissues.

Blood glucose is the only source for carbon when humans dive, which forces muscles to rely primarily on anaerobic glycolysis. This means that oxygen depletion is not the only major problem for those who hold their breath and swim. Blood glucose levels must be attained for underwater swimmers that will sustain activity. Breathing water must assure the proper functioning of the circulatory system.

The high salinity of sea water causes **hyper**tonic reactions in the lungs. Fresh water has too little salt in relation to the human blood and it causes **hypo**tonic reactions. Either way, the water (either fresh or salt) causes the aveolar tissue to damage and the body begins leaking proteins out of the mouth.

Secret Naval Intelligence researchers tied to the Illuminati studied what happens underwater to the heart rate, cardiac output and stroke volume, blood pressure and flow, the various important organs and the human brain, the muscles and bones and veinous circulation, the hemoglobin affinity for  $O_2$ , the effect of being submersed in blood gases, how oxygen is stored, and how hemoglobin concentrates in the body.

Another advancement was to discover how to manipulate the genetic codes for the growth of skin, so that very dense skin could be created. The genetics for all types of animals have been spliced and diced and all of the weird humans and creatures have been created. Many are freaks and serve the NWO no benefit. One of the big underground facilities for genetic research IS AREA 51, WHICH IS ALSO CLOSE TO SAN DIEGO, WHERE THE SEAL TEAMS ARE HQ. AREA 51 IS ALSO AN IMPOR-TANT MIND-CONTROL PROGRAMMING CENTER. [H: These particular areas are ALL fully connected via underground/underwater tunnel systems.]

Fritz's *June-July-August Newsletter* '95 further discussed the underwater bases, underwater supply depots, underwater mining research, undersea warfare systems, Tektite II, the mind-control research during the Conshelf underwater living experiment, the U.S. Navy underwater research ship *Eagle*, Scripps Institution of Oceanography and the Physiological Research Laboratory for Naval Intelligence use, underwater research by Rothschild and Bowers, Remote Controlled Vehicles (RCVs), and CURV (cable-controlled Underwater Recovery Vehicle), and special underwater tools such as the hydraulic underwater saw.

### [END QUOTING OF PART 3 AND CHAPTER 8 OF THE MATERIAL]

We have hardly scratched the surface of these topics but Dharma is exhausted from today's load of typing.

This ends chapter 8 of this particular book I am quoting. I particularly did NOT offer names or titles for these incredible books because the authors fully expect, at any time, to be TAKEN OUT.

However that might be, I feel that the only way to gain some security for them is to share the information so that it becomes very difficult to simply remove them. At least one of the authors is now being heard on talk-shows and interview programs.

We have selected "at random" from the middle of the book and honored the authors by FULLY presenting what they have offered. We respect the fact that rights are reserved and therefore only wrote that which

we have offered prior to now so that we would not overlap topic material.

I can only ask that you-the-reading public SUPPORT these authors in any way possible and we shall do the same.

The volumes offered to me as well as excerpts sent by the deluge, are from these two volumes which I will herein name. I ask that Mr. Martin contact these people ASAP and let us make some connections.

I have no input as to pricing or availability but I do have an address for your own research information: 9205 S.E. Clackamas Rd., Clackamas, OR 97015. The names for which reference is given: Fritz Springmeier and Cisco Wheeler.

Volume I: THE TOP 13 ILLUMINATI BLOODLINES and only Fritz Springmeier is listed on the cover as author.

Volume II: *THE ILLUMINATI FORMULA USED TO CREATE AN UNDETECTABLE TOTAL MIND CONTROLLED SLAVE*. I am told that there are also some audio tapes available of prior interviews. Perhaps Rick Martin would like to offer an opportunity for interview to these gentlemen.

Until you writers of such research information get together in serious intent to get truth to the public—you haven't a prayer in reclaiming that which is GOOD in this old world. We can HELP but you must accomplish the enlightenment. All we can actually do is point the way.

It has been a long day, Dharma, but critical that we do this work. Thank you, dear, and may you have respite now.

Good evening.

# CHAPTER 4

#### REC #1 HATONN

#### SAT., OCT. 12, 1996 7:44 A.M. YR.10, DAY 057

# <u>SAT., OCT. 12, 1996</u> (out of sequence)

#### TOUGH TIMES? NO, ONLY CHALLENGED EGO

# Editor's note: This was held back when originally written and is now being published out of regular date sequence.

A note from Doris, please: I have sat here and stared at this blank screen while going through so many various emotional "feelings" as to confuse my own direction of action to put a stop to the assaults from the "Hounds of Hell" who come in the form of liars, cheats, anti-Christs CLAIMING Holiness and Unconditional Love and I want to vomit in disgust for the selfish, greedy gang who would destroy and take from elderly people at any cost to further their plots to steal. I have had to look closely indeed at the things claimed so that I KNOW what is coming down before I simply react instead of responding in rational action.

I, like everyone, go through the helplessness phase, the weeping phase, the "what's the use" phase, and the "I can't take it any more" phase—AND NOW RIGHT BACK TO "I'm mad as hell and I **won't take it any more!"** Well, NO MORE, I am with Creator and TRUTH IS GOING TO WIN THIS BATTLE NO MATTER HOW MANY OF THE SKIRMISHES WE LOSE.

The "opposition" in the Nevada Receivership and Gold theft case have taken the opportunity of our attorney being away on vacation to enter hundreds of pages of assault filings with the Nevada Court. I am going to copy this one for your information to show you that THIS is the kind of material resorted to by these "FINE" politically established (direct boast from Abbott) who plan to RETIRE (stated by Abbott to a roomful of witnesses) on Mr. Fort's case!

Since it seems to be a great and fearful thing to these usurpers of justice to have things run ABOUT THEM in the paper—so be it, let us please them some more. And then, you lenders and participants in this game will have to take it from here because E.J. and I have had to borrow, directly, a fortune in loans to pay these attorneys for the Institute and for ourselves. And NO, I do not mean from "you lenders" or the Institute—we borrowed it DIRECTLY and I don't think we are willing to do more for it is obvious that if we are the ONLY ones to care, we waste all our time and energy. Can we PROVE this? Of course, and have done so. I would do it again to serve our work needs but we were assured from upstart that we would not have to walk this trail of labor alone. So, I don't ask you to do anything FOR us—I plead with you to do something about this assaulting monster beast for YOURSELF. THEY ARE BREAKING EVERY LAW ON THE BOOKS TO TAKE EVERYTHING YOU HAVE SHARED, LOANED, OR HELD HERE.

The question is, of course: "But where is your attorney?" Well, attorneys have to have time off, vacations, income up front, massive fee payments—or you don't get much output and every one so far fears the "association" far worse than losing the case. They never seeem to want to ENDACASE—because there goes the "old retirement" program.

The Judge in the "property case" said, FROM THE BENCH, on more than one occasion on the non-trial date, that our former attorney, Mr. Tips, was guilty of malpractice in our case and the case should be taken up with him directly. This, of course, is not true but Steven Horn set it up so he THOUGHT he wouldn't be caught up in the harangue. He didn't make it but now it seems our attorney would rather be nice to Mr. Horn than press the case. What will happen? Well, "I" intend to press the case because we have struggled here, over these EIGHT YEARS TODAY (Columbus Day, 1988), to do something RIGHT for if this has happened at random, to us, it has happened constantly to myriads of other hapless victims of a system gone insane and criminals in high places in seats recognized as "god's".

In NO CASE involving anything around us have we, E.J. and Doris, had a hearing. We've been deposed and E.J. has witness ONCE, and that was NOT a personal matter. I guess we had to experience this never-ending, and growing by the minute, insanity to ever be able to believe our nation, our systems, our freedom is SO FAR GONE AS TO BE POSSIBLY LOST FOREVER.

I write as a Christ messenger; I sit dutifully in my corner, and E.J. and I do everything we can to salvage a mess left by the slick and slimy criminal elements into our laps and onto our backs.

We have guarded your names with our lives in freedom. We have disallowed privacy to be broken even when it seems Green gets information before we do—right from the mouths of insiders who attend our meetings and then run to the opposition BEFORE WE GET OUT OF THE MEETING ROOM! FINE, IT WILL BE AN EVEN GREATER VICTORY TO WATCH THEM FALL FOR I FULLY INTEND TO CAUSE THEM TO FALL—BY AND THROUGH TRUTH.

All you have to be is a reader, not even an agreeable one, to put a stop to this trashing of our Teacher. You see, I am said to be "the teacher" and it is now reported to the courts that I am a "dirty mouthed..." imposter. Oh? We shall see who is the imposter of Truth. We have been the recipients of the little sneaky and dirty tricks just this week while the police answer non-existent 911 calls—right from the area where Tammy Alley works. This was twice and the officers were DIRECTED to the research farm. It is backfiring because it is unlawful to deliberately place false calls to such emergency numbers—and VERY EASY TO TRACE, TAMMY. Oh, yes, we DO KNOW! Whose little twinkle finger dialing or punching the numbers is unimportant! It is as with the broken gas line at the farm and the vandalized irrigation system—the fingerprints are all over everything—EVERYTHING!

Now, Tammy, you and yours have other problems because your own brother-in-law has entered affidavits about us—USING YOUR DIRECT INFORMATION AND HE HAS NAMED YOU—SEVERAL TIMES—AS HIS SOURCE OF INSIDE INFORMATION. GOOD OLD ROD, HASN'T CHANGED A SINGLE STRIPE, HAS HE?

Surely with this kind of love and close relationship you have been shared with from the funds embezzled and the sale of the farm equipment? I note, however, that YOU are the one with the regular job. Are you planning to "retire" off these cases also? I would suppose so but how much do you think those greedy

attorneys will leave for YOU? They will sacrifice you, AND HAVE DONE SO, on their altar of GREED. And wonders of wonders, even YOU got away without paying rent to the Institute as promised—so isn't it interesting that the very thieves and cheats—now wait to get some more?!?!

Readers, it is, as far as I am concerned—up to you because it appears to me there are some dark souls around and Halloween is likely their day of celebration. I note that Ann Beam is the new feeder of garbage into Abbott. Well, not new because she has been THE PROBLEM ever since she moved into Leon's bedroom—or is this "dirty talk"? Well, right again—I don't approve, it is immoral, it is the total appearance of evil in action. TWO people experienced your twirl with the Black Witches in Tucson and you can deny until Hell freezes but it will not make it different. By your works will you be known…! Truth hurts and is dirty? Right! You, Ann Beam, by your own and witnessed words, are George Green's "emissary". You said it—right to E.J. and several of us witnessed it on a speaker phone where YOU identified yourself and made the statement. So, as far as I can deduce, that makes YOU THE DEVIL'S ADVOCATE any way you slice your cake.

Now your buddies are going to suck Sharri (Can't anyone of you CLOSE and GOODLY FRIENDS spell her name correctly?) into the mess so she has to get an attorney and pay your legal fees. Isn't Betty paying enough to suit you parasites? What of George Green? He claimed IN COURT UNDER OATH to have \$5 MILLION. How much of it does he pay you nice people for your selling of your souls? Rightnothing! He makes the program, gets the gold, and YOU GET THE BAG. It is like the southern tradition of SNIPE hunting. Well, I promise you, before this ends—you are going to get far more than the "bag". He and those attorneys HAVE ALREADY DUMPED THE ENTIRE LOAD OF GARBAGE ONTO YOU-THOSE AFFIDAVITS ARE NOT ONLY LIES, COULD NOT BE TRUE TO ANYONE WHO HAS A BRAIN—AND JURORS OFTEN DO HAVE BRAINS IF JUDGES ARE HON-EST—and you are the ones on the line with the lies (REMEMBER THE LETTER YOU, ANN, WROTE—FILLED WITH LIES—TO GERRY SPENCE?) He, and we, still have that letter right here under our noses. All Sharri's "affidavit" said was that she declared her attached letter to be hers. What was in the letter had nothing to do with the case in point. Furthermore, the letter she sent directly to the Judge and was RETURNED by same said she didn't want to be ANY PART OF THE ONGOING SITUATION. The Judge, rightfully, said she couldn't participate for she was not a part of any action— YET.

It is also strange to me that John Schroepfer is still fought over while he has been out running around, being divorced, and still Abbott uses Eleanor as his conservator. Eleanor is in a senile center as an invalid. Is THIS your fine and upstanding lawyer friend who continues to do this while claiming we do unto elderly and infirm people? Abbott just said poor old Sharri is 85 and abused. She doesn't talk to us for years now, abandoned her corporations, your gang caused her to act unlawfully in secretly shifting them off—totally without authority or legal signatures. It doesn't matter who or how Betty ended up TAKING the corporation books from Nevada Corporate Headquarters OR whether or not Cort Christie allowed it to happen—CORT NOR BETTY NOR SHARRI HAD LEGAL ABILITY TO DO SO AND IT IS NOT GOING TO JUST "GO AWAY" SO YOUR BLACK-SOULED ATTORNEYS AND GREEN CAN GET MORE OF HER BLOOD. Betty will have to answer directly to Sharri and to God for her ongoing pressures to gather into the web this beautiful and wonderful LADY.

We, the Ekkers, HAVE MANDATES UNDER THE LAW, TO ATTEND ANY CORPORATION

WHEREIN WE HAVE RESPONSIBILITY FOR FIDUCIARY CARE. WE ACCEPTED IT THEN AND WE CONTINUE TO ACCEPT THAT MANDATE UNDER THE LAW—NOW. If we err, it will be under the LAW while making every effort afforded us to PROTECT parties who entrusted responsibility to us. The same promise stands true for any participating person we directly serve AND THOSE WHO DO NOT HAVE US ON THEIR CORPORATE PAPERS. A verbal commitment is enough with us to accept and maintain integrity to the very best of our ability for as long as it takes against the greed-mongers who will literally set you people UP FOR THE KILL to strip YOU of everything—but mostly ANY INTEGRITY you might ever have had.

Green states that there was no report of these corporation shiftings to the Attorney General of Nevada? Think again! That office said to go first through the local police in Las Vegas and that is EXACTLY what was done. Mr. Christie did not err-he was NOT in the office when Betty took the documents-period. Either way-Mr. Christie is NOT Mr. or Mrs. Ekker who are the only officers and directors UNDER THE LAW on those in point corporations. We were NEVER ASKED TO, NOR DID WE, relinquish any responsibility to them. While there was appropriate action capability-there were never calls from Ms. Yount or her lawyer—any call on any notes. We never established whether or not she even had an attorney and to this day we note no follow-through on the part of any Yount attorney. It is obvious that "helpers" continue to write FOR SHARRI, things which only PROVE she is not in possession of her affairs. An affidavit produced which states "I wrote the attached letter" almost a year ago-just doesn't cut it. Green, Abbott, and Horton-and Betty Tuten, obviously want Sharri's assets-so, go steal them from her directly for we are going to protect, to our last breath, any interests under our responsibility. You WILL be brought before a court of law to answer for these thefts, lies, efforts at theft, and for your criminal activities-ALL of you! And guess what! Green Brigade: WEARE DOING SO FOR EVERY PERSON WHO CAME THROUGH THIS WAY AFTER LISTENING TO GOD GREEN AND HIS "COME ON IN" PLAN FOR HIS SELF-PROCLAIMED "I OFFER THE ILLUSION OF MONEY" PLAN. Oh yes he did say it—it is right up front ON TAPE AT A SEMINAR. Well, the others who listened and shared-may not sit still much longer but may well rise up and smite you for destroying their security and position. After all, this is NOT our battle-it is theirs!

I repeat a question to Ann and especially to the attorneys and judges involved in receiving these "affidavits": Mr. Ence says Ekkers have the money and their things packed and waiting (to skip out, George said, to Chile and Peru) under the crawl space in their house. How many times has Ence been under our house in the crawl space? He was in our house and was SEEN LEAVING OUR HOUSE the day some \$5,000 was—immediately after he left—missing from the office. Funny thing is only Ences knew and stated HOW MUCH was missing—exactly! Coincidence? It begins to look like it wasn't mere coincidence! When shoes are found on your feet—it is supposed you knew about them being there.

The desperation on the faces and in the actions of these misfit attorneys, who DEPEND ON THE JUDGE TO BE MORE CORRUPT THAN THEY, shows. There is no JUST court in the LAND (yea, world) who would accept such insipid trash as affidavits—because PROOF OTHERWISE is scattered all over the landscape. The only hope of beating Green's opposition (you and us) is in causing the Judge to rule foolishly before there can be a trial. Well, then it becomes HIS NECK ON THE GUILLOTINE BLOCK and this being election year and with him already soliciting, from the lawyers in Nevada yet, funds for his campaign, he doesn't look too good as an uncorrupted resource. I do ask that Mr. Dixon's letter regarding this Judge which will run in Nevada papers be run in *CONTACT*—with the copy of the "solicitation"

request from Gibbons to a well-known attorney! This is politics in its most despicable and scandalous form. Moreover, ALL of our cases in California and Nevada—are being "held" until elections are over. Interesting!! There isn't even a hint at secrecy about it—they right out tell you. Still think there are NO CONSPIRACIES? Well, I guess we deserve it because we let it happen while we slept and THOUGHT the flag-waving meant we were FREE! I am NOT FREE—HOW ABOUT YOU?

I want to just take a while and offer here EXACTLY AS RECEIVED BY THE COURT a couple of documents from George Abbott:

# [QUOTING:]

As a supplement to the Motion to Stay Disposition of Assets in this court on October 7, 1996 and corrected on October 9, 1996, to include an inadvertently omitted exhibit, Eleanor Schroepfer [Remember that Eleanor has been "put away" so can't even know about this ongoing case.] and Leon Fort, plaintiffs in this Court's case No. 94-CV-0322, Department II, by and through their undersigned counsel, submit the attached document, Exhibit A. **[Of course there is NO attached document and there rarely is, but you get to the excuse in the next document.]** 

Request is made for the earliest possible entry in Department I and/or Department II of orders designed to (i) **STAY DISPOSITION OF THE GOLD COINS** now in custody of the Ninth Judicial District Court; and (ii) once and for all to permit appropriate judicial inquiry designed to end the outrageously (thus far) uncontrolled (in Nevada) **criminal activities of Ekker-Ekker and their corporate confederates, as well as successive legal house counsel indispensably implicated.** [Brad Elley is **counsel but HE IS NOT "house counsel" for anything or anybody.**]

Dated this 9th day of October, 1996.

SS/George W. Abbott

# [END OF QUOTING]

PLEASE NOTE THAT GEORGE ABBOTT HAS NO STANDING IN THIS CASE WHATSOEVER! HE EVEN STATES AS MUCH AS HE PUTS UNDER HIS SIGNATURE: "RELATED CASE, 94-CV-0322, DEPARTMENT II". HE WAS TOLD TO LEAVE THAT COURTROOM ON THE DAY OF THE SCHEDULED TRIAL and THAT HE HAD NO BUSINESS EVEN BEING IN THE COURT-ROOM! We do note, however, that in spite of TWO RULINGS AND ORDERS BY THE SUPREME COURT—JUDGE GAMBLE IN DEPARTMENT II *CONTINUES TO HOLD THE COINS*.

The only criminal actions thus far have been right at Abbott's feet and through his hands and instructions. When lawyers KNOWINGLY and criminally break the law, as officers of the court—they are deemed unworthy to hold a "Bar License" and longer practice LAW. This is DISGUSTING AND INSIDI-OUSLY INSIPID BEHAVIOR AT BEST. Lenders, those coins were not left to Ekkers—they were gifted by Dave Overton TO THE INSTITUTE FOR YOUR USE! Green gave at least 5 to 10 reasons why he held them secretly and buried them in his back yard—all of which got him nailed as being a liar BY THE COURT—yea, THE SUPREME COURT OF NEVADA. Now these vultures want to suck Sharri

into their trap and capture her assets in addition!

Now for the second writing: Same lawyer, different UNLAWFUL FILING:

This one is even more interesting in that it has a heading of:

# "PLAINTIFFS' SUBMISSION: ADDITIONAL AFFIDAVITS TENDERED IN SUPPORT OF RE-QUESTS FOR APPOINTMENT OF RECEIVER, ASSETS STAY"

In other words, Abbott is now demanding of "the other" Judge to include an "asset stay" (in the other court) while he adds more lies and false documents.

# [QUOTING:]

Plaintiffs (Eleanor E. Schroepfer; et al.) by and through their undersigned attorney, and acting pursuant to NJDCR Rule 7 (a.-c) and NRCP Rule 56(e), submit as additional affidavits and annexed exhibits and documents consecutively filed herewith.

The affidavit packets, six (6) in number, are tendered in support of the requests of plaintiffs with dual objectives:

<u>first</u>: for the earliest possible appointment in Department II of a receiver of all of the assets of defendant Phoenix Institute, and of defendant Carson Capital Corporation, as well as all of the assets owned, possessed, and/or controlled by defendants Phoenix (in reality defendants Ekker-Ekker-Christie-Dixon, and house counsel-Elley, as well as all of the assets owned, possessed, and/or controlled by defendants DOE corporations 1 through 10; and

— <u>second</u>: for earliest possible entry in Department I and/or Department II of orders designed to (i) stay disposition of the gold coins now in custody of the Ninth Judicial District Court; and (ii) once and for all to permit appropriate judicial inquiry designed to end the outrageously (thus far) uncontrolled (in Nevada) criminal activities of Ekker-Ekker and their corporate confederates, as well as successive legal house counsel indispensably implicated.

Oral argument is requested.

Dated this 8th day of October, 1996.

ss/George W. Abbott, Esq. (Title of Nobility)

# Points and Authorities

For points and authorities in support of the within Plaintiffs' Submission: Additional Affidavits Tendered in Support of Requests for Appointment of a Receiver, Assets Stay [NJDCR Rule 7, NRCP Rule 56(e)] plaintiffs submit the matter hereinafter set out.

Plaintiffs believe the annexed exhibits very sufficiently "tell the story". Each is submitted in support of the twin goal of earliest possible establishment of a receivership, and earliest possible stay of +/- \$350 thousand in "Overton" gold. There is considerable duplication of exhibits by the affiants—Beam, Enz, Cleary, Tuten, and Yount—and it appears that repetition or expansion here on top of the almost unexceptionally self-explanatory exhibits would only overload the documents submitted. [Interestingly enough, readers, he avoided "overload" by submitting, in two different filings, over a ream of paper.]

Scho-Fort Exhibits: A and B are included simply to show the pretended piety-and actual, natural, perfidy-of defendant E.J. Ekker as reflected in a hand-carried personally delivered ex parte attempted communication to Judge David Gamble dated September 28, 1994 and made known in chambers on October 3, 1994. Mr. Ekker wanted to convey to Department I at the outset of what proved to be October Gamble-Phoenix showdown hearings the soundness, the liquidity of millions of dollars of funds loaned by Phoenix believers to the purely phantasmagorical "corporation" (read Ekker-Ekker et al/house counsel alter ego) called Phoenix Institute. "You will note (last two lines, first page, et seq, Mr. Ekker soothes) that . . . the total value (of coins held "in trust" by Phoenix for lenders) is about \$5.4 million." What Mr. Ekker failed to disclose was the true condition of the collateral held by the precious metals depository, a contemporaneous true condition reflected less than 60 days later, as reflected in Scho-Fort Exhibit B, annexed. Revealed: where Ekkers and their counsel were limited to 85% of the value of collateral, "Phoenix" had exceeded 90%, resulting—as per contract—in a one-day margin call for Phoenix to come up with \$300 K+ in additional collateral "such that the value of the advances is equal to 85% of the value of the collateral." [Insanity and stupidity seem to run hand in hand with this man's reasoning. Mr. Ekker tried to hold private the listings of you-the-people, in the first place—and if you have a "call" it is BECAUSE the percentage rises to meet the lowering value of the collateral. Second grade arithmetic??] The Ekker-claimed "about \$5.4 million" was thus over-stated. ... by "only" \$4.6 million.

[Now readers, the "collateral" is HELD BY THE BANK FOR SECURITY—NOT FOR FID-DLING AROUND WITH NOTES AND PROFFERS. AND, FURTHER, WHEN PEOPLE DO NOT MEET THEIR OBLIGATIONS IN THE CIRCUMSTANCE OF A "CALL"-THE PER-CENTAGE OF LOAN RATIO CLIMBS OUTRAGEOUSLY AND THE BANK SIMPLY TAKES THE COLLATERAL! AND SO MUCH FOR YOUR "DRUTHERS"! THIS WAS GEORGE GREEN'S "PLAN" AND EKKERS GOT STUCK WITH IT WHEN HE SKIPPED OUT WITH THE GOLD, THE SUBSCRIPTION FUNDS, THE BOOKS-EVERYTHING! PERHAPS THAT "PLAN" ON GREEN'S PRIOR LETTERHEAD (FINANCIAL COMPANY) MIGHT BE RUN AGAIN? EKKERS TRIED TO GET THE ONES "CALLED" AGAINST TO MEET **OBLIGATIONS AND AGREEMENTS—ONLY TO FIND THAT NO RESPONSE WOULD** BE FORTHCOMING. THE ACCOUNTS TAKEN INCLUDED THOSE OF TUTEN AND YOUNT'S COLLATERAL. THAT, HOWEVER, HAD NOTHING TO DO WITH THE NOTES FOR THE COLLATERAL IS FOR THE BANK, NOT THE LENDERS. THE EXPLICIT RE-QUEST OF YOUNT, IN CORPORATE DOCUMENTS FROM YEARS PAST, WAS TO NOT CALL ANY NOTE UNTIL SUCH TIME AS GOLD REACHED A MINIMUM OF \$800/PER OUNCE. IT IS NOW IN THE \$380s. WHAT GREEN HAS TOLD TUTEN IS NONE OF OUR BUSINESS! BUT HE HAS LIED AND SO, TOO, HAVE THE ATTORNEYS FURNISHED BY GREEN TO "HELP" BETTY AND SHARRI. THEY INTEND TO "HELP" OK, RIGHT OUT **OF EVERY CENT THOSE PEOPLE EVER THOUGHT OF HAVING!** 

<u>Scho-Fort Exhibit C:</u> is a very current (October 1, 1996) Hatonn by-lined (read Doris J., assisted by E.J.) excerpt from <u>Contact: The Phoenix Project</u>. It contains (center column, first full P.) the most recent and normal Phoenix/all defendants-legal counsel expression of the Phoenix/Ekker-Ekker opinion (repeatedly condoned, or even edited by, house counsel) of the Nevada and overall U.S. court system ("...there IS NO JUSTICE in the courts!"). [Well????]

Also helpfully set out (right hand column, second full P, 4th sentence) is an unsubtle reference to the Overton \$350 K in this language: "So, you win a case and gain \$350,000 value in gold coins but you have spent some \$500,000 on fees—it looks to me (Doris J. "Hatonn" Ekker) like you are still out some \$150,000." Plaintiffs and intervenor Green, as well as affiants herein, all address the matters of tens and tens of thousands of Schroepfer funds and Fort funds (as well as Enz and Cleary and Tuten and Yount funds) spent on deliberately time-consuming litigation framed and fueled by Nevada (and California) attorneys who vigorously oppose Shcroepfer-Fort, et al, demands under Ekker-issued demand promissory notes for performance according to the simple and clear terms of their notes. [Green set up the terms of the notes. Obviously the man can't READ, either! Perhaps, in addition, he [Abbott] forgets it seems that he stole at least \$40,000 from the Institute intended for Fort?? In addition, could this attorney at law not KNOW that the COURT ORDERS A CORPORATION TO HAVE LEGAL (CLUB MEMBER) COUNSEL? EKKERS ARE NOT THE INSTITUTE! ENZ NEVER HAD FUNDS IN THE INSTITUTE-BUT DID EMBEZZLE OVER \$23,000 IN MONEY AND AN-OTHER \$23,000 IN A NOTE AND THEN STOLE THE EQUIPMENT IN ADDITION—WHILE PRESIDENT OF THE INSTITUTE. CLEARY? HE ONLY HAS USED INSTITUTE FUNDS-HE PUT SOME IN AS A LOAN EARLY IN HIS PRESENCE—AND DREW IT, AND MORE, OUT FOR A PHILIPPINE ADVENTURE WHICH WAS TO BE AN EXCHANGE OF A MINI-MUM OF \$8-MILLION IN FUNDS FOR THE ADDITIONAL SUPPORT. THIS IS NO SE-CRET, PEOPLE, HE STOOD RIGHT IN FRONT OF EVERYONE AND SAID IT WAS, OOPS, GONE! WHAT ABOUT THOSE CONTRACTS? WHAT ABOUT THE DEMAND NOTES HELD BY GREEN WHICH IF PAID WOULD HAVE AVOIDED ALL THIS LEGAL HA-**RANGUE? THOSE WERE "DEMAND NOTES" AND QUALIFIED BY JUDGE GRIFFIN** IN NEVADA—AND RATHER THAN USE SOME OF HIS \$5 MILLION FOR YOU PEOPLE HE EMBEZZLED FROM-HE CLAIMED BANKRUPTCY-AND HAS BEEN TWICE DE-NIED-BUT THAT DOESN'T STOP THESE BULLDOZERS. WHERE IS THE JUSTICE IN THE SYSTEM??? THIS IS NOT AN EKKER MATTER, READERS, THIS IS A "YOU" MATTER!]

The irony: as of the date of this document, the Schroepfer-Fort loans alone of some \$600,000 (nearly one million dollars, to date, when statutory interest is added) would have been taken out of solemn "trust" depositories belonging to Schroepfer and Fort... to fight... Schroepfer interests and Fort interests. Reminded that the attorney fees and costs—run up by eight (8) Phoenix attorneys to date since the Fort-then Schroepfer written demands for payment in full—have knowingly impinged upon and have necessarily been unlawfully diverted from lenders "in trust" funds. Large chunks, if not all, of the "some \$500,000 (spent) on fees have come from Schroepfer-Fort entitlements and have gone to attorneys fighting Schroepfer-Fort. [The amount of \$500,000 was used as example—has it really been that much, Abbott? Well, we can be sure YOUR AMOUNT OF CHARGES FAR EXCEEDS SAID AMOUNT! IF THERE ARE CRIMINAL ACTIONS ON THE PART OF ANYONE IN THIS CASE—IT IS CERTAINLY OBVIOUS THAT YOU STAND OUT HEAD AND SHOULDER ABOVE ALL

# OTHERS—INCLUSIVE OF GREEN. HORTON JUST SEEMS TO BE A FOOL ON YOUR STRINGS. I, Doris J., am writing this so that you don't have to use your brains to decipher WHO might be getting fed up with your lying accusations.]

This is evident at least from Messrs. Clark and Dickey forward, to include thereafter Aebi and Williams, and Elley and Menchetti. [Clark? There was a lady who represented Ekkers briefly in the property case in California—eight years ago—WHO FOR GOODNESS SAKES DUMPED EKKERS IN EXCHANGE FOR DYING-BLESS HER SOUL. DOES THIS NOT PROVE THE CONSPIRACY BETWEEN THESE PEOPLE IN NEVADA—AND STEVEN HORN OF THE PROPERTY CASE?? HOW CAN ONE MAN TELL IT ALL SO NEATLY TIED IN **RED RIBBONS?**] It is for the courts to confirm or deny plaintiffs' assertions that the tactics employed by the referenced six have been rarely fair, usually foul and arguably unethical, but invariably time-consuming abuses of the legal process. And see in the five packets of affidavits, infra, the demeaning, scurrilous, defamatory, unethical and unprofessional, and certainly un-Christian tactics indulged by the Ekekrs and their closet colleagues, with what is full condonation and approbation of what is chargeable full condonation and approbation on the part of some or all of the named attorneys. [My, my, is it thought we can't define words, Abbott? You appear to be a worse FOOL than at first suspected although if you wrote this after lunch-time, we can understand the intoxicated state of your brain. Now again, you don't have to try to figure out which "condonation and approbation" came from whom-for we neither have, nor need, closet colleagues. You, Abbott, are NOTED for destroying attorneys who cross your path-and one day at least one of them is going TO GET YOU FOR YOUR **DIRTY HANDS AND CRIMINAL ACTIONS.**]

Affidavit A. Ann Beam: [Indeed, THE Ann Beam who has NOTHING to do with anything, including US.] the meticulously assembled affidavit of Ms. Beam, comprising 24 exhibits, presents a rare insight [RARE INDEED!] into Tehachapi happenings, unadorned and with the strongest possible grounds for early creation of the requested receivership and a judicial cutoff of the continuing swindling, indeed downright theft of Schroepfer-Fort, et al, funds running into millions of dollars while the courts have remained powerless, or at least ineffectual, to find a way clear to at least place the challenged funds and challenged but seemingly unfettered "scamming" operations of defendants. [Did it ever occur to anyone in that Brigade that there is no scamming in this place? And how gets off Abbott by using the terms powerless and ineffectual regarding our fine judicial system? And clean-hands Annie? What would Annie KNOW about anything—she was not welcome after the first lies she foisted off on us and her taking up residency in Leon's bedroom! She was caught red-handed having lied to Gerry Spence ABOUT ABBOTT and when confronted she confronted Abbott who AD-MITTED THE LIES, WEPT OPENLY AND SAID HE LIED TO PREVENT THEM (SHE AND LEON) FROM LOSING COUNSEL. THIS IS DIRECTLY FROM <u>YOUR MOUTH</u>, ANNIE.]

Affidavit D, Betty Tuten: This 69 year old victim of her own misdirected faith recites, in straightforward fashion the unspeakable cruelties practiced upon her to "con" her out of more than \$400,000. [Yep, the SAME Tuten who just happened to take the corporation records unlawfully to offer for use to Abbott and Green as Yount stock to use for receivership fodder. Abbott even recited about "those documents" IN COURT PAPERS. Betty, Mr. Horton et al are making sure you have to defend yourself in a REAL court of law because what you did WAS UNLAWFULAND I DON'T CARE WHO CLAIMS OTHERWISE!] The October, 1994 characterization by Judge Gamble of Phoenix, et al as "a group of swindlers" shows that the methods of operation have not, basically, changed. [I suggest the findings of the Supreme Court regarding "swindler" be run herein.] When Ms. Tuten had been drained dry she was vilified, accused of criminal conduct, totally ostracized, and mercilessly derided and defamed by "Heaven guided" Doris J. "Hatonn" Ekker, making a mockery of true Christian belief, alternating between near or actual blashpemy and most foul-mouthed and dirty thought-inspired ravings. [Wow, I have done all that? I wonder if George Abbott ever had a CHRISTian THOUGHT IN HIS ADDICTED MIND IN HIS ENTIRE LIFE! And dear Betty Tuten—she didn't LOSE ANYTHING <u>FROM US</u>—BUT SHE SURELY IS LOSING FROM THAT BRI-GADE OF LYING THIEVES! In addition, Betty Tuten was offered a pay-PLAN which SHE REFUSED! MOREOVER, CLEARY AND ENZ WERE PRESENT WHEN SHE REFUSED IT! WHEREFROM COME YE SNAKES IN THE WEEDS?]

She was one of the first ones (so far as the undersigned has determined) to be told flat out, effectively, that "funds to pay her promissory note demands and entitlements" simply put, were not and are not, available. [Simply put by WHO-George Abbott? And, furthermore, if George Green paid his promissory notes back to the Institute-there would have been CASH to pay Betty Tuten-but I guess his promissory notes differ from other promissory notes? I have suggested all along that you people go get your return from Green who brought you here in the first place. HE CLAIMS TO BEA MULTI-MILLIONAIRE! And, he would drain everyone's assets as presented through his program—to get more FROM YOU? Well, it is NOT ALRIGHT to have you bringing these horrendous causes of litigation into infinity and have the others pay the burden through your ignorance or, more probably, your deliberate and selfish actions in underhanded theft and entanglements of false presentation to beautiful Sharri Yount.] The unchallenged evidence amassed herein [UNCHALLENGED???] and hereinbelow establishes beyond, doubt [And, the paperwork is also so badly done as to be embarrassing!] the ready perjurious conduct of Mr. Ekker and his ready servants, as well as it establishes the complicity of house legal counsel (licensed to practice) as well as house advising counsel (disbarred from practice in California, and implicitly in Nevada, and in all jurisdictions). [HOW MANY LIES CAN YOU CRAM INTO A SENTENCE? WE SHOULD ALL USE THIS STATEMENT AS PROOF OF ABBOTT'S ATTEMPTS TO DEPRIVE THE INSTITUTE (CORPORATION, NEVADA) FROM HAVING COUNSEL!]

Affidavit E, Ruth S. Yount: though such powerful Yount additional support is perhaps not vital to buttress plaintiffs' assertions that defendants, all of them, or a majority of them (including without exception their legal counsel of record) have engaged in multiple criminal acts falling within the State RICO and Federal RICO statutory provisions, the litany of unspeakably cruel, criminally slanderous, degrading and inhuman treatment of this 85 year old Floridian should be inscribed large in charges against the defendants. [Sharri didn't even send in an affidavit other than to attest that she had written a personal letter. So, I guess Abbott is correct this time in saying it is "not vital to buttress plaintiffs' assertions that defendants..."—SHE DIDN'T SAY <u>ANYTHING!</u> I do see RICO spread all over the contents of every action written by George Abbott! He has broken just about every LAW including ethical legal behavior rules and regulations. AND NOW, REALLY PAY ATTENTION TO ALL THIS NEXT:]

Incredibly, and with foreknowledge of the office of the Attorney General, State of Nevada-and of at

least two of the district courts of the Nevada judicial system-that Mrs. Yount had been bilked out of more than \$2.9 million, she stands today as a surprisingly calm and low-key recounter of the misdeeds inflicted upon her, particularly by sweet-talking/dirty-mean talking "Hatonn-Doris Ekker." [Could it be that she has been "bilked" out of NOTHING and ones bothered to take responsibility, at her request all along this way, to protect interests FROM THESE GREEDY OLD LIARS?] That the Ponzibattered schemes of Phoenix/Ekker-Ekker [Oops again! The "Ponzi...schemes" were GEORGE GREEN'S PLAN FROM ONSET-HE CLAIMED TO BE THE 'BUSINESS MAN' AND THE **EXPERT FOUNDER, OFFICER AND DIRECTOR OF THE INSTITUTE!**] against Ms. Yount and all of those similarly situated shout for immediate relief, and indeed demand succor now in the name of mercy is manifest. The Yount case alone cries out for early, sure, and certain takeover of control through for thwith appointment of the long (two year +) pending requests for appointment of a receiver, dictating in all that is common sense and in all that is common justice forthwith and forcible restraint and total shutdown of Ekker, et al, misdeeds and misconduct. [And remember, readers, IN MR. GREEN'S OWN WORDS—"FORCED LIQUIDATION" WHEREIN THE ONLY BENEFACTORS ARE THE ATTORNEYS AND RECEIVERS. THAT IS THE WAY THIS "JUST" LAW WORKS. THERE-FORE, READERS, IF YOU HAVE INTERESTS IN SAID INSTITUTE-IT IS NOW UP TO YOU TO STOP THIS INSANITY AND MISCARRIAGE OF ALL JUDICIAL JUSTICE. HOW COULD YOUNT HAVE "LOST" ANYTHING-THERE HAS NEVER BEEN A "CALL" ON HER NOTES AND SHE KNOWS HER OWN AGREEMENTS. THE LETTERS CONTINU-ALLY WRITTEN AND PRESENTED "as Ms. Younts" to THIRD PARTIES WHO ARE UNINVOLVED, are interesting if not down right CRIMINAL IN INTENT AND ACTION, Mr. Abbott! There are legal and PROPER WAYS of doing business—and so far you haven't seemed to FIND ANY OF THEM.]

# **CONCLUSION**

On all of the foregoing, together with the very fulsome and persuasive case made out by Schroepfer-Fort and its following complainants, the relief sought is earnestly and hereby pleaded once more.

Fully aware and bound by NRCP Rule 11 and related strictures, most respectfully submitted this 10th day of October, 1996. [The last thing Abbott has EVER BEEN, is respectful of this COURT!]

ss/George W. Abbott.

#### [END OF QUOTING]

Like little Polly-Anna I continue to believe that Justice is not DEAD but, rather, only a bent thing—by people like this lecherous alcoholic as represented above. I have sat and been insulted, accused of being Anti-Christ and blasphemous time after time by this buffoon and it finally comes full circle. This insipid person was so drunk and abusive in the group of some nine or ten people at deposition (my deposition) as to have to hang onto the table just to walk. I sat by this character for several days while he drank vodka in orange pop. He talked about the blackbirds, earthquakes, scenery, and extraterrestrials too high for his ceiling. I asked if he "was expecting some to attend" and he thought he was the most humorous thing since Andy Rooney. He refused to allow his client to be dropped and then when the bill got even higher—claimed he demanded dismissal. The old billy-goat got ruled against in hearing, Fort dismissed, and he was

asked to exit the courtroom.

George Abbott, David Horton, George Green, Betty Tuten, Leon Fort, Ann Beam, Enz's, Cleary, et al— I DO NOT NEED HIDE BEHIND ANYTHING OR ANY ONE, INCLUDING GOD—YOU ARE CRIMINAL IN ACTION AND EVEN MORE CRIMINAL IN YOUR INTENTS TO DO HARM TO INNOCENT PEOPLE—AND I SHALL STAND INTO INFINITY IN THEIR BEHALF—NEVER MIND CHRIST OR GOD—FOR THEY ARE RIGHT HERE WITH ME, AND YOU, CLEARY, OF ALL (RETIRED PRIEST) <u>KNOWIT</u>!! I am not going to lose for I CANNOT lose—I have NOTHING to lose! But, a lot of other nice people do! You should all hang in shame, your heads, and hide from those beautiful people you suck into your bloody traps, i.e. Esther and Sharri. You are SICK, in my humble opinion and you must likewise assume the System is even more SICK than you. Perhaps it IS, but that is not MY DOING! If truth is blasphemous—then call me Blas Q. Pheme! You are liars, cheats and THIEVES and it will be KNOWN for I shall speak out—and we have the PROOF while you enter your cheating lies to cover your asses (dirty-mouth). I DO NOT LIE; I DO NOT CHEAT, AND I CER-TAINLY DO NOT STEAL! I MAKE EVERY EFFORT IN MY ABILITY TO NEVER BRING ANY TAINT UPON TRUTH—BUT YOU ARE NOT SO INCLINED AS IS EVIDENCED NOT BY JUST THE LIES YOU TELL BUT BY THE ASSOCIATES YOU KEEP.

I have no intention of longer enduring as if I am some simper-whiner of lost causes. I am TRUTH against YOUR LIES, you misfits in this play of evil. I will stand against you as long as I can stand. I will, further, present the PROOF of your lies and criminality in action. You are responsible for YOUR OWN circumstances and so be it when justice is finally found-somewhere! SHAME is the guise you wear for the world to see, and you wear it so well, you cheats of truth. I brought you NOT to my spaces and I shall nolonger allow you to act as if, somehow, I did. Leon can go right back to Ramtha, Joseph or whatever other 64,000 year-old E.T. he chooses. I know them not. And Ann, perhaps you should hop on back to Aquino or Dante from whence you came. If YOU can be free to call me evil-I am certainly free to point out your possibilities. You can be the emissary of George Green or any other devil you choose-it is none of my business-but the rest of this garbage-slinging IS MY BUSINESS. If you think that by slaughtering us you cover your backsides-think again for you have woven your own net in which to trap selves-even unto the conspiracy into our case with Steven Horn-yes, CONSPIRACY !! Thank you for the input. I no longer can find compassion for you in what you would do to so many OTHERS, while you seek to destroy me and TRUTH. GOD OF LIGHT ACTUALLY TOLD ME IT WOULD BE THIS WAY-SO WHY DO I CONTINUE TO THINK YOU COULD BE OTHERWISE? I do believe, however, that the lenders and participants, in other ways WILL STOP YOU. FOR ONE THING, I DON'T THINK THEY WANT TO LOSE EITHER THEIR WORK-OR THEIR FUNDS.

If YOU are MY test—I JUST PASSED, WHERE MIGHT YOU BE? I'm not sure I can even conjure PITY for you disgraceful actors. I don't know how your evil got to be my problem—but it has and I still believe there is enough justice and truth left to bring you to the bench of law IN JUSTICE. Oh, yes indeed, I know that you WILL read this for you are the most faithful readers we have—even if you are too cheap to pay for a subscription!

GOD will not leave me wanting, for all I have done is serve to the very best of my ability. I asked you not into my space or into the right of judgement of me or of my work. You are obviously, in my opinion, birthed of the devil so please feel free to go right back where you came from—under the rocks in the bottomless

PITS. I certainly hope you point out this message to the JUDGES because this is still a free country and the reflection on the courts will be your lies and cheating methods allowed to flourish.

Judge Gamble spoke of disallowing reflection on Jesus Christ in the public format—GEORGE ABBOTT PUT THE LIES INTO THE PUBLIC PAPERS AND MADE RIDICULE OF CHRIST-NESS. I SERVE ONLY THE CHRIST PERSON AND BEING, NONE OTHER, AND IT IS SUFFICIENT UNTO MY NEEDS. YOU CAN BEAT AND ABUSE ME AND DESTROY MY EVERY PHYSICAL ELEMENT—BUT IT IS **YOUR SOUL BEING BOUGHT BY THE BLACK-EVIL EMPIRE**. AND SOMEWHERE IN ALL THIS—THERE WILL BE FOUND JUSTICE AND RIGHT FOR I BELIEVE THAT RIGHT DOES WIN AND SO SHALL I STRUGGLE ON UNTIL YOUR CONSE-QUENCES MEET YOUR CRIMES—HEAD-ON.

I thank you readers for this opportunity to speak. I believe, to my soul, that THIS is WHY this old world is in such pathetic shape today. I ask for your help—not for me—FOR YOU! I also ask that addresses, fax numbers, and any other information relative to these named above parties, lawyers, Bar Association, et al, please be appended hereto. If you too are "...mad as hell and refuse to take it any longer..."—here is your opportunity to DO SOMETHING.

I am accused of being "Brave"? Please, bravery is when there is danger—I HAVE GOD AND TRUTH!

I have hundreds of letters and notes from you precious friends out there who pray for me to be free of this burden—thank you but today, it is NO BURDEN, it IS NOT HEAVY—it is MY BROTHER AND MY TEACHER I CARRY THIS DAY FOR YOU AND HE HAS CARRIED ME THUS FAR ON THIS JOURNEY. I JUST FOUND MY FEET AND LEGS UPON WHICH TO STAND AND WALK—THIS DAY! IF GOODNESS IS UNIFIED—THERE IS NO WAY FOR EVIL TO WIN—EVEN ONE MORE ROUND.

My own choices are on the line before myself this day—AND I CHOOSE GOD OF LIGHT WITHIN THE CREATION—AND "THAT" IS CALLED "CHRISTian". There is no mockery of God, Christ, or anything else—from this position and isn't it time that becomes KNOWN? I have had harder blows against me than you nasty little misfits and have been sustained. Blasphemy indeed! You false do-gooders are the SHAME of society and in case that sounds judgmental—"*IN MY OPINION*"—personal as it may be. You dregs of the cup of bitterness—you accuse E.J. and ME of criminal actions and blasphemy? Check your life vests for TRUTH is going to wash all over your lying selves.

And it appears that certainly Green, Abbott and Horton—CONTRIBUTED TO JUDGE GIBBONS' ACCOUNT? HOW MUCH DID IT TAKE TO PURCHASE A JUDGE, GENTLEMEN? PERHAPS WE SHOULD HAVE HOPED THAT OUR ATTORNEY WOULD HAVE CONTRIBUTED? OH MY, HOW INTERESTING ARE THE WHEELS OF "JUSTICE" AND "HONOR". I wonder if a lifetime of shame is worth the price of playing to a dirty old alcoholic fool? And, I can't call him that? Who? What? I could have sworn he called ME A CRIMINAL AND A BLASPHEMOUS PHAN-TASMAGORICAL something or other.

Do I wish these adversaries dead or something? NO WAY! I want them to fully anticipate and enjoy their degradation and downfall—every last miserable minute of it. You must understand, friends: I DO NOT

# ACCEPT THE BURDEN OF NAME CALLING PLACED UPON MY HEAD AND, THEREFORE, IT DOES NOT BECOME MY PROBLEM. ALL THIS BASHING ONLY SAVES ME FROM FUR-THER SORROW THAT I COULD NOT "SAVE" ANYONE OR ANYTHING—EVERY BEING MUST DO THAT FOR SELF.

I do ask you readers, however, to please NOT let Brad Elley be slaughtered by these lying misfits in his own CLUB. George Green was certainly correct in his statement about admiring Abbott for "GOING AFTER THE ATTORNEYS" and getting rid of them any way necessary. One day there will come the attorney that presents Abbott and Horton with their "WATERLOO". I think the tide is rising and the water deepening for that infamous day of accounting and atonement. So, laugh and rejoice in your perceived "getcha" game, ladies and gentlemen of the dark-side—but remember something, you shall be uncovered in your wickedness.

Doris Ekker

## CHAPTER 5

#### REC #1 HATONN

#### WED., NOV. 13, 1996 7:37 A.M. YR.10, DAY 089

#### WED., NOV. 13, 1996

#### A BIT OF FATHERLY ADVICE

Now I note that some of you are feeling poorly on a regular basis. It is not that you are not getting the vitamins and minerals you need, but rather, that the bodies are readjusting to receiving them more easily and some of the ones that hype the system are now only offered in balanced amounts. If you wish, go ahead and take supplements.

What is really happening, however, is that you tend to think a lot of something is going to keep you healthier—and it won't. Unless you are SICK WITH INFECTION, it is better to take LESS of the Copper, Titanium, Silver and Gold. You are not infected YET with hyper-bugs and almost everything you are hit with can be handled in a short while by the immune system. However, you guys tend to take TOO MUCH and continue to keep your bodies depleted of the GOOD GUYS. You are NOT helping your bodies, you are overloading them. This does NOT mean to stop everything—just one drop of everything is sufficient. You are getting, remember, all of everything you need in the vitamin/mineral colloids.

If you OVERDO the "antibiotic/antiseptic" solutions you will cause your body to react and reject all viral or bacterial flora and you have to have the good guys to make sure you can have digestion and ingestion in balance. If you need a "booster"—TRY BALANCE *AND REST*!

I don't care WHO or WHAT tells you to go vegetarian—DO NOT DO IT! YOU WILL NEVER HEAL UNTIL YOU HAVE A GOOD INPUT OF PROTEIN. THAT MEANS AT LEAST 14-16 OUNCES MINIMUM OF MEAT, EGGS, DAIRY PRODUCTS OR WHOLE SOY PRODUCT. THE BODY CANNOT HEAL AND MUSCLE CANNOT BE BUILT IF YOU DON'T PROVIDE SUBSTANTIAL PROTEIN OF THE WHOLE VARIETY AND THERE ARE NO VEGETABLES ABLE TO PRODUCE THE WHOLE PRODUCT IN QUANTITIES ENOUGH TO SUFFICE TO "HEAL" A SICK BODY. A body has to have proper SUBSTANCE from which to build and balance itself.

When I speak of dairy products I don't necessarily mean "milk"—I mean cheeses and eggs (those things you consider from the dairy counters). I want the chicken cooked to temperatures enough to pasteurize— and don't eat raw eggs unless you know where they come from. We have to circumvent the most prevalent source of salmonella running about today. In a compromised body you also need those cooked foods which disallow E. coli (a very prevalent organism) to thrive. If you have to have raw vegetables—wash them or sprinkle with food grade hydrogen peroxide to keep the invaders to a minimum count.

My further suggestion is that when you eat "out" and can't attend the food yourself-make sure you have

enough hydrogen peroxide in your drinking water—AND DRINK ENOUGH—to get hydrogen peroxide into the digestive tract and it will take care of the invaders THERE.

People, don't play with these things for every infectious organism is now capable of instant combination and recombination with viruses. Remember that viruses are simply crystalline imitation life forms. But they mutate to each host. You also have to keep up the level of your body flora lest you be overwhelmed by invaders. Those natural bacteria keep the others in harmless balance.

People get so intent on doing the right things and yet, when it is not working—don't just die. I DO NOT EVER RECOMMEND TOTAL VEGETARIAN DIETS. Some people can live on grapes or air. MOST WILL SIMPLY DIE. To build muscles and, as you can see, Zita is so deplete in muscle-building elements as to be wasting away and cannot support the skeletal system. GET SOME MEAT INTO YOUR-SELVES. You don't have to kill the cow—to have a hamburger. You are not saving the cows at this point—you are simply using the lives of the cows already sacrificed.

We are going to introduce the amino acids and other necessary-but-not-easily available supplements to the growing fields for balancing out the PROTEINS in spelt, our beans, etc. A supplementation of algae and brewer's yeast is also good to make sure you have a full range of additional B-vitamins. However, life doesn't have to be so complicated as all of you seem to wish to make it to be.

I consider total vegetarian diets to be as detrimental to bodies as is leeching or bleeding.

Hundreds of well-intentioned people continue to try to come up with solutions for cancer, etc. But what they do is further unbalance the body already compromised. Stop it. And no, I am not particularly in favor of the high-priced spread, i.e., "organic" stuff. It is NOT. Whatever is done is usually just enough to pass some sort of RARELY RUN lab study in order to charge more money. I prefer you take what is most available and ATTEND it to make it safe. You live in a FOOL'S world wherein you are KEPT SICK to insure income for the controllers.

A short personal note for Zita, even though it is likely to apply to most who read this: Stop the overdosing on everything. Keep a good intake of vitamins and Gaiandriana along with minerals-but the usual regular dosage is sufficient. TAKE A LOT OF INTESTINAL FLORA FOR A FEW DAYS TO REGAIN SUFFICIENT BOWEL BALANCE—AND LIVE NORMALLY. Keep the pain shut-down and simply, intelligently measure your activities so that you allow everything to HEAL. Do as much as you FEEL like doing but listen to your body-if it hurts, consider WHY. Keep up intake of silica to get those bones back to laying calcium. It's time to get well now so that you can experience a quality of living beyond the abusive methods of the healers. You do NOT have to become the wheel-chair to use the help when appropriate. WISDOM MUST BE THE GUIDELINE-NOT ALL THE "HELPERS" TRYING TO MAKE CONTRIBUTION IN THEIR INABILITY TO ASSIST TO THE LEVEL OF THEIR WISHES. Your body is YOUR body-demand that it perform and offer it that which it needs to perform properly, and then EXPECT it to return the response as directed. Also, go forth when opportunity comes to experience in joy and pleasure-for if you have to live as an invalid-you will become invalid. If you treat your body as a crippled entity-it will continue to serve up cripple. Handicaps are to be simply overcome-"cripple" is of the mind. This does NOT mean to abuse a compromised body any more than to continue to let the termites eat your house. Get the termites under control and shore up the house-you

don't continue to break the boards by stomping them. AND, **WHO CARES HOW LONG IT TAKES?!? WHAT'S THE BIG, ALL-FIRED HURRY?** You can "cop a plea" ANYTIME along the way! God is right there!!

# CHAPTER 6

#### REC #1 HATONN

#### THU., NOV. 14, 1996 7:41 A.M. YR.10, DAY 090

#### THU., NOV. 14, 1996

#### BE GENTLE—WE ARE BUT INDIVIDUALS

I would speak first this morning about the team here as individuals. Moreover, these are individuals without benefit of superhuman strengths or ready answers.

Each day brings an awakening to the same problems faced by any other individual according to where any other might be in a transitioning world filled with confusion and manufactured problems meant to OVER-WHELM you into thoughtless, energyless, experiencers. Therefore, there occasionally needs to be a "Letters to the Readers" and, as we grow and expand into larger or more frequent papers, a "Letters to the Editors" Section in whatever paper we are able to offer.

There is no magic here and the facts are that we have continually been hit by such assaults as to drain the very life energy from some of our team members. However, we find that by continuing our best efforts there is strengthening power in the experiences. We are not Goody Two-Shoes twinkling down the bunny trails as REALITY becomes our Truth and goal—always. There are no alternatives other than to confront and do battle, yea, of wits, against the lies and incursions of such as Green, Abbott, Horton and their Brigade of misled puppets. They tell that their BRAINWASHING and Puppethood comes from HERE. No, they follow the leaders of the greed-mongers who continue to strip them of truth, mislead them into more and more activities of judicial confusion, and who will then turn on them in their next round of suits—to cause them to lose everything before they wise up and turn against the thieves and mongers pushing them.

Those misfit people say they were hypnotized and brainwashed HERE? Why? Truth, so far, has not seemed to get much attention from anyone and much the less make any mind-controlled slaves to do this work. We all know exactly what it takes to simply stay alive in a world where it is far more physically and emotionally EASY to just QUIT. This is not an acceptable alternative. Why do I refer to them as "misfits"? Because these are the same types of people who go hither and yon searching and seeking and yet, until the hearts are "right" and the intentions well-founded in the goals of whatever they seek, they do not "fit" within the garden they have chosen to lay roots. A thistle is not likely to flourish in the garden well-tended.

I again have to repeat that we try only to give information which can be totally backed up by human presentation and documentation. That information, further, must prove itself in courts of law. You live in a human physical world where ONLY that which is physical in outlay is ACCEPTABLE as confirmation. REASON has nothing longer to do with anything. You are TRAINED to vote with the cheats and liars and put down the innocent—simply because you are ordered to do so. A judge, for instance, can direct a jury to ONLY consider one or two points of focus and thereby CONTROLA VERDICT. Long ago passed

the truth of Constitutional responsibility for a Jury to vote its HEART along with evidence. Evidence is continually withheld TO PROTECT THE GUILTY.

I honor anyone who shares with us and I find that, if a person writes and then sues when reference is made to that work in a paper or journal, I can be SURE that the author is NOT SURE of his subject as presented. This does NOT mean that every author who shares is fully concluded, by me, as ALL contents being accurate. However, I only choose those people and their works which offer outstanding lessons in CONTENT. Neither, however, do we demand that everything we write be accepted as established fact in "their" perspective.

I have a very excellent example: Texe Marrs! I do NOT agree with Mr. Marrs' presentation about Spiritual matters, in many instances. However, Texe Marrs has written some profound information regarding the "control" over human "subjects". I do not agree with his "Project L.U.C.I.D." in its actuality but the concept is correct and is a **part** of the whole of ability of "The Beast" to control the physical human masses. His book, for instance, will read *The Beast 666 Universal Human Control System*. Do you see that no man can KNOW the "Universal System" and especially as may be related to some mechanical-electronic computer system of numbers.

Now, read further into content: "The project to control the people of the world through universal computer identification and tracking systems first began in the twisted minds of high-level, New World Order planners of America's super-secretive *National Security Agency (NSA)*. The NSA is an agency employing thousands of government bureaucrats, intelligence officials, military personnel, and technological specialists in a global-wide operation. Its headquarters, closely guarded by U.S. Army security personnel at Fort Meade, Maryland, is housed in the second largest building in the United States, surpassed only by the Pentagon in Washington, D.C. This huge, behemoth of a facility, appropriately enough, has been called the 'Puzzle Palace'...'

Next, let us look at this information. Is this some "revelation" of ONE Texe Marrs? Of course NOT. His work is but a compilation of data and information gathered from hundreds of others who have also gathered information—and he has offered that information along with HIS CONCLUSIONS regarding the Project named.

That is what our intentions are: simply to offer that information available so that you can further your own knowledge and not just steep yourselves in ours. Where Spiritual Truth is concerned—I have KNOW-ING and if everyone would offer only what they KNOW, would it not be a wondrous world? No, it would not be, because what we offer and WHAT PEOPLE RECEIVE are two very DIFFERENT and personal assumptions.

Therefore the hope and prayer as regards our own work is that YOU will have grown in your knowledge to the extent that you can discern and judge that which is Truth and that which is individual opinion or conclusion. You do not put a man down for his errors for how else will you find TRUTH? YOU have to take responsibility for your ingestion and digestion. Base EVERYTHING against the "probabilities" and then the "possibilities" and THEN—CHECK IT OUT WITH AND THROUGH THE LAWS OF GOD!

My point, however, in offering so much on topics such as mind control is that once you are shackled

through control of your mind—you CANNOT **KNOW** RIGHT FOR YOU WILL HAVE LOST YOUR FREEDOM TO CHOOSE AND REASON. You will become as a trained seal in a side-show tossing balls at the whim of your "masters". THAT TOO, is your privilege, for God will allow freedom of WILL—your will. When you ask HIM to remove the oppression then HE will offer "the way" but YOU are still the ONE who must "walk the walk".

MY task is to integrate the information with the TRUTH of the Spiritual REALITY. Why me (us?)??? Because nobody else has it RIGHT or CORRECT. There are many who "almost" have it right but will then move off into the pronouncement of those things which COULD NOT BE TRUE as they tout something from one book or another and pronounce their ideas upon you as if it were your fate and destiny. No, individual is sacred and only individual will work out his fate and destiny with GOD. We are but messengers to hopefully remind you of that which you have forgotten.

GOD Creates—MAN Manipulates. If you are with, and OF, God Creator, you too have ability to Create. This is why "God" wins—because we of HIM can CREATE our destiny and the Adversary of God—Evil in Human Man, can ONLY MANIPULATE AND MANUFACTURE FROM THAT WHICH IS ALREADY CREATED—AND FURTHER, ONLY ON ONE (1) PLANE OF MANIFESTATION. The "Idea" of something may last into infinity—but "ideas" are of God! Spirit and Energy are OF GOD, without exception. Intent is TOWARD good or evil and is the pivot of directional flow of SOUL EN-ERGY. GOD "reads" rightness or wrongness, not man's consideration of physical actions of good or bad, as such. If you are "good" you will flourish among goodly places and beings. If you are "wrong" in evil intent or simply physical expression, you will only flourish among the ill-intended controllers. There are ONLY TWO ways to go and one decision to make—toward "right" or toward "wrong". This, in further line of reason, means you move either toward good or toward evil—no more and no less. Those choices are left to the individual making the manifest journey. And always, YOU can choose good or bad actions and ideas. Idea is invisible thought; actions are manifested results in a physical environment of those ideas. JOY is the resulting emotional feeling of that which is "righteous". Happiness can reflect either wrong intent or right intent.

JOY and PEACE within, however, are only results of RIGHT INTENT for the negative aspects of wrong actions which are against God's LAWS will bring ultimate fall and self-punishment. The important "FALL", however, due to negative WRONG intent and actions—is the "FALL FROM GRACE" of God. Lucifer tried it and frankly, readers, it IS NOT working well. You who worship Lucifer (Satan) may well not even realize that you have been led right down that old Primrose Path to Hell (absence of God of Light) because you sop up, like the sponge, the WRONG INFORMATION and, THEREFORE, CANNOT CHOOSE TRUTH CORRECTLY. Do you realize that you live off others' opinions and training presentations, allowing another to make YOUR choices which become eternal in concept? With knowledge of Truth comes personal RESPONSIBILITY and it seems hardly anyone wants any part of personal responsibility. But then, be it ever so, if you don't KNOW TRUTH OR LIE—HOW CAN YOU CHOOSE? THAT is what mind control is all about, brethren. You cannot choose if you mind is totally controlled. One way your can KNOW whether a thing or a man be correct in his outlay ABOUT God, is that you will have to choose, for God will not force or coerce and HE will allow you to find your way to Truth—any way you choose. This ultimately USUALLY means "the hard way". So be it.

# EBOLA VIRUSES

As you live more and more closely closed in by your current experiencing, you fail to distract yourselves from the moment of data input into your brains—to seek possibilities of that which WAS that now rests its maturing upon your heads. Let us consider the tinymost thing and look at possibilities. I say "possibilities" because the KNOWING is not within reality of the assumption I will offer as example.

Someone named Allison Brugg has written a short *Newsbrief* item in "this month" of November, 1996. It becomes important that I give you date lest you misunderstand. Who is Allison Brugg? Is this an authority? Does not knowing make the work "suspect"? Yes, because ALL work should be considered "suspect" until you prove it for selves. Unfortunately, in a manipulated world the "solution" in PROOF is often found to be equally as invalid as the original offering. Oh, and by the way—you need to have a "subject" before you can even begin to evaluate anything about the article—don't you?

Well, I do not care who is Allison Brugg. However, I find interesting, her topic because it deals with "possibilities" of ancient strains of Ebola viruses.

Is this possible that there WERE such? Well, there were "ancient" DRIAS which were absent for a very long time from your place, so why not viruses? What difference does it make? Actually, very little. The point always comes to the moment in experience and line of "time". If a thing IS, then by fact, it always WAS and always SHALL BE! You have to deal with what IS and those things which ARE. All else is speculation and, NOW, even what is happening in your perceived MOMENT may or may not BE.

Let me quote, please:

"The plague of Athens, which wiped out one fourth of the city's population between 430 and 427 B.C., was the earliest known outbreak of ebola, according to a recent article in *Emerging Infectious Diseases*. Epidemiologists Patrick Olson and Charles Hames of the Naval Medical Center in San Diego, and Abram Benneson and Nicholas Genovese of San Diego State University believe that Thucydides' description of the disease in his history of the Peloponnesian War matches the symptoms of ebola, which killed more than 300 people in Zaire and Sudan last year.

"Thucydides wrote that after the disease's 'abrupt onset, persons in good health were seized first with strong fevers, redness and burning of the eyes, and the inside of the mouth, both the throat and tongue, immediately was bloody-looking and expelled an unusually foul breath. Following these came sneezing, hoarseness...a powerful cough...and every kind of bilious vomiting...and in most cases an empty heaving ensued that produced a strong spasm.'

"Scholars had thought that Athens suffered an outbreak of measles, smallpox, typhus, or bubonic plague. All these ailments, says Olson, would have been preceded by a cough producing blood or mucus. Thucydides wrote that the cough was "empty". Olson and his colleagues contend that the description of the dry cough in Thucydides' account matches that of ebola, basing their theory in part on a retranslation of Thucydides. **[H: Uh Oh! There goes the tale—"in translation"; now, you just can't be sure of any of this, can you? Does it make the speculation WRONG? No, but it certainly gives credence to any other speculation by any other "expert".]** They believe that the Greek word *lugx* **[H: Here**  **again your English alphabet cannot even write the true word.]**, which Thucydides uses in his description of symptoms and which had previously been translated as 'retching' or 'dry heaving', may have been the word for hiccup. **[H: Well, I suggest that a case of Ebola death virus and a case of the hiccups may well be very different from one another.]** Fifteen percent of the victims of the 1995 Zaire outbreak of ebola complained of uncontrollable hiccuping. **[H: Oops, guess I was wrong.]**"

Now I have served in the role of "smart-ass" in this commenting to simply make a point. Do we consider this overwhelming truth? Of WHAT? It is INTERESTING and if there were some "cure techniques" also offered it might well be worth trying to use them on today's victims. However, at this point this can only be speculation and has little meaning other than being interesting and entered into a data base in the mind to hold until it fits somewhere else in the puzzle of life.

Perhaps we should BLAME THE GREEKS for ebola? Would that help anything? Perhaps we should blame the World Health Organization? That would be more nearly the Truth of the matter. Who started the World Health Organization? Now, THAT might be a good focus to expend a bit of time on researching. This ebola thing is only speculation and Greek reference is speculation of the highest order—BUT THE WORLD HEALTH ORGANIZATION IS REAL AND YOU ARE ABLE TO FIND OUT EXACTLY WHAT IT IS AND WHERE IT GOT STARTED IN ITS DEATH-DEALING "ASSIS-TANCE" AROUND YOUR GLOBE—TODAY!

So, the cycle comes right back to the elusive real story-line, doesn't it? Further, WHAT you believe will tend to, 99.9% of the time, be based on SOMEONE ELSE'S opinion instead of your own interest which would cause YOU to get Truth. So, we come again, right back to MIND CONTROL. YOU *ARE* WHAT YOU THINK!

# MONARCH SLAVES

We must present for your consideration the Elite's extreme examples of what has become the "norm" in programmed, planned projects to determine possibilities of training along with the advantage of MASS programming procedures. In other words, how can you train a society? Of course, once all individuals are programmed via implants to receive instructions from a "central artificial mind", it is OVER. Well, people, it would seem from this that it is mostly OVER. You have come to have only SICK people manipulating a SICKENED world.

Why "mind-control" desires in the first place? Why, good people, to control the world in every facet of manipulation capabilities. I have to point out something about Truth which is going to hurt a little as you try to digest it. For everyday operational purposes, readers, TRUTH IS WHATEVER IS SUBJECTIVELY CONVINCING AT ONE'S CURRENT LEVEL OF PERCEPTION. IF ONE NEVER LEARNS MORE—HE WILL NEVER KNOW TRUTH—FOR SURE. To every individual there is a personal Truth. Is it the ONE Truth? No. Truth IS. There is a correct attitude or intent which represents Truth as outlined by our Creator—but a zillion ways to get there. God doesn't deal in "absolutes" very often except in LOVE—HE *IS* ABSOLUTE LOVE. He does not present "unconditional" Love. HE CAN'T because He IS. There are many CONDITIONS on the beings created BY GOD to experience. Therefore HE is "allowing" Love. This means a great enough love to "allow" you to get your lessons ANY WAY YOU CHOOSE. If you misunderstand this point then YOU become a most judgmental entity working mostly in

the negative aspects of the reverse of Love, i.e. "hate". You, by definition, MUST MOVE IN ONE DIRECTION OR THE OTHER! Once established, ignorance, refusal to see Truth, and EGO will disallow you to easily say, "I'm sorry", and move back into the balance of Truth. (Of any circumstance or situation.) Then, when moving back, you cannot be sure whether or not the damaged parties (from your actions) will "forgive" enough to allow you "back" within their circle of LIGHT. When you choose to move with the liars and proven cheats, you blunder badly, but when you work in revenge to punish that perceived wrongdoer—even though PROOF is available that you were not wronged by the one in your gun-sights, you BLUNDER almost beyond recovery for you have chosen to walk with the evil-mongers. And, further, when you call your actions "unconditional love" you become and make mockery of GOD's "absolute Love" for you have placed your perceptions in front of that which God IS.

How can you know? Well, by actions of course! If a person breaks the Laws of fundamental RIGHT-NESS, and causes you to break yours-you have error in actuality. If there is INTENTIONAL ERROR, then you have deliberate movement in the WRONG direction-simply meaning by definition, evil intent and action. JUST ONE UNCORRECTED LIE FROM ANY PERSON SHOULD MAKE YOU VERY, VERY WARY OF ANYTHING MORE FROM THAT PERSON. A "mistake" is corrected-a lie uncorrected is deliberate subterfuge. USE of innocent parties to gain your objectives is horrendous in return of compounding errors. If, in addition, you are given PROOF of the lie or error, and continue in the offensive against your "chosen" (yes, I said "chosen") enemy-then your guilt of wrongful deeds and intents is also deliberate and bears even heavier penalties unto self. I could indeed give you myriads of examples but I shall refrain from that for you know that of which I speak. And yes, I speak; Doris writes. It is a "time" of which all can HEAR the energies of invisible realms-YOURS is to discern the Good from the Evil. But, if I offer only Truth against any ONE who tells falsehoods, even yea, against me-THEY ARE EVIL IN INTENT! Truth STANDS into infinity-the lie ONLY, at most, until transition from one dimension or plane of experience to that of another-positive or negative in "aspect" of realization or consciousness. Too complicated? So be it. He who thinks the LIE is TRUTH—is indeed in painfully horrendous circumstance. To convince self of the LIE is without reason.

In support of my statements about speculation and Truth, let us consider a second small article, actually presented in the same newspaper as the Ebola reference to old Athens.

[QUOTING, *Reuters*, Nov. 6, 1996:]

# VIRUS OUTBREAK HITS PAGEANT

BOGOTA, Colombia—An illness known as the "duck hug" is wreaking havoc with Colombia's annual beauty pageant in the Caribbean port city of Cartagena, local news reports said Tuesday.

The Caracol radio network said 15 of 22 candidates for the Miss Colombia crown had been hit by the virus. The illness was detected for the first time last month and has been blamed for at least 20 deaths.

The virus causes breathing difficulties, severe aches and coughing. It has been identified by Health Ministry officials as a *strain of flu previously unknown in Colombia*.

It takes its name from a popular dance in the region in which partners hug each other tightly, almost cutting

off their breath.

## [END OF QUOTING]

Ah, now which tale is more IMPORTANT to you? Were there hiccups present? Does it matter? No, it matters that another "something" is now running rampant through your population. You can't do much about ancient Athens, Greece—BUT you had best attend your immune systems lest the Colombian unknown hiccup "getsya". If it quacks like a duck, walks like a duck, and looks like a duck—in your world—it is NOT necessarily a duck.

Now, if you are still not confused, let us consider another prominent tale from the SAME paper, same date, etc.:

[QUOTING, Associated Press, Nov. 6, 1996:]

# <u>CEASE-FIRE IN ZAIRE BRINGS OUT LOOTERS</u> <u>REBELS HELP HAND OUT RELIEF SUPPLIES</u>

GOMA, Zaire—Rebel soldiers who took control of eastern Zaire in a three-week battle handed out strawberry sodas Tuesday to Zairians during a cease-fire.

Frightened civilians emerged from hiding spots for a glimpse of the Rwandan-backed force that drove the Zairian army west into the forests. The bolder ones took advantage of the lull in fighting to break into stores and loot even the light fixtures.

The wreckage of war was apparent. Looters skirted a pool of blood at a supermarket to steal shelves. **[H: Now readers, are you REALLY reading this?]** The hospital morgue was streaked with blood, the wards nearly empty because no one wanted to risk their lives and stay. Red Cross volunteers wearing thick black gloves, yellow rubber pants and masks have collected 371 bodies in the past five days, mostly men killed in battle, and piled them up at a cemetery for burial.

People of all ages took part in a looting spree, carting off what the Zairian soldiers left behind on their retreat from Goma, such as books and dishes from hotels; even light bulbs and electric cords were pried away.

"I am happy, and so is every one else," Musoro Bongano said of the change of power in and around Lake Kivu. "The Zairian soldiers are gone—they harassed us and stole from us. The rebels don't." [H: And I suppose "theft" is in the eye of the beholder, or the thief, whichever comes first?]

In the spirit of the day, rebel soldiers at a warehouse that others had broken into gave strawberry sodas to passers-by. They also helped distribute relief supplies to hungry people. Although Tutsis have been the focus of the rebellion, the guerrillas in Goma were an ethnic mix. Some wore uniforms scavenged from defeated Zairians; others wore T-shirts and jeans. One had an army shirt with a price tag still attached.

# [END OF QUOTING]

Now readers, will you repeat to me what it is, EXACTLY, that you want GOD to do FOR YOU? When strawberry sodas are referred to twice and RIGHTEOUSNESS is never to have reference at all—what, again, is it exactly, that you WANT GOD TO DO FOR YOU? May you all enjoy your strawberry sodas!

Readers, you have the POWER to change things—but you will never HAVE THE FORCE to change anything except for the moment while your FORCE is greater than your opponent's.

Perhaps we waste our time until you learn the difference in POWER and in FORCE?

Somebody sent us a review copy of a book by the title of *POWER vs FORCE*, by David R. Hawkins, M.D. It is stated that it is an "Anatomy of Consciousness". I haven't even perused the volume save for the first pages. I like this man's considerations of human nature from onset, however. Right from the opening in the *Foreword* he makes very good points about our very subject of TRUTH vs. LIES. In my own perception "Truth" offers POWER; "lies" offer only, at best, FORCE.

# [QUOTING:]

Imagine—what if you had access to a simple yes-or-no answer to any question you wished to ask? A demonstrably true answer. Any question.

Think about it.

There's the obvious: "Jane is seeing another guy." (Y/N?) Johnny is telling the truth about school." (Y/N?) But it's only a short step to: "This is a safe investment." (Y/N?) or "This career is worthy of my pursuit." (Y/N?)

What if *everyone* had such access?

Staggering implications suggest themselves immediately. Think again.

What would happen to our ponderous and all-too-often flawed judicial system if there were a clear, confirmable answer to the proposition, "John Doe is guilty as charged." (Y/N?)

What would happen to politics as we know it if all of us could ask the question, "Candidate X honestly intends to fulfill this campaign promise." (Y/N?)—and all of us got the same answer. What would happen to advertising?

You get the idea. But the idea gets bigger, fast. What happens to **nationalism** (**Nation X is in fact dedicated to the overthrow of Democracy.**") **To government** ("**This bill** *does* in fact protect the rights of citizens".)?

What happens to "The check is in the mail"?

If, as has been said, man learned to lie an hour after he learned to talk, then a phenomenon such as we are discussing would be the genesis of the most fundamental change in human knowledge since the beginning of society; the transformations it would wreak—in fields from communications to ethics, in our most basic concepts, in every detail of daily existence—would be so profound that it is difficult even to conceive what life would be like in a subsequent new era of truth. The world as we know it would be irrevocably changed, to its very roots....

[END OF QUOTING] (Published by Veritas Publishing, SR 2, Box 817, Sedona, Arizona 86336.)

Ah, but where are you now? You are living in a world of hurt, readers. You are living in a CONTROLLED environment by the LIARS themselves choosing up what you will be told is truth and causing you through FORCE to accept it. I remind you who would stand WITH GOD, however, that there is NO FORCE great enough to break the POWER OF GOD.

I would remind you, AGAIN, (and probably as many more times as necessary for you to hear): *From the Master Teacher:* "If man is faint of heart in spirit, so are his laws faint-hearted and are like heresy. If man is presumptuous and disregards the Commandments and Laws of The Creation and of God, he is forced to bring forth his own laws which are full of mistakes and lead him astray. Laws and commandments made according to men produce murder and evil, and evil will spread and gain control, and man no longer has any power over it. Commandments and laws are valid only if they are derived from wisdom and logic. But logic requires wisdom and perception."

You may well think at this moment that you have no choices in what we will call "power" vs. "force", but you do. Force is that which CAUSES you to act as told "or else". Power is that which you ALWAYS have at your disposal WITH GOD. But YOU have to seize the POWER for your own so that with the support of GOD you act in Truth and you SHALL PREVAIL, for God will provide the answers to your questions if your questions be in TRUTH. GOD MIND will find the way through the darkness and into the LIGHT. It has ever been thus and shall ever BE thus. *The call compels the answer!* 

May your "call" be always in righteousness, that you can hear the answer! Remember that logic must first be accessed, and that requires wisdom and perception. May yours be worthy. Salu.

# CHAPTER 7

#### REC #2 HATONN

#### SAT., NOV. 16, 1996 11:02 A.M. YR.10, DAY 092

#### SAT., NOV. 16, 1996

I would like to share interesting things with interested parties and inquiring minds. We have just had confirmation BACK from Europe that "what has been written in our material about parties, especially personally known individuals, is truth." This is amusing except that one of the "parties" is George Bush and his henchmen. I appreciate the "confirmation" of our work but I find it interesting that the people involved on the other side of the participation coins pronounce that to have such information "these people must be spooks!"

No, nobody has to be a CIA, or otherwise, SPOOK to NOW come to KNOW things about Bush, et al. Note the happenings in the black community, torn by drugs, regarding GEORGE BUSH and drug dealing through the CIA—for years. It has now gone far enough into TRUTH to have accusations that the drug trade WAS A BUSH OPERATION. So too were the S&L rip-offs and on and on and on. I didn't make up these things, readers, and neither did WE make up gold certificates, steal certificates and corporations and thus and so. THEY DID IT. Mr. Bush and his merry band of thieves, cheats and liars have all but destroyed a world, totally aided and abetted by other Elite thieves and criminals. However, I guess I certainly don't mind being called a "ghost" writer or "spook". I carry my own LIGHT and TRUTH, so to call me a "name" makes not one iota of difference in the truth of it.

Remember that when someone accuses another of that which he has just committed—that is cover-up in its most primitive and evil manner. That is the first thing Satan does—every time. Blackmail against the "not too wise" individuals sucked in, IS NEXT.

But does the blackmail ever really work? Doesn't seem to for I note that ones like Packwood who had to resign his Legislative post of respected status—IS NOW BACK ON THE SCENE IN A MUCH MORE LUCRATIVE POSITION—OF LOBBYIST. You see, readers, the bunch just can't make a living honestly or in a "trade". Most of them are lawyers who take advantage of every system anyway—so they never have to have a job in reality. They parasite off you-the-people until they suck you dry.

I am going to hop, skip and jump a bit as the information I want to share with you readers is available to you elsewhere and I wish to focus on some more relative places and events as they happen in this programming procedure and research for the most effective methodology.

We have spoken about how slaves are chosen as to personality, opportunity, etc., so let us just move on into the dirty-deeds section.

I honor and appreciate the allowance for our offering some major excerpts from the work of Fritz Springmeier. A lot of the information has been utilized from the output of Mark Phillips and Cathy O'Brien and as long as they are all happy with the interchange, so too am I.

The name of the volume from which I am going to share portions here is *The Illuminati Formula Used to Create an Undetectable Total Mind Controlled Slave*. I want to begin at the point after the "slave" has been chosen by whatever criteria was utilized and then how and where the actual traumatization is perfected. I want to do this because the places are literally RIGHT UNDER YOUR NOSES and you don't seem to so much as NOTICE.

I am going to start here with Chapter 2 of this book in point:

[QUOTING:]

# SCIENCE NO. 2— THE TRAUMATIZATION AND TORTURE OF THE VICTIM

The basis for the success of the Monarch mind-control programming is that different personalities or personality parts called alters can be created who do not know each other, but who can take the body at different times.

The amnesia walls that are built by traumas form a protective shield of secrecy that protects the abusers from being found out, and prevents the front personalities who hold the body much of the time to know how their System of alters is being used. The shield of secrecy allows cult members to live and work around other people and remain totally undetected. The front alters can be wonderful Christians, and the deeper alters can be the worst type of Satanic monster imaginable—a Dr. Jekyll/Mr. Hyde effect.

A great deal is at stake in maintaining the secrecy of the intelligence agency or the occult group which is controlling the slave. The success rate of this type of programming is high but when it fails, the failures are discarded through death.

Each trauma and torture serves a purpose. A great deal of experimentation and research went into finding out what can and can't be done. Charts were made showing how much torture a given body weight at a given age can handle without death. Now this is why the Nazis did all those strange concentration camp experiments, where they tested how quickly people would freeze or die from various traumas. It was for mind control!

The abusers are very specific and scientific in their torture. A lab technician with a clip board walks around monitoring the torture for the children when they receive their initial traumas. Heart monitors are closely watched. Still many children die from the programming. The programmers learned that when a child rolled up in a fetal position it had given up the will to live. They learned to time how fast this would occur to get an idea how far to push the child. Parents in eastern U.S. States were taken to Harvard University for training to teach them how much trauma they could give their children at home before they would die. After the children got back from their initial programming they were to receive daily traumas to keep them dissociative.

[H: I find that the text is not very "professionally" written but I am only interested in offering you information exactly as given in this text so please don't be "picky" lest you miss the content while watching the alphabet.]

# THE INITIAL SPLITS AND INITIAL PROGRAMMING DONE AT CHINA LAKE, CALIFORNIA

The primary or initial torture for many children in the western U.S. was done at China Lake which officially has gone under the designations Naval Ordinance Test Station (pronounced in short as NOTS), Naval Weapons Center, NWC, Ridgecrest (the town nearby), and Inyo-Kern (the area). The address of Nimitz Hospital is the code "232 Naval Air Weapons Station". The base was set up to test "new weapons". Evidently, the Navy decided that mind-controlled people were an important weapon to be tested. Most of the "new weapons" created at China Lake were for the most part human robots turned out in large numbers. The Monarch Mind Control was carried out in large airplane hangers on the base which have been able to house thousands of tiny cages just large enough for human babies. A "Lot" of 1,000 babies was a small batch. According to people who worked in the hangers helping program, many batches were 2,000 or 3,000 babies. **[H: Do not let the "past tense" of the writing suggest to you that these things no longer take place, for they do.]** 

Many survivors remember the thousands of cages housing little children from ceiling to floor. The cages were hot-wired (electrified on the ceiling, bottom and sides) so that the children who are locked inside can receive horrific electric shocks to their bodies to groom their minds to split into multiple personalities. These cages are called Woodpecker Grids. The victim sees a flash of light when high D.C. voltage is applied. Later, this flash of light is used with hypnotic induction to make the person think they are going into another dimension when they are blasted with high voltage. In the Peter Pan programming, the Programmers tell the slaves that this is "riding the light". One of the popular traumas after the small child has endured the Woodpecker Grid cages for days is to rape it. The rape is intentionally brutal so that it will be as traumatic as is possible.

Many of the technical people on the base are civilians. This is in part because part of the research involves mind control, and Illuminati civilian mind-control experts have come and gone from the base. The California Institute of Technology at Pasadena is intimately connected to China Lake's research (and, by the way, to the Illuminati). Also much of the work at the facility is for the intelligence agencies and not the military. Intelligence assets are often civilians.

One of the things developed in the California Universities and then implemented at China Lake was color programming, which will be covered later in this book. Red and green were discovered to be the most visible colors for programming. Various colored flashing lights were used in programming at NOTS. Survivors of the programming all remember flashing lights. The use of flashing lights has been introduced into American culture by the CIA. If a person goes into bars and places where bands play, you will notice multi-colored lights flashing. The flashing lights create disassociation, especially in people who are programmed.

#### HOW CHILDREN ARE TRANSPORTED TO A

#### MAJOR PROGRAMMING SITE

A list of major programming centers is given in an appendix, along with each site's programming specialties. In this chapter, an example of just one of the bases used for early programming is given, the large and very secret China Lake facility in California near Death Valley.

The children are brought into the China Lake NWC (aka NOTS) base by trains, planes and cars. A number of the small airfields which fly these children into China Lake have been identified. One, which is no longer in use for moving children, was a private air strip at Sheridan, OR which was beside a large lumber mill which had an agreement to secretly house the children who had their mouths taped. Neighbors in the area were bought off, and warned that if they talked they would be in trouble for broaching national security. The area has lots of mills joined by train tracks, which were used to shuttle the children around. Tied into this network was a Catholic Monastery which lies between Sheridan and McMinnville, close to the rail network. The Union Train Station in Portland, OR has underground tunnels where children were temporarily warehoused in cages before continuing on their journey.

[H: It now must be obvious that to have so many children with which to work requires full-time breeding programs so that children can be handled from prior-to-birth onward. There are so many groups of Satanically-oriented people that it becomes easy to hide, in the underground networks, abundant breeders. Make you sick to your tummy? Well, it doesn't do much for God's temper either, readers. We will get back to the choosing, treatment and procurement of the children for these purposes.]

The Jesuits were active in this part of the child procurement. Catholic adoption agencies (which are many), nuns who get pregnant, third world parents, and parents who will sell their children are all sources of children for programming. [H: Remember, readers: if your neighbor moves and you didn't know them well anyway—would you know what happened to children, of the family—if there was no further contact? It happens all the time—ALL THE TIME. This is one very necessary step in the world order changes-to totally break down society from attending one another. The society was put "on the move" and families torn asunder. For every missing person reported and noted, hundreds go unreported and totally ignored.] When one thinks about how many corrupt people there are and how many towns and cities are on the West Coast, and how many children are produced by Satanic breeders, illegal aliens and other parents who'd rather have the money than the children and the reader begins to realize how procuring batches of 1,000 or 2,000 children was no problem for the Illuminati, working through intelligence agencies such as the CIA, NIS, DIA, FBI, and FEMA. The Finders, a joint CIA/FBI group procured children for the Network for years. Some of the children needed for programming are to be used for sacrifices to traumatize those being programmed. (The names of some of the people who work at procuring children for programming/sacrifice have been released in Fritz Springmeier's monthly newsletter. [H: You will have to check with the publisher for information regarding that newsletter.]

The secret FEMA airstrip at Santa Rosa has planes landing and leaving all night. Some of these flights go east and then land at the secret 1800-square-mile China Lake Naval Research Base, and are believed to carry children for programming. This airstrip is called the SANTA ROSAAIR CENTER. When I tried to get FAA information on this airstrip, they played stupid as if it didn't exist, yet it is in operation.

#### BOHEMIAN GROVE CONNECTIONS

# [H: Get your barf bags, readers, because this is the REALLY GOOD OLD BOYS' CLUB OF WHICH WE HAVE SHARED SO MUCH INFORMATION. This is also the source and point of ongoing BLACKMAILING material for political blunderers or intentional perverts, etc. I ask you to read this even if it makes you desperately sick for this is LIFE while you are doing other cute things and complaining about the weather.]

Near Santa Rosa is the Bohemian Grove; southwest of Santa Rosa is this air center which is not used by the public. This airport was recently used by private pilots as a F.B.O. It was built during WW-II as a training base for P-32 pilots, and deactivated in 1952. After the war, it was leased to private companies (such as the CIA). The paved areas are 4' concrete and can land the heaviest planes in use. There are no buildings over two stories in the entire area, and no control tower. The FBI has a contingent in the Federal building, downtown Santa Rosa, and "FEMA" has a radio station at the airport. The Army Reserve also has some buildings in the area. However, there is some highly secret activity going on underground at the airport. Six to seven small planes sneak out of the closed base a day, and for a base of its description that is closed, that is very interesting. [H: I can attest to this base because some our own people stopped to see what was there on a happenstance trip for other purposes. The silence is deafening in its secrecy and NOBODY is allowed on site. It would appear that even the guards have orders, but no information, and if not honored, will shoot to kill.] The planes take off in the evening and do not turn their lights on until hundreds of feet into the air. The Press Democrat of Santa Rosa ran an article on Thurs., Apr. 22, 1993 about the Federal government selling 70 acres of property just to the east of the airport. However, when one reads closely, the land is going to be offered to a host of Federal agencies. The property was "being used by FEMA" (707-542-4534). If one thinks about it, it is unlikely that the radio station is a FEMA transmitter station. The close vicinity of this secret activity to the elite's Bohemian Grove makes this an interesting site for study.

The airport used for the Bohemian Grove visitors is north of Santa Rosa on Hwy. 101, the Sonoma County Airport. United Express and American Eagle (which flies to and from San Jose) fly into this airport, which has a control tower. In 1964, the airport was reported to have also carried about 600 military operations (either a takeoff or landing) per year. It was around this time that the Federal government made an agreement with Sonoma County Airport to help pay for the runway to be extended, the runway to be strengthened and the airport to be upgraded in numerous ways. The elite from around the world fly into here to go to the Bohemian Grove, which is in the Monte Rio area. Monarch slaves are regularly abused at the Grove for the entertainment of Bohemian Grove members in kinky sex theme rooms, such as the dark room and the necrophilia room. Secret NWO [New World Order] business is conducted in the small, dark lounge with a wooden sign naming it U.N. DERGROUND. Slaves are hunted in the woods for sport, and occult rituals, including infant sacrifice, are held outdoors in the Grove.

These airfields are described in detail so that the reader can begin to catch on to the network of small planes and airfields the Monarch system uses to transport children.

The children are trickled in from various collection points to China Lake. Monarch slaves, many of them children themselves, are used in the extensive child procurement system. Children are also used to entice and kidnap other children. Teenage slaves are used to escort and transport little children on trains,

buses, and planes. The triangular-shaped airfield at China Lake has traditionally begun very early in the morning with lots of activity. The night flights from FEMA's Santa Rosa airfield being an example of incoming flights. **[H: You have to realize, readers, that many children from Day Care Centers are utilized as "day" excursion trainees without the parents knowing what is taking place. It happened in the McMartin mess and it happens every day in thousands of ongoing day care centers. Check your children, parents, and you may well note some extremely strange behaviors from priorly "normal" babies or children.]** The airfield connects to the main base area via Sandquist Road. Children are landed at this field, while others are driven through the gates guarded by marines, and others come through via the east-west rail line. The fact that children are driving through the gates is not alarming because inside the military perimeter is a high school, a junior high school and 3 other schools. Some of the adults of the children being programmed stay in military barracks (Quonset huts and one story buildings) while they wait.

[H: It would probably be difficult for most of you to understand how children could be "handled" in a day care circumstance without being "caught". No, if you have parents, especially parents who "car pool" and have set and regular patterns of activities—it is very easy indeed. The "fluke" in the program is the occasional schedule-breaking parent. Sometimes "abductions" or false "pick up" information has to be presented as excuses for missing children until the child can be returned. The distances and ingress-egress routings are through tunnels and attached hallways which easily hide coming and going caretakers. Workers *could* be fooled from time to time but mostly the "workers" are programmed far better than any of the children in the day-care centers themselves.]

A male Monarch victim remembers a large hanger building at China Lake with a concrete floor and row after row of cages suspended from the ceiling filling the large building. One of the Programmers was dressed similar to a Catholic Priest. The electric current that ran to the cages made a hum, like an electric fence. There was a marble slab that served as an altar where black-hooded robed people would take a bone-handled knife and sacrifice little children in front of the other children in the cages. (Memories from other survivors about the place will be mentioned later.)

# MORE ABOUT THE SECRET CHINA LAKE BASE

Charles Manson, a programmed Monarch slave who received initial programming at China Lake, lived with his cult only 45 miles north-west of China Lake at the remote Myers and Barker ranches. Scotty's Castle in Death Valley, Bakersfield, Edwards AFB, and Papa Ludo's Store and Tavern (with its secret underground programming center) are all in the vicinity of China Lake and have all been programming sites, too. Old Route 66 went by China Lake, which now is just off U.S. 395. The area's tavern has been named the Hideaway. The building was low, away from the highway, with a large unlit parking lot. Only people who knew how to enter it by the obscure entrance on the side could get in. The Hideaway Tavern has been a local hangout for the CIA men in China Lake. It has served them excellent steaks. The base headquarters is known as the White House, and it looks somewhat like a yacht clubhouse. Northwest of the airfield, at 39-64 & 4-33 E on the quad maps, the government has built a large magical seal of Solomon (hexagram) with each leg 1/4 mile long on the ground.

What was it like for a victim in the early 1950s in a NOTS area programming center? One of the

buildings in the area used for programming was described as having a flat roof and a tan exterior. A fence ran around the building. Inside the front door was an old oak reception type desk. A series of three doors connected by tunnels were gone through. One entered into a hallway, and then took a left into the programming room. Tunnels connected the different hallways. The programming room was painted a good dissociative color—white. In the middle of the room, cages with chimps were suspended. The examining table was metal, which was cold for the victim, but easy to wash for the attendants. The victim was placed in cages and could observe white dots light up in different dot patterns over the door on a panel of lights. The low level shocks to the victim were coordinated with the dot patterns. (Some of this relates to domino programming.) An attendant monitored the entire scenario on charts, while the child was repeatedly traumatized with low-voltage shocks. Needles were poked in the child, the room was made dark and then lit. Voices said, "Love me, love me not". This was part of the love me, don't love me part of programming. "Good girls ride the silvery wings." This was to build the ability to condition trancing by the victim upon electro-shock.

German and British scientists/mind-control programmers came to NOTS after WW-II, including Joseph Mengele (known as Dr. Green, or Greenbaum, and other pseudonyms). The Illuminati's Dr. Black worked out of China Lake also. Dr. White (Dr. Edwin Cameron) worked on the East Coast, although he did fly in every so often to the West Coast to meet with the other top programmers. Dr. Blue was another of the important leading Illuminati programmers. These top programmers supervised other lesser programmers. If something went wrong, they might fly a child from a programming location to a specialist to get it special help for its programming.

The men and women of the Illuminati helped out the top programmers. The Grande Mothers, and the Grande Masters of the Illuminati participated in helping with the programming. As a child of the Illuminati progressed through its programming, three people had oversight over its programming: its Grande Mother, its Grande Dame, and the Programmer. The Illuminati functions off a chain of command similar to the military. (In fact, a big secret is that Satan's realm actually served as the model for military and political structures.)

As a child begins its programming, it is monitored in a fashion similar to hospitals where charts are filled and then these charts are filed. Tests and evaluations are done regularly. Goals are set which are sixmonth programming goals. These will say, in effect, we need to accomplish this by doing a, b, c, d in the next six months. This is somewhat similar to an I.E.P. (individual education plan) which the special-ed teachers in Oregon set up for each student. At some point, the strong points and the weaknesses of the child will be identified, and then a decision will be made as to what occupation the Illuminati want to program the person to become. If a young boy is aggressive and has sadistic tendencies, the Illuminati call it "a war monger" and label its chart, "This child will be a general." Then they proceed to program it to become a general. Nurses, teachers, and child physicians must be programmed with a gentleness to their System. Other occupations, such as lawyers, can be allowed to be ruthless. Many of the children have religious fronts labelled for their programming, and a very popular occupation for Illuminati men is to become clergymen. Religious leaders make up the majority of fathers of Monarch survivors that have sought help. Most Illuminati victims have parents who are important religious leaders, many of them top clergymen in the established churches.

As the reader might expect, some tortures require that the child victim's temperature, respiration, pulse

and blood pressure be closely monitored.

# [END OF QUOTING]

We need a break, please. I would like, however, to write more today because we will have to be away a major portion of this coming week to attend legal hearings.

For the paper Tuesday next, please consider re-running a bit of the *Protocols of Zion*. The Illuminati functions on the *PROTOCOLS*' instructions to accomplish a New World Order. You just don't have a very nice world any longer, readers.

We will discuss the purpose of "trauma" when we return.

Good morning.

#### CHAPTER 8

#### REC #3 HATONN

#### SAT., NOV. 16, 1996 1:30 P.M. YR.10, DAY 092

#### SAT., NOV. 16, 1996

Continuing directly from writing No. 2, Chapter 2:

## WHAT TRAUMA DOES

In recent times, the military and the science of psychology are paying attention to what they call PTSD (post-traumatic stress disorders). PTSD are the psycho-pathic debilitating effects of trauma and chronic nature of reactions to trauma. Intrusive flashbacks of the trauma will occur if the mind doesn't protect itself from reminders of the trauma. The mind creates avoidance patterns to protect itself from thinking about the trauma. Panic symptoms occur when the person undergoes physiological arousal to traumatic cues.

A trauma will create a certain "shatteredness" within the victim. The victim will develop life assumptions about being vulnerable, about having little personal worth, and that life is not fair. They may develop phobias to constantly check their environment for safety and constantly monitor others to make sure they are not mistreated.

For centuries warfare has taken place, and military men have experienced PTSD. However, a full description and investigation into the disorder has been done only in recent history. The U.S. military has prevented any serious counseling for their troops suffering from this. Peer "counselors" and rap groups were allowed, and misled by the Army to believe that they would be adequate. PTSD will often lead to outbursts of rage, chronic depression, or borderline dysfunctions. The PTSD in Monarch victims is masked by the MPD/DID and the programming. Then in turn, the programming masks the MPD. When the programming is complete, front alters have been created which can function with smiles and cheerful attitudes, while underneath, the mind is full of shattered hurting alters, of which the slave is unaware. Self-punishment and social withdrawal are natural symptoms of PTSD, and the programmers have no trouble enhancing and programming these functions into their alter systems. Certain alters end up holding the anger, the fear, the social withdrawal, the guilt, and the desire for self-punishment. These are held in check by the programming, and take the body when the slave steps outside of the programmed path.

The bad memories in the minds of men who suffer from PSTD have been noted to recycle and selfperpetuate themselves as they lay unresolved in the memory cells. Bad memories for the victims of Monarch programming are used to hold the MPD, the programming in place and also to keep the victim in compliance.

In 1954, Maslow published his hierarchy of needs, which when applied to Monarchs and PSTD victims means that they can not progress in therapy until their survival and safety needs are met. However, the Programmers/abusers know that it is important to keep the slave away from safety. To this end, the

Programmers employ people externally to monitor slaves, and internal alters in the victim's mind to be monitoring alters and reporting alters. Reporting alters can always reach the Network of abusers via 1-800 telephone numbers which change every two weeks. They can also call their handler. Reporting alters are very unemotional and serve as tape recorders which mechanically report any developments that might threaten the programming to their handler.

Alters programmed to commit suicide are also built into the Systems. For instance, for a system hacker—an outsider—to work with the alters of an internal Grand Druid Council (aka Executive committee alters, or judge alters) or a System almost insures 99% of the time suicide of the Monarch slave.

In at least 99% of the cases where Monarchs have come in for therapy, they still lack safety, which is a higher need than trying to go against their programming. This is why so few people have really gotten free. To undo the programming, the victim needs safety. The programmers know this, and have set up almost fail safe methods where the victim is not even safe from their own system of alters, let alone Big Brother. Therapists call their Monarch victims "survivors" a misnomer, because in reality they are still in the middle of ongoing abuse.

Some therapists may mistakenly think that it is helpful to tell the victim, "These fears you are having are from the past." Deliverance ministries may also try to stop the victim's fears, without understanding the reasons behind the ongoing fear.

Other chapters will deal with the extensive back-up methodologies. At this point, it is mentioned in the context of this chapter to establish to the reader that the abuse and torture continue non-stop. Some of this would naturally occur anyway, but the programmers enhance this naturally occurring phenomena many-fold to insure that the slave will continually abuse themselves. This means, as time progresses, some Monarch systems are timed to shatter certain levels and to create a new level of New Age believing alters to replace the original front. The abuse can be done by the victim themselves to themselves, because programming alters are given the ability to pull up horrific memories via codes. Those traumatic memories, which shattered the mind the first time, are still capable of doing it again when they are abreacted (that is, re-lived by the body and mind).

More and more people are experiencing working with someone with multiple personalities. However, very few multiples ever discover more than the front parts of their systems. Very few people, outside of the programmers, have much idea of what an entire system of alters is like, therefore some of the things that this book will describe will seem foreign to those people who have learned a little about multiplicity.

There are several models to describe what happens inside a multiple's brain as it develops multiple personalities. The brain is very complex. Recent brain research confirms that the brain was far more complex than imagined. In an average brain there are 10,000,000,000 individual neurons (nerve cells). Each of these has <u>10 with 100 zeros following it</u> worth of interconnections. In other words, an average brain has vastly more interconnections than the total number of atoms in the universe! **[H: This may sound good to the writer—but it is factually impossible as a statement of truth. How do I know?** Because every interconnection is going to be structured of more than one atom in itself! The UNIVERSE is a very large atomic/molecular structure without finite ability to count its makeup or contents. I find that by slipping into the habit of making exaggerated statements as is this

one, you lose your audience for there are intelligent people reading this material and a false statement of such proportion is unacceptable. This does not diminish the truth of the writings but it causes readers to begin to discount validity.] Often about 1/2 million different chemical reactions take place every minute in the average brain [H: Yes, and every one of them is made up of "atoms".], and the number can be several times that during intense activity. A Monarch's brain has been worked on to be even more active than a normal person's brain. The left and the right side of the Monarch's brain both work simultaneously, and the various personalities are all busy working simultaneously on different tracks. To describe the complexity of what is happening with someone's mind which has been messed with so dramatically for years, means that at times only an approximate model is presentable.

There are several terms which are used in speaking about multiples, which have developed several meanings. Unless these terms are correctly defined, misconceptions about them can cloud an understanding of what happens during Monarch programming.

First, researchers have discovered that deep within a person, the brain truly understands in a pure awareness all about itself. This is true for everyone. This pure awareness has been named various names, including Hidden Observer.

If a man is obnoxious and seems to have a total lack of awareness that he irritates people; just know that deep down inside an awareness realizes exactly what he is and what he does. The multiple's brain at some deep awareness knows what has happened to it. The term Hidden Observer is fraught with danger, though. A demonic entity called the Hidden Observer works hand in glove with the programmer to program the individual. The Hidden Observer is able to see everything the System does. The people who control a slave frequently call up the Hidden Observer to ask questions. In this case, it is a demonic entity, and yet it is this Hidden Observer, which each System has, that some therapists are trying to access to understand the System. This Hidden Observer only tells the truth to its master, because it is demonic.

The next term which is misunderstood is the term "the core". The programmers set up various alters to pretend to be the core, and the core's protector. The real core is quite hidden, and not placed within the regular grid of the alter system's chart. It will take some explaining to convey what happens to the mind, and what the real core is.

#### THE TYPES OF TRAUMA

One thing discovered by research into the genetic transmission of learned knowledge by humans to their children was that people are born with certain fears. Snakes, blood, seeing internal body parts, and spiders are all things that people are born fearing. The phobias toward these things are passed down genetically from one generation to another. In searching for traumas to apply to little children, the Programmers found that these natural phobias which occur in most people from birth will work "wonderfully" to split the mind. Along this line, the following are samples of traumas done to program slaves: a. being locked in a small confined spot, a pit or cage with spiders and snakes, b. being forced to kill, and cut up and eat innocent victims, c. immersion into feces, urine and containers of blood. Then being made to eat these things. These are standard traumas. Often a slave will experience not only all of the above but many others before they reach four or five years of age. It is important to traumatize the child early before it has a chance to develop its ego status.

By the way, when the child is placed into a small box with spiders or snakes, they will often be told that if they play dead the snake will not bite them. This carries out two things for the programmers, it lays the basis for suicide programs (i.e. "if-you-are-dead, then you-are-safe" thinking) and it teaches the child to dissociate.

Traumas to split the mind are not just high voltage, or natural phobias, but encompass the full range of the emotional and spiritual being of the victim. The victim is eventually stripped of every spiritual or emotional resource by a variety of traumas, such as "blood orgies" where male and female genitals are cut, torture sessions on all types of medieval torture machines, staged events where actors imitating God, Jesus Christ, police, and therapists curse the victim, reject the victim, and even "kill" the victim in simulated drug deaths. Children are placed in hospitals in captive abusive conditions. Children are tied to innocent children which are systematically and brutally killed while the children are made to believe that they are guilty for the child's punishment. Near death experiences such as drowning have become an art with these abusers. Trained dogs, monkeys and other animals are used to further traumatize the victims. An Illuminati slave will most likely have experienced things from all of the last few paragraphs above, plus much more.

(Toby, was one of the trained NOTS chimpanzees. He was trained to be sadistic. The other trained chimpanzees at China Lake included "Gabie" or Gabriel, who tickled the victim while they were tied up; Rastice, who had a toy chest with diamonds, bracelets, and a scepter which electroshocked; Zoro, who could do anything mean; Elmore, who cuddled as a mother but ate raw flesh; plus others. An example of something said during programming with the chimps is, "THREE LITTLE MONKEYS IN A CAGE, DO, RE, ME, FA, SO, LA, TE, DO".)

Joseph Mengele, aka Dr. Green, was skilled at using German Shepherds to attack people. Mengele got a reputation in the Nazi concentration camps for using German Shepherds, before he was brought over to America. He used dogs to help program American children. (The Process Church often uses German Shepherds also.) He was also skilled in abortions, and was involved in weird traumas involved with babies being born, or the simulated births of dead rats (or other gross things) from the vaginas of girls being programmed.

When the Satanic cults tie their victims with wire for rituals, some of the these people will lose their toes or fingers from the wire. At times little fingers and the top part of ring fingers are lost in Satanic cult rituals, too.

Many of the traumas and tortures are carried out by alters or persons who are sadistic. How does the Network get sadistic men to torture little children? Three different respectable studies (Harrower, 1976/ Milgram, 1974/ and Gibson, 1990) show that essentially all human males can be taught to engage in sadistic behavior. There may be a few exceptions, but the point is that sadistic people are not in short supply for programming. Some of the alter systems have extremely brutal sadistic alters. In fact, the Mothers of Darkness alters are an important balancing point to prevent the sadistic male programmers from killing more of the children on which they are working. The more pain, the more charge and excitement they get out of it.

Sadists enjoy gaining total control over a person. In order to do this, they take charge over the little child's basic body functions, such as sleep, eating, and pooping. They enjoy terrorizing the little child, so

Monarch slaves end up watching hours of sadistic behavior done to others before they are even five years old. The worse the trauma, the more the sadistic programmers enjoy it. Sensory deprivation, forced labor, poisoning, and rape of every orifice of the child are popular tortures by the programmers. The child soon learns that he is at the mercy of crazy people who can only be satisfied by total submission, and the willingness to allow someone else to think for you. The child will be made to eat faeces, blood, other disgusting things, while the programmer eats good meals.

Some of this sadistic behavior is toward a goal. Cutting a person's tongue and putting salt on it reinforces the no-talk programming. Making someone throw up to cause eating disorder programming. Dislocating shoulders to cause dissociation.

When the child victim's crying is heard, they immediately apply torture so the child thinks it will suffocate. This is behavior modification and is covered later. This trains the child not to cry.

Around age three, a Black Mass, a sick evil communion, is performed which is so ugly that the child hides in dissociation by creating a "locked-up" or "obscure" child. This early flip provides a base for dark-side programming. This locked-up child can have a powerful healing (with system-wide effects) by being part of a positive love-filled communion.

There are many traumas which can be carried out, which leave no physical scars, but do leave the child with the deepest emotional and spiritual scars. This is often necessary when programming young children who will be seen soon after the programming session. Holding one's arms out is a simple torture. Tickling and sensory deprivation are two tortures that leave no marks. Burial caskets, some outside and some at inside locations, are often used on slaves. That is why many slaves fear being buried alive. The Programmers place all types of creepy insects in the caskets when they bury the person alive. Another type of sensory deprivation is done by placing the victim in salt water (for buoyancy and weightlessness). Then the victim is fitted with sensitive sensors that shock the person if the victim moves. The shock puts the person back into unconsciousness. The brain is trained to stop all external body movement from the conscious mind. This type of sensory deprivation is used to place-in the posthypnotic commands to do something at some future date far into the future. The program is placed into the mind at the same primal level that the mind uses to tell the heart to beat.

One of the "appropriate" tortures is to place a bar between a little girl's legs which spreads the girl's loins for rape. Then the bent spread legs are flapped, while the victim is specifically told she is a "Monarch butterfly". Many victims have created butterflies in their minds while being raped.

[H: I realize that you are having trouble reading this material and frankly we are having trouble even copying it. The information is being brought forth from experiencers and, frankly, the language and sentence structuring is so incorrect as to make the writers and editors choke a bit from bad structure to outright objection to the material as well as the presentation. These stories are FIRST HAND experience as expressed to "de-programmers" such as Cathy to Mark. It is hard to hear, hard to speak, hard to write and exceptionally hard to have to believe that such evil can exist—much the less, become an "ordinary" practice for control and ruination of your species. No, I don't spare much to your sensitive minds. IF YOU DON'T KNOW THINGS LIKE THIS ABOUND, HOW IN THE WORLD CAN YOU MAKE THINGS RIGHT?] The programmers may tell some of their victims that out of caterpillar-worms come beautiful butterflies. While raping the child, the Programmers will describe their sperm fluid as "honey comb", and will cry out "hallelujah" when they climax.

It doesn't take long for the child to realize it has no ability to resist what is being done to it. The will of the child victim is destroyed, and in its place remains a pliable slave. If the slave doesn't learn correctly they receive even more pain. A fish hook in the vagina is a popular method. Older males have their genitals hurt during additional or reprogramming sessions. They may be forced to actually eat skin taken from their own genitals.

The mind of the victim is not only divided from itself, but the very process of torture makes the victim distrustful of humans in general. On top of this distrust, the programmers will layer-in programming to isolate the person from healthy relationships, which in turn increases the victim's feelings of helplessness. They are divided from their own parts (their own self) and the world in general.

For instance, the water, cave and sand tortures make the survivor fearful of oceans. The victim may be traumatized by being lowered on ropes or in a cage on ropes into the water from a cliff, or may end up being buried alive in sand and watching the tide come in, or simply being totally buried alive in sand and then abandoned. For a while, the Illuminati was big on water torture because they had built into their systems a weakness that water would destroy the clone armies that protected programming, and they needed their slave systems to be fearful of water.

Slaves are frequently lowered into black holes, or pits, containing the most frightful things possible. This is a frequent trauma because the victim, when left in a dark hole for hours or days without any contact with the world and with no water or food, will develop deep emotional scars. This will produce dissociation rather than tale-telling signs of physical abuse. This torture is used essentially on ALL Monarch slaves.

[H: I would note that the writing becomes increasingly hard to interpret as the very teller lapses into horrendous mental confusion and painful memories as she tries to hold to one personality. This is why trauma is so effective, readers, because EACH personality has such trauma as to simply effort constantly to slip from one into another in order to find some outlet and escape. In the deprogramming process the entity has to control these slippages and recognize them for the disassociations they represent while holding to conscious realization of circumstances. Once these fragments can be consciously held by the ONE predominant personality there is hope for recovery of the whole.]

Some of the traumas are done for specific medical reasons. For instance, the person may be starved by only allowing perhaps 300 calories per day for, say, a small woman of 125 pounds. Sugar and proteins are severely limited so that the brain is starved into submission. Water deprivation, which is taught to parents who raise Monarch slaves, is used from time to time on slaves to raise the brain's temperature which happens when the brain swells from lack of water. When the brain gets woozy and overheated it hallucinates and has a difficult time remembering events. If water deprivation is combined with electroshock it makes it even more difficult yet for the victim to remember anything. Heavy exercise along with long periods of little sleep (2-3 hours/day) causes an overproduction of endorphins in the brain and victims begin to robotically respond to commands. This was done to co-author Fritz under the pretense of military "training". The other author, Cisco, experienced it as part of her mind-control training. The brain under such stress may flip its functions from right to left and vice-versa. Hypnosis is easier when the brain is tired.

Most victims remember being suspended upside down. This was honed to a fine art by Mengele with concentration camp victims, while records were made of how fast blood drained from a child or adult's stomach when they were dunked upside down into a tank of ice cold water. The cold water tests supplied the data on temperature levels as consciousness faded. This information then was used later on in America to help the survival rate of children given the same trauma. Simply hanging a person upside down for one or two hours will begin to play tricks on the mind. The mind will begin to dissociate, and will begin to reverse the primordial brain functions as pain, for instance, registers as pleasure. The person's mind rearranges itself. This is often done with Beta alters or Beta models to get them to think that the pain of sadistic rape is a pleasure. After this reversal in the mind that "PAIN IS LOVE", the S&M kitten alters will beg their handler to slap them, tie them up, hurt them, etc. They will tease their handler, and tell him he is not a real man if he shows any mercy in how the pain is inflicted.

Fire/burning torture is used in the porcelain face programming. The charismatic branch of the Satanic Network (such as the offshoot of the Assembly of God churches) uses porcelain face programming. This is done by using wax masks on the victim and giving them fire torture. The person actually thinks that their face has melted. At that point, the programmer pretends to be a god and a hero and tells the person he will give them a new face, a porcelain mask. These new faces, by the way, look like the ones sold in many stores. The memories of abuse are then hypnotically hidden behind the masks. To take off the mask is to abreact and burn again. If anyone touches the face of an alter with porcelain face programming, the alters will feel a burning sensation because their masks are not to be tampered. This means that these alters have lost their own faces for all practical purposes. This is part of the dehumanization process. As long as these alters remain in denial of what has happened to them they do not have to face the burn-torture memories.

Some alters are tortured in a fashion that the eye area is traumatized and they squint the left eye. They look like Baron Guy de Rothschild of France's left eye appears. Guy de Rothschild is a major handler/ programmer, but the reason for his drooping eye is not known. Perhaps it was through torture.

The ritual aspect of trauma needs to be covered to some extent. By traumatizing someone on a specific day, say their birthday, it is far more damaging than just simply traumatizing them otherwise. The reason is that every time that person's birthdate recycles they are put back into their memories of abuse.

Sexual abuse of a child is far more powerful when it is put into the context of demonic magic. The abuser's semen comes to represent magic and seals the programming. The ritual aspect of it and the repetitive nature of the abuse creates several dynamics that accompany the abuse that wouldn't occur in non-ritual abuse. A lie accompanies such abuse in that it becomes that which says that institutionalized abuse is an obligation for both the abuser and the victim. For instance, the mind control of the Beast Barracks experienced at West Point, USMA, is an institutionalized abuse that allows the abuser to side-step responsibility for sadistic behavior, and sets the stage for the abuse to be continued under the disguise of tradition. **[H: Now readers, do NOT try to tell me that you don't know of that which I speak. It** 

#### is just never told to you HOW a person in "initiation" is slain!]

Finally, there is one more category of trauma—those to produce cosmetic looks, for instance, breast implants, or electro-shock to create moles at certain locations for either a sign telling other handlers the extent of the programming or for a Marilyn Monroe look. A "stage trick" is to use a multi-needle device to scar the tissue. The scar which is made in a pattern, a popular one is the satanic Goat's head of Mendes. This can be made visible then through hypnotic command. This allows the handler to look powerful to uninformed viewers. This trick has been done by the occult world practitioners for centuries.

## [END OF QUOTING]

These are long and miserable writings and, today, this is enough. It is recognized that many of you readers will recall symptoms of such trauma from your own past experience. Don't conjure things, please. The cop-out for all manners of ill-behaviors is to blame some tormentor or parent who was a poor specimen of a parent for things which are simply not so. These are extremes in practice of which we offer here. There are a lot more "victims" than you might suspect, but remember, these are for the very purpose of serving in manipulative and manipulated circumstances.

The "general" public is then manipulated and desensitized to all manners of trauma and violence which is then measured as to extent through media control methods. You certainly do not need to go through a programming project or program to become a malfunctioning addict to all manners of things and persons. We have herein been sharing the material regarding deliberate MIND-CONTROL methodologies utilized in manufacturing a robotic slave.

I find this material difficult with which to "re" present because I find the very authors writing about the programs slipping into the programming. This makes it all but impossible to remain objective as an author must become to offer evidence in a scientific and meaningful manner.

In this instance the lead author, in efforts to deprogram his subject, has become totally involved and the data wanders off into screwball-land. This does NOT make it invalid, it simply makes it more uncomfortable in the deciphering of intent and meaning. This is WHY so many sensational subjects become exactly that, sensational. This topic needs no exaggeration for truth is terrible enough.

I don't know how much of this we will have time to share for the world goes right on in its own bed of trauma while wobbling in and out of stability. We have to take whatever is of uppermost importance at any sitting.

Thank you for your attention and your patience for these "victims" are counting on your realization so that they can reclaim some portion of a so-called "normal" existence. Good evening.

#### CHAPTER 9

#### REC #1 HATONN

#### FRI., NOV. 22, 1996 8:04 A.M. YR.10, DAY 098

#### FRI., NOV. 22, 1996

## ENEMIES AMONG US, AND ENCOUNTERS OF THE WORST KIND—AIDS AND CANCER (Basically the SAME thing)

Yes, indeed I know your frustrations while trying to find *something* which can assist in healing once the ravages of these dis-eases strike. I also know first hand the rash and authoritative persons who cause irrational TROUBLE when we speak of things which disagree with their "studied" expertise. I also know the ones who will attend *revenge* for assumed slights until their dying day. So be it.

The last blast came when I said that Zita, Rick Martin's mother, has to have protein of the meat or dairy product quality lest she actually become a cripple and expires because she chooses to no longer live in the hell of pain and crippled body. I said she, and anyone with AIDS or CANCER, needs at least 14 to 16 ounces of whole protein. I also said that I do not EVER like totally vegetarian diets because you DO NOT KNOW WHAT YOU ARE DOING! I also said that anyone can do anything they choose regarding this subject, their diets, their assumptions, their "expertise" and their wishes at revenge. But it will backfire for it is also said that I wouldn't be able to find a single fact or recommendation from any, especially physicians, backing my attitude or opinion. I responded that I need no "expert authority" but "aren't you sick yet of dying unnecessarily in pain and crippled states of ill-repair?" I guess not because the flap is right here among those who have, fortunately for us, chosen to discontinue visiting with ME and moved away only to continue to attend and stir pots of discontent among families and former "friends" with great wisdom and "see I told you he was nuts!"-types of input.

So, for you people who "can't possibly be wrong", I submit the following.

#### [QUOTING:]

Dr. Stacey J. Bell, also RD:

PARADE, Nov. 10, 1996

[H: I only plan to give you the tiny summary and you can get a copy of the full paper as you wish. I am neither a dietitian, M.D. or librarian researcher.]

#### FOR THE HIV-POSITIVE (AND CANCER) VICTIM FOOD MAY BE THE BEST MEDICINE

For the last 25 years, doctors have discovered that patients with cancer or heart disease need extra nourishment, including twice as much protein as healthy individuals—the equivalent of 14 ounces of hamburger a day. Now Stacey J. Bell, a research dietitian at **Harvard Medical School**, is applying that knowledge to patients with HIV, the AIDS virus (and diagnosed Cancer patients).

# "We learned so much before AIDS even came on the planet," Bell told *PARADE*. <u>"Malnutrition</u> <u>exists in many conditions, and we have had 25 years to figure out how to treat it. Everything</u> <u>that happens to AIDS patients is experimental EXCEPT FOR THIS</u>."</u>

The body responds as it does to a burn, tumor or surgery, Bell explained. It begins to break down the protein stored in the muscles. The HIGH-PROTEIN diet she recommends in her new book, *Positive Nutrition for HIV Infection and AIDS* (Chronimed Publishing), *shows this process.* <u>Patients are instructed to eat enough to avoid weight loss, which occurs in 98% of HIV cases. Bell also urges them to IGNORE FRIENDS WHO SUGGEST AVOIDING MEAT, EGGS AND FAT. "I TELL THEM, 'GET OVER THE MYTHS. BROWN RICE AND FASTING WON'T CUT IT IF YOU HAVE THESE DISEASES."</u>

# [END OF QUOTING]

Now, all you vegetarians: I DO NOT CARE WHAT YOU CHOOSE TO DO FOR YOURSELF. HOWEVER, I am going to stand squarely between you and Zita Morris until she can have time to heal herself and hopefully regain muscle and skeletal strength. You can do whatever YOU want. SHE ASKED ME! There are a few people, though, who think they sort of own the world, other people's premises, and are totally welcome to butt into anybody and everybody's business as the sum total last word in knowing. No, these people are trouble-makers and stir "revenge" pots when crossed in any possible countering of their authority or expertise. Beware of these HELPERS lest they kill you by the treatment programs. There is a rather fun old saying: "If God had wanted you to only eat grass he would have birthed you an elephant or a cow."

I have bothered to offer this input because yesterday I told Brent Moorhead that I would most certainly find a reference and offer it to Dharma for this very purpose—of proving that at least one other "idiot" and, as Ence called ME: "asshole", agrees with me. Sorry, Dr. Bell.

Perhaps my real question might be: Why do people who so hatefully dislike me continue to work among the staff? My goodness, if you don't like something why not simply STAY AWAY FROM IT—*unless of course, you ARE THE carrier of information to the enemy camp?*?

Nobody around here causes anybody to do ANYTHING they don't wish to do. This is no organization of some sort touting communal and/or blind insanity.

I further suggest, however, that BUSINESS matters will be handled EXACTLY LIKE BUSINESS AF-FAIRS SHOULD BE HANDLED and it doesn't include gossiping and prattling everything you know and welcoming aboard people who come and go like they own a place—when they have no business being there AT ALL. Everything about the business will be phased out entirely from Tehachapi except for incidental people who make contributions. ALL BUSINESS will be handled ONLY through Las Vegas—even for items which ordinarily could be picked up from friends here. These same wonderful "friends" have contacted, AGAIN, the franchise tax board, the State people, the IRS, the FBI and on and on and on—in their silly games of cover their own dirty hands. I can start with Ence and run through his sister-in-law Tammy and, yes, THEY have named a couple of people who probably didn't mean much damage—or at the least mean to be *CAUGHT*.

Ms. Beam has entered court documents naming Clark, Cleary and Linn. That is NOT "my" doing. We also understand that Mike B. isn't "speaking to us". Well, I guess not—so Ekker, send him and Cleary a billing for the funds invested in their trips to the Philippines and Austria. We PURCHASED \$8 million in funding (FROM THEM) which was privately raised from family members, plus the Institute paid for travel and expenses. They kiss us off? FINE! THE MOST UNFORTUNATE (KISSOFF), HOWEVER, IS FROM US FOR WE HAVE THE ABILITY TO REACH THROUGH TO THOSE VERY PLACES NOW AND <u>GET FUNDING</u>. Perhaps they were not EVER capable of anything save "conning" honest people. Are they no longer on the side of God and Country? No, they never were. Do you see how people flippantly volunteer to "do anything" and "serve" and blather, blather, blather—UNTIL THEY ARE CROSSED IN ANY WHATSOEVER—LIKE ASKED TO BE HONEST AND HAVE INTEG-RITY?

Now, let us consider a bit further: NO funds were pulled from the Institute or anything else, SAVE THOSE OF FAMILY CHILDREN MEMBERS, to "invest". However, backup travel funds, in exchange for more investment and funding, was agreed upon to come "IF NEEDED" (but assurance was given of "no need"). All of you know the rest of the tale. Some travel funds were supplied to Cleary who later was a high-ranking member of the Board of Directors, and Ence was involved AS PRESIDENT of the Phoenix Institute Board of Directors. Other funds were borrowed by Ekker from a party in Greece, and thousands of dollars were charged to Ekker's only credit card: American Express. This card was the ONLY remaining convenient credit available to Ekkers and that little trick—while they were "accused" of being paid by the CIA—ruined their entire credit status. There was a DIRECT effort to charge a total of over \$35,000. Now, is this GODLY? Is THIS what brings the big KISSOFF when "caught"? YES INDEED. Just "kiss you off" and run away and hide! Then they methodically do everything they can to cause trouble, inconvenience and misery. Well, when you are honest and act with total integrity—all the investigators turn up are the indiscretions of the betrayers. They all come rushing like hogs to the truffles only to meekly apologize and go their way—back after the ones who falsely turned "us" in. Good luck, little quackers, because the "big boys" are now hunting ducks in YOUR PONDS.

Oh yes, we KNOW that you CUTE ADVERSARIES have your direct instructions for destroying the Ekker-Ekker/Phoenix Institute from George Green and Jason Brent—but it wasn't too wise to have such dirty, dirty hands when you started the processing. YOU ARE THE GUILTY PARTIES AND SURELY YOU KNEW IT WOULD CATCH UP WITH YOU. Remember always: GOD HAS ALL THE TIME WITHIN INFINITY—*YOU DO NOT!* 

A good thing to remember, people, is that YOU must walk the path YOU PREPARE. If it is terrible in its traveling—perhaps you should have studied your construction processes a bit more carefully. You are each STUCK with the foundation you LAY. God offers the construction guidelines and blueprints—but

you contractors always get crosswise and *know more*. So be it. You are each going to be left with the rewards in the bag you have woven. If your weavings are rotted, your bag will only hold the troubles along your way—and they will surely fall out when the bag has failed. Is God a hard taskmaster? YES!

I wonder what their footprint pathway looks like and how often God is pushed aside for the moment of physical tribulation and "dislikes"?

[QUOTING:]

# FOOTPRINTS IN THE SAND

"Lord, you told me when I decided to follow YOU, You would walk and talk with me all the way. But I'm aware that during the most troublesome times of my Life there is only one set of footprints. I just don't understand why, when I needed You most, You leave me."

He whispered, "My precious child, I love you and will never leave you... When you saw only one set of foot-prints it was **then that I carried you**."

# [END OF QUOTING]

# So, WHO leaves WHOM?

God never leaves anyone but most turn away from God the minute TRUTH and conduct are somehow against YOUR "rathers". I repeat something else, friends, from the Master Teacher and it certainly suffices for me and MY STANCE: "If you deny me then I shall deny you before my Father who has sent me." AND: "Many come but few are chosen—because the multitudes cannot even keep their word."

So, the groupies complain about God being somehow misused and abused in such places as OURS? What place? Are YOU sure you actually mean *GOD*? It appears to me that if you simply LOOK at the Commandments and the Golden Rule—you would realize that GOD does not sanction lies, cheating, false witness, traitors, treasonists, or intentional damage because YOU ARE WRONG and wish to cover your assets.

You then go forth and call yourselves "Christians" which gives CHRIST a terrible reputation of being WORSE in THE LIE than is the honest sorcerer Satanist.

# I AM A CHRIST BEING—AND IT CERTAINLY DOES NOT SEEM TO FIT THE DESCRIPTION OF HARDLY ANY RELIGIONS I HAVE WITNESSED THUS FAR.

# FARRAKHAN

The next thing I get is the label of being somehow Black Muslim. Say what? I BELIEVE IN GOD OF CREATOR/CREATION and, apart from my connection WITH that SOURCE, I bear no label at all.

No, I do not believe in "THE" physical pronouncements nor most of the claimed desires of the special group—OF ANY KIND.

I KNOW, HOWEVER, THAT LOUIS FARRAKHAN WILL BE REMEMBERED IN SOME FU-TURE TIME AS ONE OF THE MOST "*IMPORTANT*" PEOPLE TO HAVE WALKED THE WALK WITH YOU OF THIS "TIME". BUT ANY LEADER WHO IS BACKED BY *EXTREME VIEWS and CAUSES*, CANNOT FORCE CONTROL UPON ANYONE—MOST ESPECIALLY THE ONES MOST OFTEN OFFENDED BY SOCIETAL STRUCTURES AS THOSE WHICH OPPRESS THEM.

Now, I feel it only right to enter into this writing a directly reprinted page from the accepted paper of Muslim publications. I ask that "*THE MUSLIM PROGRAM*; *What Muslims Want* and *What Muslims Believe*", published in EVERY paper issued of: *THE FINAL CALL* as presented by the leader of the "faith", The Honorable Elijah Muhammad, be reprinted here. [See page 133.]

By the way, and Louis knows this; he has traitors and betrayers right in his house and within his closest associates. Again, it simply is the way it IS. It has ever been thus and shall ever be in a human, physical environment finally controlled by Evil intent. And remember, people: HELL is but the ABSENCE OF GOD. And, ETERNITY is a very, very, long, long TIME. So, you had better check out "your angels" assigned by the physical do-gooders—for they will NEVER bring forth YOUR ANGEL. They, obviously, cannot bring forth THEIR OWN. Why would you even consider another's opinion of what angel you might need? Must you leave everything to fate and magic? Can't you even take responsibility for recognizing your OWN ANGEL GUIDES?

## YOU will remain *people of the lie—UNTIL YOU BECOME RESPONSIBLE FOR TRUTH*.

Dharma, I don't think I wish to write more this morning for I think this topic deserves a LOT of thought for individual considerations. I am NOT here to serve my adversary—EVER! If YOU are my adversary—you are NOT among my friends. When you stop your silly gaggling—and grow up, you might FIND GOD QUITE AGREEABLE AND RECEPTIVE TO YOUR OPINIONS. I do not present AS God, but only to serve and bring TRUTH in GOD. You do anything you want to do—but to SAY WITH YOUR LIPS THAT YOU SERVE GOD OF LIGHT—WHILE PRACTICING WRONG INTENT AND ACTIONS—TELLS THE TRUTH ABOUT YOU—EVERY TIME.

May the choices you make, serve you well—for the time of choosing final pathways and actions, is upon you. GOD WILL LEAVE THOSE CHOICES IN YOUR HEARTS AND MINDS FOR, AGAIN, HE HAS ALL THE "TIME" IN THE UNIVERSE—YOU DO NOT! You who have souls which reside in truth and love, in intent, also have all the TIME in the infinite universe. Do you HAVE TO AGREE with me? Yes, because except through these Laws I serve, you shall not make it into the Kingdom of God of perfection for Evil has no place within that Universal place of order and perfection. Evil is left to the physical expressions and "bound soul" spirits.

Do you think God to be boring and acutely pious? Forget it. RELIGIONS ARE BORING and FALSE—God offers all the excitement of creation and experience. When you know the difference—YOU WILL

#### HAVE "ARRIVED".

I realize that this is pointed at the people and government of the United States of America and no, I do not accept replacing bad structures by simply changing the force which enables tyranny. This, however, does NOT mean that the TRUTH is less "truth" because I, or you, do not agree with the entirety of a given "program".

By the way, "important" does NOT mean "greatest". Adolf Hitler was "important"—HE WAS NOT "*GREAT*". George Bush is "important"—he is Not "great". The Christed beings were GREAT and IMPORTANT. The likes of a Henry Kissinger are NEITHER IMPORTANT NOR GREAT—AS THE PLAY UNFOLDS. They are disrupters and corrupted, evil persons. They serve the Evil Empire, no more; no less. The REALLY GREAT personages are rarely even "heard of" in their life-span, BUT, their history remains forever. EVIL CANNOT PUT DOWN TRUTH AND GOODNESS; IT IS UNIVER-SAL LAW FOR THE EVIL PRESENTATIONS AND PERSENTERS—DO NOT CHANGE ONE IOTA OF TRUTH WITH THEIR PRATTLINGS AND VOTINGS. THEY ONLY MAKE IT "APPEAR" TO BE OTHERWISE BUT THERE IS NO FOUNDATION UPON WHICH LIES CAN STAND FOREVER, FOR IN THE ENDING GOD PRESENTS THE EVIL BEING WITH A SOUL TO EXPERIENCE, INTO ETERNITY, ITS IMPERFECTIONS.

We do not need to concern greatly over those who bash us for our goodness or stance within truth—FOR THEY SHALL SURELY FALL AND BE UNCOVERED IN THEIR TREACHERY. When this happens there is little chance of "recovery" for no one shall ever again trust or respect that deceitful, revengeful entity. And their children will grow up with SHAME AND HATE against their own deceitful parents. This is NOT MY DOING—this is simply the WAY IT *IS*. We are appreciative of our enemies for they allow us to see and discern RIGHT from WRONG and reinforce our own KNOWING in TRUTH and RIGHT ACTIONS. No being of TRUTH ever suggested it would be terribly easy or without troubles, to maintain honor, integrity, good business and TRUTH while the enemies tear at the flesh and beat upon the doors. GOD SIMPLY SAID IT WOULD BE FINE AND TRUTH *SHALL PREVAIL*.

\* \* \*

#### WHAT THE MUSLIMS WANT

Editor's note: The following is reprinted from the 8/6/96 issue of The Final Call; the photo within the article is of the Most Honorable Elijah Muhummad.

#### Most Honorable Elijah Muhummad

This is the question asked most frequently by both the whites and the Black. The answers to this question I shall state as simply as possible.

#### 1. We want freedom. We want a full and complete freedom.

2. We want justice. Equal justice under the law. We want justice applied equally to all, regardless of creed or class or color. 3. We want equality of opportunity. We want equal membership in society with the best in civilized society.

4. We want our people in America, whose parents or grandparents were descendants from slaves, to be allowed to establish a separate state or territory of their own—either on this continent or elsewhere. We believe that our former slave masters are obligated to provide such land and that the area must be fertile and minerally rich. We believe that our former slave masters are obligated to maintain and supply our needs in this separate territory for the next 20 to 25 years—until we are able to produce and supply our own needs.

Since we cannot get along with them in peace and equality, after giving them 400 years of our sweat and blood and receiving in return some of the worst treatment human beings have ever experienced, we believe our contributions to this land and the suffering forced upon us by white America, justifies our demand for complete separation in a state or territory of our own.

5. We want freedom for all believers of Islam now held in federal prisons. We want freedom for all Black men and women now under death sentence in innumerable prisons in the North as well as the South.

# We know that the above plan for the solution of the Black and white conflict is the best and only answer to the problem between two people.

6. We want an immediate end to the police brutality and mob attacks against the so-called Negro throughout the United States.

We believe that the Federal government should intercede to see that Black men and women tried in white courts receive justice in accordance with the laws of the land—or allow us to build a new nation for ourselves, dedicated to justice, freedom and liberty.

7. As long as we are not allowed to establish a state or territory of our own, we demand not only equal justice under the laws of the United States, but equal employment opportunities—**NOW!** 

We do not believe that after 400 years of free or nearly free labor, sweat and blood, which has helped America become rich and powerful, that so many thousands of Black people should have to subsist on relief, charity or live in poor houses.

8. We want the government of the United States to exempt our people from ALL taxation as long as we are deprived of equal justice under the laws of the land.

9. We want equal education—but separate schools up to 16 for boys and 18 for girls on the condition that the girls be sent to women's colleges and universities. We want all Black children educated, taught and trained by their own teachers.

Under such schooling system we believe we will make a better nation of people. The United States government should provide, free, all necessary text books and equipment, schools and college buildings. The Muslim teachers shall be left free to teach and train their people in the way of righteousness, decency

and self respect.

10. We believe that intermarriage or race mixing should be prohibited. We want the religion of Islam taught without hindrance or suppression.

These are some of the things that we, the Muslims, want for our people in North America.

# WHAT THE MUSLIMS BELIEVE

# 1. WE BELIEVE In the One God Whose proper Name is Allah.

2. WE BELIEVE in the Holy Qur'an and in the Scriptures of all the Prophets of God.

# 3. WE BELIEVE in the truth of the Bible, but we believe that it has been tampered with and must be reinterpreted so that mankind will not be snared by the falsehoods that have been added to it.

4. WE BELIEVE in Allah's Prophets and the Scriptures they brought to the people.

5. WE BELIEVE in the resurrection of the dead—not in physical resurrection—but in mental resurrection. We believe that the so-called Negroes are most in need of mental resurrection; therefore, they will be resurrected first.

Furthermore, we believe we are the people of God's choice, as it has been written, that God would choose the rejected and the despised. We can find no other persons fitting this description in these last days more than the so-called Negroes in America. We believe in the resurrection of the righteous.

6. WE BELIEVE in the judgment; we believe this first judgment will take place as God revealed, in America...

7. WE BELIEVE this is the time in history for the separation of the so-called Negroes and the so-called white Americans. We believe the Black man should be freed in name as well as in fact. By this we mean that he should be freed from the names imposed upon him by his former slave masters. Names which identified him as being the slave masters' slave. We believe that if we are free indeed, we should go in our own people's names—the Black people of the Earth.

8. WE BELIEVE in justice for all, whether in God or not; we believe as others, that we are due equal with our slave masters in the status of "freed slaves."

# We recognize and respect American citizens as independent peoples and we respect their laws which govern this nation.

9. WE BELIEVE that the offer of integration is hypocritical and is made by those who are trying to deceive the Black peoples into believing that their 400-year-old open enemies of freedom, justice and equality are, all of a sudden, their "friends." Furthermore, we believe that such deception is intended to prevent Black people from realizing that the time in history has arrived for the separation from the whites of this nation.

If the white people are truthful about their professed friendship toward the so-called Negro, they can prove it by dividing up America with their slaves.

We do not believe that America will ever be able to furnish enough jobs for her own millions of unemployed, in addition to jobs for the 20,000,000 Black people as well.

10. WE BELIEVE that we who declare ourselves to be righteous Muslims, should not participate in wars which take the lives of humans. We do not believe this nation should force us to take part in such wars, for we have nothing to gain from it unless America agrees to give us the necessary territory wherein we may have something to fight for.

11. WE BELIEVE our women should be respected and protected as the women of other nationalities are respected and protected.

12. WE BELIEVE that Allah (God) appeared in the Person of Master W. Fard Muhammad, July 1930; the long-awaited "Messiah" of the Christians and the "Mahdi" of the Muslims.

We believe further and lastly that Allah is God and besides HIM there is no God and He will bring about a universal government of peace wherein we all can live in peace together.

# HE LIVES

\* \* \*

Good morning and may the LIFE you SAVE—BE YOUR OWN! Salu.

#### CHAPTER 10

#### REC #1 HATONN

#### SAT., NOV. 23, 1996 5:56 A.M. YR.10, DAY 099

#### SAT., NOV. 23, 1996

#### ENEMIES AMONG US

There is gross denial from our unfriendly antagonists that they "did not reveal *names*" in instances where I have said they did so, betraying the very ones they promised to HIDE. Sorry, Ann Beam and Leon, through George Green, Tuten and others, both Abbott and Horton have not only given names but have presented those names in court in such a way as to be able to use them later as they wish.

You have to understand that in all these cases, including a very specific and limited issue in California, lies are scattered like fodder for the pigs. There are TOTAL entanglements among all issues—but of course the source always goes right back to Abbott and Horton who are the only ones who can present themselves within the court setting. Green, of course, never is allowed to show up because he lies so openly that they can't allow him on the stand.

These carried buzzards exact information from the unwitting by saying they "won't ever tell" but THEY have to know names, etc. Then they turn about and use all those names.

There are pieces of communication which declare and prove these connections—and yet, Ekkers are not allowed to participate. I believe THAT in itself borders on malpractice. Our own lawyers continue to act as if there is something to hide. NO, there is nothing to hide and, if they think I AM NOT IN THE KNOWING OF THE INFORMATION—THEY ARE MISINFORMED.

I am going to speak about betrayal and the fundamental disloyalty of traitors and betrayors. It is very important for you who closely share with me, the signs and symptoms of such people, to consider how seriously you err when you so openly share yourselves with these vengeful persons. Most of the people are just "used" but the results are the same, aren't they? You will also see why IT IS SO IMPORTANT TO HANDLE YOUR AFFAIRS, ALLAFFAIRS, CORRECTLY, LEGALLY, WITHIN MORALAND LEGAL GUIDELINES. We are not a group of anything save separate individuals trying to have some type of friendly interchange. Our only "religion" is that we feel that there should be a Christ-like trust and faith with those who would eat at our table and sup from our cups. Most people with whom we interchange have no agreement or thought about us so it becomes silly in its continued display of claims and assumptions.

It does, however, seem quite ludicrous to welcome our adversaries, who cut our throats and stab our backs, TO PAY THEM FOR THE DEEDS. These foes would have EVERYONE in the world lose their property in order for the lead dogs in opposition to get what they have no right to have.

These two attorneys, Abbott and Horton, are even "doing in" their own client, Green. They have now gone to the Supreme Court (after being ruled AGAINST twice) a third time and the judges are about fed up—because they have also PROVEN that Green embezzled 1100 ounces of gold coins FROM YOU WHO SUPPORT THE INSTITUTE. ABBOTT even stole from his own client, Fort, the money paid to him on his claim to the Institute and now presents a billing that takes ALL Leon's assets.

Some of you are sucked into giving affidavits about which you ask to have your names kept silent. No such luck, foolish people. If you "smile" at one of the opposition—you are NAMED in their outrageous paperwork. It goes something like this: "I stopped by the office at *CONTACT* and (so and so) gave me this 'knowing glance' and they just have a big party there every day..." Well readers, it is Ekkers they are after and, more specifically, Doris Ekker. This hardly constitutes doing business—does it?

I can give you a more specific example of the treachery: Tuten went to visit Nora and now uses her private conversation to DISCOUNT Nora. Well, Nora Boyles, I will pronounce to the world—cannot be discounted, nor shall I sit still for such treachery. And yet, Tuten would see Nora lose every cent of her resources in order for Abbott and Green to get THEIRS because they have already declared to their own clients—that they will GET NOTHING. Somehow this seems to make sense to them; it certainly eludes me.

They only tighten the noose about their own necks, however, and it is purely sad.

The Speaker of the House in the Nevada Legislature is aghast at the antics of said attorneys and their attack on Corporations domiciled in Nevada and has asked the Nevada Bar for a full investigation, thanks to you who have your own interests violated by the assaults against corporations such as yours. He made it clear that no assaults would be tolerated against Nevada incorporation because it is a major interest of Nevada in serving people and having growing and thriving enterprises.

Readers, there are FEW things in which YOU CAN HAVE INPUT AND REALLY MAKE A DIFFER-ENCE—AND HERE IT IS. This is the way you start, and continue, to change the terrible and corrupt systems into a demand and conclusion of integrity, and honest and good practices. Ekkers do NOT fear investigations but they will protect, as promised, any party who has asked for privacy under the law in any interchange with them. They have taken the lumps and threats—and yes, contempt charges—to do exactly that. Green never even has to show in court—but that will soon end, however; he is already declared an unfit witness even in his own interests—because of his inability to speak truth or tell the same lie twice in a row. What has happened, however, is that neither can his lawyers and they are now guilty of KNOWINGLY offering KNOWN lies from THEMSELVES in the courts. They seem to think that there is enough political blackmail to cause all the judges to continue to rule WITH them. Nope, and elections are over for a while and the judges are tired of appearing the fools and leaving themselves open for impeachment. Acouple of the higher-court judges are considering demanding Grand Jury hearings against Green, et al. This has become the most embarrassing case crossing that part of Nevada—ever.

Judge Gamble continues to hold the gold that was ORDERED (twice) TO BE RELEASED TO THE PROPER OWNERS and that is NOT the Green Brigade. He was incensed by the use of E.T.s and cults and Jesus Christ being splattered in the papers, etc. Well, his own cronies DID THAT—those are Abbott's proud accomplishments with his "PULL WITH THE ASSOCIATED PRESS".

So much for this topic but, yes indeed, readers, I want to keep up the opposition's information flow by sharing with them openly. We see more *CONTACT* excerpts in the courts than anywhere else among the reading audience. Don't you find that fascinating? It must annoy them, however, to figure a way to always delete the part about my ONLY SERVICE BEING TO THE CHRIST TEACHINGS, HONOR, TRUTH, AND JUSTICE. Further, we have RESPECT for the bench and Judges, while it appears there is only contempt for, and intended use of, those same authorities by Abbott and Horton. Abbott totally insulted Judge Gibbons for over an hour while Horton forced his way, representing Green, into a case where there was no standing of any kind. Abbott called him immature, inept, and worse—while Gibbons was simply trying to handle the cases UNDER THE LAW. These things will come back upon them, readers, if you live long enough to get hearing. So be it.

Meanwhile attorneys and judges are having to get a rather intensive EDUCATION aren't they? You cannot BUY this kind of experience and on-the-job training—ANYWHERE.

I would like to leave this now and offer a bit more on "Mind-Control" for this paper. Then, of course, we need to get back to some of those Bush connections we were offering prior to elections. However, it doesn't seem so important today since everything is going, TODAY, exactly as planned by the adversary. Readers, you NEED every protection and allowance for sheltering UNDER THE LAW. And frankly, you businessmen and free-wishers, you can get the most from the Sin Capital of the world—Nevada. And further, Nevada Corporate Headquarters HAS STOOD FIRM AND TRUSTWORTHY IN EVERY CONFRONTATION THE EVIL TEAM COULD THROW AT THEM. We all, here, RESPECT THE LAW and, in so doing, we never do anything outside the parameters of those laws—wherever they might be instigated, and eventually this will be sustained in the courts—IF YOU DO YOUR PART AND DE-MAND LEGAL ACTIONS AGAINST THOSE WHO BREAK AND STRETCH THOSE LAWS FOR THEIR OWN OUTRAGEOUS PURPOSES. THE VOICE YOU OFFER MAY WELL BE THE VOICE THAT IS HEARD. MANY VOICES ARE ALWAYS BETTER HEARD THAN ONE. KEEP TRYING TO BE HEARD, DEMANDING HEARING, UNTIL YOU RECEIVE SATISFACTION THAT SOMETHING IS BEING DONE TO INSURE PROTECTION OF YOUR RIGHTS WITHIN THE LAWS.

Back, please, to some excerpts from *The Illuminati Formula Used to Create an Undetectable Total Mind-Controlled Slave*, by Fritz Springmeier & Cisco Wheeler. I also want you to know that much of this information is coming from Mark Phillips and Cathy O'Brien. And please, readers, don't forget our precious Kelly who, through sharing, is beginning to share her stories so that she can reclaim her mental stability and balance.

#### [QUOTING, PART 4:]

#### WHAT OCCURS WHEN THE MIND SPLITS

During battles soldiers have been known to wall off horrible events with amnesia walls. Just like the soldier who walls off a traumatic battle scene where he sees his buddy disemboweled by a grenade, so the child walls off trauma. However, the soldier must only endure a relatively small amount of trauma compared to the children who are programmed under the Monarch trauma-based mind control.

A soldier may remember his trauma, by being triggered by something that reminds him of the trauma. Likewise, the child victim will have things that trigger also.

One way of describing the split is to say that the child's mind is saying, "This isn't happening to me, it's happening to some one else," and a split in the personality occurs. The new split will have the characteristics of what it split from. The programmer will ask the alter being tortured to create something in the mind when the split is created—such as, "I want 12 white fluffy kittens." The programmer, demons, and the child's creativity work together with the dissociation to create alters. Those 12 white fluffy kittens will have the characteristics and memories of what they were made from. However, they are separated from each other by dissociation, and they will be given their own script and own separate identity by the programmer. The dissociation between some alters who are co-conscious is not full blown amnesia.

After the programmer has instructed the child what alters he wants made when he tortures the child, the Programmer will inject a truth serum to determine whether the correct alters were made and the correct amount. The child's creativity is being guided by torture. The Programmer will often also call up the Hidden Observer and ask it what has happened internally in the mind of the victim.

Another better way of looking at what happens is to understand that the part of the brain that records personal memory—that is the personal history memory section, is divided up into little pieces by amnesia walls built to protect itself from the repeated traumas. Each section is walled off from another section by amnesia. Each trauma has an amnesia wall built around it. Each trauma memory is sectioned off. That walled-off section is a piece of memory that will be identified, and a hypnotic cue attached by the programmers that will pull it up to the conscious mind. And further, if the programmers so desire, it can be given a history, a name, a job, and developed into a full-blown personality. It's important to grasp that the entire mind is not sectioned off into parts. Some areas of the mind, such as the area that holds skills and talents, is available to all the alters who want to access that talent. The talent doesn't belong to that alter but to the System. Autobiographical memory is remembered differently than simple facts and skills involving primitive parts of the brain. A sense of time and a sense of self are attached to autobiographical memories—these things are stripped of an alter as it functions within the programming. Memory storage is also linked to the brain's state of mind at the time.

Hormones released at the time of an experience will modulate the strength of the memory of that experience. The limbic-hypothalamic system of the brain (which consists of the amygdala, hippocampus, cingulate gyrus, fornix, septum, certain nuclei of the thalamus, and the Papez circuit) has a central modulating part which interacts with peripheral hormones. Peripheral epinephrine will be released if the amygdala is electrically stimulated. The adrenal medulla releases epinephrine that is vital for memory storage. In other words, there are hormones which help the brain remember.

A particular talent is not used by every alter. A non-sexual alter (an alter with an asexual identity) is not going to access talents involved in sexual activity. This is because memories are both occurrent states and also dispositions, and when a disposition is dissociated, the alter must maintain a different set of dispositions. A three-year-old-child alter is not going to access abilities to write. To do so for these alters would mean attacking the amnesia walls which hold horrible memories. That would mean going against the programming with its penalties, and their own understanding of "reality" which is the programmed story line of which the alter has been convinced, wherein the penalty is losing of its life.

To dissociate a memory and to take on a particular role and identity involves a constant reinterpretation of past events. It may also mean that the alter must contrive an interpretation of present events. The three-year-old may, for instance, see breasts but decide they belong to someone else in the system with whom they share the body. This is in part dictated by the necessity of obscuring the pain of the trauma that separates the alter from the rest. Each day that the alter confronts reality, they will face the threat that old memories will not agree with the story line created. For instance, the handler's sexual advances carried out in front of that asexual (nonsexual) alter must be misconstrued so that the illusion of not having been raped is continued. This is why normal life has a way of breaking down the multitude of lies and programming of the deeper alters, which live in a fantasy world created during the programming. The deeper alters have never had the chance to experience life outside of their programming, since they hold the body only at infrequent specialized moments which are disjointed in time sequence.

The alters created to be fronts to normally hold the body will be given lots of programming to help hold onto certain denials, so that they will find it necessary to ignore or reinterpret dreaded associations linked with dissociated memories. For instance, a Christian front alter is sincerely very righteous and holy. The thought that this person (technically the alter's System of persons) could have done the most horrible and savagely demonic activities would be inconceivable. The memories of ritual are safely ignored because the reality would undermine everything the person is. This phenomena is not just seen in memory dissociation, but also in states of hypnosis when a person accepts a suggestion which flies in the face of the reality that is seen. If a person accepts the suggestion that there is no dog in the room they will struggle internally to maintain that illusion even if the dog is standing in front of them. If told to walk on a collision course with the dog, they will construct an artificial excuse, which is accepted even though it is transparently implausible. One of the Monarch Programmers, Orne, called this "trance logic". Trance logic becomes the ploy and strategy to maintain a dissociative or hypnotic hallucination.

The frontal lobes of the cerebral cortex which are called the Brodmann areas no. 9-12 are responsible for a person's own responses to circumstance—i.e., what some call "personality". When the mind is split, this natural personality is not erased but rather is a collected pool upon which various responses from it are attached to various "personalities". Damage to these Brodmann areas tends to give an overall effect of making the person passive. The programming is not designed to damage these areas, only to control what emotions they contain are linked in memory to the various memory fragments that will be made into personalities.

The reticular formation is the location of the brain's mechanism which determines the state of consciousness all the way from alert to hypnotic trance, to sleep, to coma, etc. It interacts with the frontal lobes and the rest of the brain. Each memory is a function of several parts of the brain working together. Memory is a function of alertness/state of consciousness (reticular formation), the emotions (Brodmann Areas 9-12), the Thalami (priorities given to memories), and several complicated processes where the brain categorizes and interfiles the info with other remembered data. By building in amnesia walls between Event (personal history) memories, and by producing altered states of consciousness, the memories of a slave can be "nested" as the Programmers call it. "Nested" means that it is hidden behind several "locked doors" when the mind files the memory. Sometimes the person must return to the altered state to recover a memory. The electro-shock also scrambles the brain's filing of a memory so that it is filed in bits and pieces. Because of the use of electro-shock, if memories do start surfacing, they surface only in bits and pieces. Sometimes a complete memory will be held by thousands of parts which the mind must bring together to recover the full memory.

It has been discovered that memory retrieval is best when the environment is identical to when the memory took place. If we memorize numbers underwater, we will recall them better, underwater.

Another thing discovered about trauma memories is that they are stored in the sensory motor processes rather than just in the normal memory sites of the brain. These memories are called body memories and they do not lie. The False memory *Spin*drome is way off base on their attacks, but then all of us who know the real story realize that they are just a cover-up damage-control scheme of the CIA or some other CONTROLLING entity.

#### THE CORE

Let's return to describing the "core" or that part of the brain which is intact at the beginning.

[H: I have to say, readers, that I am having difficulty getting through this material for I find that most of the presentation is put forward in an intended attempt to structure "how it is", but I note that much of it is so totally incorrect in fact as to be, in my opinion, almost as bad as the original mind-warping utilized. However, I can't find a better way to allow you into the mind consideration of persons who have experienced from the side of the traumatization and the receiver of the awakening from that state of malfunction or "multifunctioning". Let's just go on for a bit longer and please don't get yourselves "hung-up" on the scientific presentation here because much of it is not accurate other than in concept. Here we find that "concept" is adequate for a lay audience, but it certainly would amuse the programmers and advanced "handlers" who can consider these kinds of suggested lessons as being a further tool of their own making and for their own further use.]

If we pause to consider that a non-multiple person will experience struggles in their mind when simultaneous overlapping but conflicting desires meet in conflict—i.e., "should I lay in bed, go to work, or go fishing today?" A particular part of the brain (a Synthesizing Self) is capable of ordering such a conflict and it transcends all these conflicting ego states. A single Synthesizing Self in the brain is likewise responsible for the de-synthesizing of the ego states. The victim, in order to appease the programmers, sets up different and opposite alters relative to a single System's needs. The formation of alters is systematically and intelligently guided by the programmers, created to meet the needs of the System that the programmers impose upon it and not to adapt to an abusive parent. Some therapists have failed to see that alter formation is not natural, but a maladaptive practice that is guided by the victim's desire to please, and its fear of the programmers.

[H: Enough! Let us leave this for it is deteriorating in presentation of FACT. The FACT is that the formation of alters IS EXTREMELY NATURAL and is the exact reason programming works so well. This is why I hesitate to offer some information from some writers. They fail to have insight or qualification for full understanding and yet present it as if it is factual and proven fact. It lessens our own standards when we overdo the offerings of such individuals to the extent of misleading you readers.

It must be remembered at all times while reading this material that it comes from trauma-based persons with these handicaps and to go forth and pontificate on the subject as if they are learned professors of the subject is quite a wrong impression. You, as readers, must discern the difference between EXPERIENCED challenges and KNOWLEDGE of the mental capabilities of individuals. Here, also, you must remember that you must discern the TRAUMA-based methodology and simple hypnosis therapy. Most people do not have trauma-based and deliberately-induced malfunctions, and this makes it appear as if everybody is sucked into a trap of hypnotic manipulations. If a person has a "fixed" "will" he/she will DO NOTHING in a state of hypnosis that he/she would not do otherwise if simply uninhibited. Moreover, the person asked to do such dreadful and divergent things would simply awaken and punch out the therapist. By the way, the morality of the therapist is uppermost in consideration but that is true in any therapy program you may seek for some disorder you perceive.

For instance, a person does not go UNDER anything, including hypnosis trance. At best he/she goes into trance and these kinds of misrepresentations of FACT are detrimental to all of you who would accept this information as factual, for it is NOT. When a writer moves into scientific presentations when all there is to work from is observation, we have problems. Any research observer can comment on that which APPEARS to be—but I dislike, greatly, the launching off into suppositions and speculations as if it were factual research outcome conclusions. For instance, when you have a "created" new "language", i.e., False Memory Spindrome, you have moved from FACT into supposition or you wouldn't need new terminology that ONLY you or your few associates can decipher.

What I see happening to people after studying this type of presentation is that they SEEK and WANT to escape their own actions by suggesting to self and others that they are somehow traumatized and helpless in their actions, dress, presentation, and personality. NO, this is not so in almost all instances which YOU will encounter and I dislike "cop-outs" at any level of experience. Everybody has a growing-up processing that was unsuitable in some way or another—but this hoopla of the "unordinary" causes the disturbed or addicted (especially to alcohol or drugs) to cast off responsibility and turn to the "helpless" clause of defense. Most people are simply irresponsible for themselves and it is becoming the accepted norm rather than the Fact. This old "blame somebody ELSE" means of escape from responsibility is unacceptable. Mankind is not "growing up"; it is deteriorating as rapidly as mankind can arrange it.]

## [END QUOTING OF PART 4]

One of the lawyers made an observation this past week, to the Ekkers and to the others present at a table; he said that truth has no longer any place in a courtroom and "a jury won't believe truth". Oh no, he was quite serious. Well, readers, if this be so then what use is there to expend all this time, abuse and labor to try to change an already dead dog? How is it, though, that truth is denied while lawyers LIE? If a jury of peers, given full advantage and RIGHTS OFFERED UNDER THE "INFORMED JURY" LAW, can't realize TRUTH, then you are in lost consequences of the system's actions and acceptance of UNLAW-FUL activities. If the honest citizen is forced to lose everything he has for telling truth—you are a society so sick, in fact, that perhaps you have no RIGHT to survive to spread further evil about your place. God will leave you to your choices—and yes, I do mean "leave" you to them. Further, why should only a few

carry such a burden for the whole of you? They could make it through WITH GOD without the hassle.

We here hear daily from many people, some of whom are IN PRISON. They will say they killed, maimed, robbed, etc., but they now see Truth and they were somehow dealt a bad decision in court. Were they? Innocence, readers, is when you are INNOCENT and still convicted of that which you DID NOT do. Some want us to start an international movement to GET THEM OUT when they are guilty of that for which they are incarcerated, judicially right or wrong. "I killed my brother but now I change my mind..." simply doesn't cut it, people. Responsibility is the facing of consequences of that which you DO. And further, if here the Ekkers must somehow develop LIES to win these cases—then loss is certainly acceptable. And readers, just because the opposition spews the lie that there are hundreds of cases against the Ekkers—oops, WRONG. There are actually NONE. There are plenty of confrontations but they are not AGAINST the Ekkers and this is a misperception foisted off by the adversaries in the judicial confusion and distortions fostered by those factually distracting liars.

Grant Megan, George's "boy", tells that there are "hundreds of cases against the Ekkers"—and repeats it when questioned. But it simply is NOT SO. Do YOU really think a LIE could outdo the TRUTH, for a jury? No, the attorney in charge HERE—simply has to DO HIS JOB. SO WHAT ELSE IS NEW?

You can either accept and stand in TRUTH or you can fudge and go with the LIES. But, in the end, the latter will only further destroy you and your society.

Remember also that, as with the Internet, you can more easily get absolute lies, distortions of truth and more worthless information than ever you can get Truth. BE CAREFUL.

Our mission here is not to please ANY of the people any of the time. We share truth because we offer the necessary input to our people and any and all are welcome to share in that presentation. We force no one to do ANYTHING. We can't even get the ones who disagree and hate us to get away from us. That is hardly the definition of a cult or strange church of some kind. I think, however, that you can now realize WHY this assaulting continues—because evil can't let go, for in so-doing the perpetrators are UNCOV-ERED. It should further point out that the "confrontation" is far higher in realization than the moment being experienced. Evil will totally corrupt past all "reason".

Let's hear it again from the Master Teacher: "If man is faint of heart in spirit, so are his laws faint-hearted and are like heresy. If man is presumptuous and disregards the Commandments and Laws of The Creation and of God, he is forced to bring forth his own laws which are full of mistakes and lead him astray. Laws and commandments made according to men produce murder and evil, and evil will spread and gain control, and man no longer has any power over it. Commandments and laws are valid only if they are derived from wisdom and logic. But logic requires wisdom and perception."

We are weary and bent from being the "whipping boys" while you grow and lessons are brought. The time of TRUTH is at hand lest you move forever into the dark pit of eternal separation. If you hurt another through ignorance or chance prattle, you have brought forth the damage. You can make an effort to correct the course, but to continue to bury and cover is compounding the error and the damage moves back against self for the indiscretions. Remember something else: you cannot trust a recognized THIEF for, if he is covering his thievery—he will steal from you as well, while plying you with promises, tattlings

and seeming good will. No, he is USING YOU for his own dastardly purposes—EVERY TIME—and the choices of coalition become YOUR RESPONSIBILITY. When you have someone doing all they can in truth and right-ness and another calls them the Wizard of Oz in the terminology and meaning of a Monarch Programmer—evil is afoot and the speaker is in gross error for ever participating with the goodly-intended travelers. Clues are ALWAYS present if YOU LOOK. If YOU allow it—it will flourish in YOUR GARDEN. What you grow in your garden is your business, but remember: you will be known for the thistles you deliberately place in your garden. Another fact comes into play here: if you KNOW TRUTH and LIVE TRUTH—the ego is not impressed by the liars.

Does this mean that the pain is gone in the accusations and assaults against you as a being and a person? No, but they do not suffer DAMAGE—they only bring a bit of pain for the moment. If we accept a mission for God and we stay the course—we have nothing to fear for lies cannot long stand against TRUTH. What the "system" does is of no soul consequence except to the wrong-doers and liars.

More to the point, to those who constantly use these tactics against me: I don't want you in my company and, therefore, it is difficult to understand why you insist upon entering my space. I don't care whether YOU think of me as the Wizard of Oz or God—for your opinion of me is none of my business. In these instances I know what I am and YOU KNOW WHAT YOU ARE—and the twain shall never be one. Further, YOU who think you have "friendship" and "loyalty" with and from these wishy-washy ones—are going to find yourselves the butt of the evil conspirators' dung heap. In other words of blunt speaking: they will crap on you and hate you for the allowance.

YOU know right from wrong, good from evil, so why all the difficulty in decision-making? There is either RIGHT or there is WRONG. Which do you ALLOW and which do you, therefore, most often choose? It is certainly up to you alone for intent and opinion are solely individual.

By the way, readers, the minds who work up the fantastic presentations of such as *Independence Day*type movies—ARE SICK AND MANIPULATIVE MINDS. There are no beings coming from outer space to hurt you—YOU HAVE CONJURED YOUR OWN NIGHTMARES. HOWEVER, EVIL IS NOT OF GOD AND THEREFORE IF GOD APPEARS—IT ISN'T GOING TO BE VERY NICE FOR THE EVIL PRETENDERS TO THE WORLD-THRONE. IT IS TIME YOU SELECT YOUR INTENTS AND DIRECTIONS—AND ALLIANCES.

Along the same lines of REASON: The Phoenix Institute, as far as we are concerned, was set forth to DO SOME NECESSARY AND EXPLICITLY GOOD PROJECTS. If you distract from success in those projects—you don't understand the program. We did NOT set forth anything that resembles communal anything, save being a good neighbor. Remember too, you don't OWE your neighbor anything—but it is really nice if you can get on well with same. Some push the rules and break the confidence and disrupt—quite intentionally, to make themselves look good, and the parties responsible for sorting the mess look quite nasty and bad. No, look around you and see who and what is WRONG with this picture. And by the way, Ekkers didn't come to this location to do ANYTHING for ANYBODY SO THE COP-OUTS ARE FALLING ON NEWLY OFFENDED EARS AND PERSONAGES.

Another observation I must dump on you: if your partner sides with the "enemy" I suggest you have a BAD PARTNERSHIP which is worse than tacky—it is impossible. If YOU have to capitulate and bend your

own soul truth to keep some semblance of "peace"—then you have NO PEACE and err in your own direction. When children enter the picture—THEY KNOW and they will grow to hate you for your weakness and will follow the stronger parent—not the goodly parent, UNTIL they come of age enough to act for selves. If a man, or woman, stays with a nagging and disloyal party "to save the children"—you are WRONG, WRONG, WRONG. You simply bring further pain and suffering to the child in point. If a child cannot have a GOOD EXAMPLE of loving coalition with parents—it is better to withdraw and do no lipservice to the growing LIE. If you further offer up your SOUL to allow those others to somehow "quiet" themselves, you insult GOD. GOD will understand alright, but it will not be the understanding of circumstances which you might wish to assume. God sees it exactly for what it is—weakness to escape the responsibility of confronting, in actuality, the TRUTH. A person DISLOYAL intentionally, to a spouse, is not a LOVE-MATE and when you are USED for whatever ends of that disloyal mate—you ERR. Marriage is a mutual negotiation of two people who love and RESPECT one another. When that RESPECT is gone—so too, is the marriage. A piece of paper is of no consequence to the TRUTH of the circumstances.

When you act in good faith and Truth and the other party is affronted through your rightful actions, and yet they fling at you that you are wrong and the rewards will be terrible in some way or that "this will come back to you"—REJOICE. If you have acted in good judgment—then your reward, even after all the revenge and vengeance is tried and applied by that other—will be that you will prevail. Remember that ALWAYS when you are pronounced WRONG by another—they think to be RIGHT themselves—even if they KNOW they are wrong.

If you are on "their turf"—extricate self. If they are on "your turf", get them off it. When you are given responsibility in a position in the workplace, then assume that responsibility and demand that ones function in like responsibility or go their way, also. This is simple wisdom in action based on reason, responsibility and logic. If they continue to be irrational about intrusion upon your spaces—then have them lawfully removed. It is not alright to come forth and spread rumors and lies because others do not wish to offend your intentionally bad senses. A dim-witted and obtuse player is no excuse for such intrusive actions. Once a person who is asked agreeably to take leave and change habits of interference and intrusion—seems to accept nothing short of total confrontation of uncomfortable means to correct the course, then discomfort may well be a requirement thrust upon responsible parties.

I like to reason that if something is unsuitable in the Banker's offices at the home-office, then it is unsuitable in any business operation. And, further, if people cannot accept that we have "business" and not some cult plaything—they err, not we who serve. A CORPORATION IS A VALUABLE AND INDEPENDENT "PERSON" AND DEMANDS TOTAL LEGAL SECURITY IN ALL INSTANCES, WHETHER BIG OR TINY, FOR BOTH ARE CREATED *EQUAL UNDER THE LAW AND WITHIN RESPON-SIBILITY OF ALL WHO TOUCH IT.* Furthermore, those who accept responsibility to serve a corporation are EXPECTED to attend the LAWS and Rules of that Corporation. If you don't like the kitchen you visit—then get out of that kitchen or expect to be treated as an INTRUDER OF ALIEN DEFINI-TION.

I don't care WHY Betty Tuten took corporations not belonging to her—SHE CHOSE TO TAKE THEM unlawfully. She can either rectify that mistake or continue to make larger mistakes—it is up to her. The law is the law is the law and just because somebody doesn't like the law—does not make it less

#### valid.

There was intent to do no wrong? No, there was every intent to deliver the corporations to George Green, issue bearer stock, and USE THEM TO DESTROY THE INSTITUTE. THAT IS HARDLY HONOR-ABLE OR GOOD-INTENTIONED ACTION. How would YOU like it if someone were allowed to walk into your agent's office and walk out with YOUR corporations? And NO, it is EXACTLY THE SAME THING! By the way, if this would happen, YOU would be liable under the law for a heavy fine for every day those corporation books are OUT OF YOUR HANDS OR THE HANDS OF YOUR AP-POINTED AGENT! And, if YOU are going to utilize the wonderful shelter of a corporation—you MUST learn the laws and how to manage, properly, that artificial person you have birthed or with which you work.

It is time you reach out and help protect the good laws which shelter you and stop beating up on the people who do insist those laws be maintained and responsible parties TAKE RESPONSIBILITY for insurance of same. If you want to play in a commune—go somewhere else for you will find no such thing here.

If you bother to get yourself INFORMED, you won't have any trouble at all realizing who is right and who is wrong in every circumstance. If it breaks the law, bends the laws of God—it is WRONG and opinions are of NO value. If you only follow along like sheep in the shadow of another's opinions—then you will fall on "their" face right along with them. GOD does NOT bless ignorance because of refusal to learn.

By the way, if we have a meeting at any time which is open—it is NOT "my" meeting. If I need a meeting for "my" purposes I respectfully ask for an appointment. So, what may happen at these open meetings is YOUR business as to who is welcome and who is not when you KNOW the problem-builders. Any who come for ANY OTHER PURPOSE than to hear what is offered—is NOT WITH YOU, PEOPLE. They are come for their own purposes and ill-intent as pretenders. Nobody has a RIGHT to demand anything, even cake and punch. This is our social opportunity for friendship shared and, even though our enemies are "allowed" it would certainly seem foolish. How do you treat YOUR HOME? Do you allow your enemy into your house to your private lunch or dinner because he/she chooses to barge in through your unlocked door? We have no intention of EVER having a church or groupie here—anytime, anywhere. It has never been otherwise and never shall. We have work to do in our Father's business—no more, no less.

Now that we have rambled on and on, let us close with this thought in mind: He who acts in foolishness shall be treated as the Fool he represents. Salu.

#### CHAPTER 11

#### REC #1 HATONN

#### SUN., NOV. 24, 1996 8:43 A.M. YR.10, DAY 100

#### SUN., NOV. 24, 1996

#### TRUTH EXISTS

#### ONLY FALSEHOOD HAS TO BE INVENTED

As we sit to write on this beautiful Sunday morning, in anticipation of a bit of gathering this afternoon, the Spirit is willing but the Physical being lags in enthusiasm. Why would this be? Because, when we open and reopen the wounds for the salt-tossers, we have to realize the drop-out rate of "friends" increases to some 99%. Dharma has to consider how to handle the myriads of lawsuits, run from the CIA, avoid Bush's twit-twigs, do business in Greece, Australia, and Africa—and make cookies for the Holiday Bizarre. (No, I spelled it correctly; bazaar is not the right word for this game.) Then to have to struggle with the betrayers, liars, and cheats among us is just about too much to ask of anyone, ladies and gentlemen. Dharma would just like to run off with the Banana Man to the bush in South Africa. That is an inside joke but just WHO is this Banana Man? Well, he is an interesting Federal Reserve connection. And you thought things were simply "dull" around here, didn't you?

Now comes the capper with a new and enthused crowd who want to know about the "Franklin Coverup" and George Bush. Ah, thank you, for I thought you would NEVER get around to understanding the importance of that topic.

We wrote so extensively about this subject so long back that we may find the journals are still among the ones held hostage by one George Green. I hope that is the only reason he has kept them from you-the-people—greed and avarice. But, yes, I suppose there could be greater connections in butterflies and family values.

I don't know how much more I will cover on the subject because it has been well documented in other publications and even in a book called *The Franklin Cover-up, Child Abuse, Satanism, and Murder in Nebraska*, by John W. DeCamp (former state Senator, Nebraska).

Let me offer the back-cover writing: [QUOTING:] The shut-down of Omaha, Nebraska's Franklin Community Federal Credit Union, raided by federal agencies in November 1988, sent shock waves all the way to Washington, D.C. \$40 million was missing. The credit union's manager, Republican Party activist Lawrence E. "Larry" King, Jr., behind whose rise to fame and riches stood powerful figures in Nebraska politics and business, and in the nation's capital. [H: No, this is NOT "Larry" King of "LIVE", the confirmed atheist; this is "Larry" King of Omaha Nebraska, the proven Satanist.]

In the face of opposition from local and state law enforcement, from the FBI, and from the powerful

*Omaha World-Herald* newspaper, a special Franklin committee of the Nebraska Legislature launched its own probe. What looked like a financial swindle, soon exploded into a hideous tale of drugs, Iran-Contra money-laundering, a nationwide child abuse ring, and ritual murder.

Nineteen months later, the legislative committee's chief investigator died—suddenly, and violently, like more than a dozen other people linked to the Franklin case.

Author John DeCamp knows the Franklin scandal from the inside. In 1990, his "DeCamp memo" first publicly named the alleged high ranking abuses. Today, he is attorney for two of the abuse victims.

Using documentation never before made public, DeCamp lays bare not only the crimes, but the coverup—a textbook case of how dangerous the corruption of institutions of government, and the press, can be. In its sweep and in what it portends for the nation, the Franklin cover-up followed the ugly precedent of the Warren Commission. [END OF QUOTING]

Now let us just look at how brave Australia was at the time:

Australian placard:

## GEORGE BUSH:

We know about ALISHA OWEN and GARY CARADORI and LARRY KING

We know about the MORALITY of your NEW WORLD ORDER

And then came Dr. Sutton in his *Phoenix* Newsletter who tried to get the information to you and was all but killed in the process, in 1992. He still is very, very hard to reach. We all, in presenting truth in publications, tried our best to get you to wake-up but you slept on—and on—and on—and...

I believe that rather than fight Mr. Green further on this topic or asking our work-buried team to dig out and reconstruct, I will offer a second "opinion" and later we can reconstruct the entire bunch of offerings. You can, in the interim, get information through the above named book and if you can locate Dr. Sutton, he can supply you with original information. We no longer keep up with Sutton but he is a personal acquaintance of Dr. Young. Therefore, we give FULL HONOR AND CREDIT for the next information we will simply re-present here. I will not even give "old" information on contacting Dr. Sutton because he has been under such physical assault as to cause me to be very cautious with any information regarding his whereabouts until we contact him, again, personally.

So, from the *PHOENIX LETTER*, "A Report on the Abuse of Power", Antony C. Sutton, Sept. 1992, Vol. 11, No. 9:

[From the PHOENIX LETTER, QUOTING:]

# BUSH LINKED TO OMAHA NEBRASKA CHILD ABUSE SCANDAL

Since 1988 Omaha, Nebraska has been **rocked** by overwhelming evidence of corruption, child abuse, Satanic practices, perjury, murder, abduction, miscarriage of justice and Heaven only knows what else.

This evidence is largely KNOWN only within Nebraska. IT HAS BEEN SUPPRESSED. Elements of the story have shown up in Australia, Italy and Spain but throughout the United States the story has been effectively squashed even though, or because, the trail leads to the Bush White House. [H: Bob Hope's yesterday platitudes to this sweet man, withstanding.]

Suppression is possible because Omaha has only ONE major daily newspaper, the *Omaha World Herald*, and its publisher Harold Anderson *is a member of the accused child abuse ring*.

The story starts in the early 1980s with Larry King Jr., a Black Republican well known in local Omaha circles, and acquaintance (at least) of Mr. Bush and former manager of The Franklin Credit Union (now defunct) [H: But always as you read this re-presentation, that was four years ago, in 1992.]. King was widely known for homosexual, pedophilic practices and organized lavish parties involving pedophiles, drugs and Satanic practices. King was present at the 1984 and 1988 Republican National Conventions where he organized parties for selected politicians behind the scenes and beyond the knowledge of most delegates.

King's partner in Washington D.C. was homosexual procurer Craig Spence (now deceased, "suicided"). Through investigation of the Spence-Washington D.C. "call-boy" operation the extensive Omaha corruption child abuse ring was unearthed. **[H: As regards the "call-boy" ring, we would have to look into the matters of Barney Frank, your outspoken Massachusetts Congressman who kept a ring of "call-boys" in his apartment in Washington.]** 

When King's financial abuses were investigated, **numerous leads to child abuse and Satanic practices were ignored**. Stifling of investigation was possible because the ring included powerful Omaha insiders **including Omaha Police Chief Robert Wadham**, **Governor Robert Kerry and FBI Agentin-Charge Nick O'Hara**.

Children abused at King parties were drawn from Father Flanagan's Boys Club and North Omaha Girls Club (founded by Larry King). [H: Ask Cathy O'Brien about these CLUBS.] THERE IS NO DOUBT ABOUT THE CHILD ABUSE. It is recorded in graphic detail in the RECORDS of the Nebraska State Foster Care Board. Attempts by social workers to initiate investigations have been thwarted. Honest police officers have been driven from the Omaha force. Honest FBI agents have been transferred out of Nebraska. Investigators working for the Nebraska unicameral Senate have been harassed and in one case killed. [H: I need to insert a private statement here in behalf of Dharma to a close friend in Europe: "Please realize that anyone who worked willingly in the banking industry with one George Bush puts every friend and protector of that friend SUSPECT. To trust our very lives to anyone who shares interchange with those buggers is somewhat painful in acceptance. But yes, we will not longer mention these parties for our task is far greater than the revelations which could be cleared and made through discussions. However, you will never get any "threats" from here for we have no intention of doing anything which involves ANY OF THEM. Just be VERY CARE-FUL to not allow them to make a blatant FOOL of you, sir.]

A series of investigations and trials leads to an inescapable conclusion: THE <u>VICTIMS</u> OF CHILD ABUSE ARE TODAY IN JAIL (OR DEAD) AND THE INFLUENTIAL OFFENDERS ARE **FREE**. [**H: Mr. Bush, in fact, is being fundamentally prepared to take over the running of the United Nations, as** we write here today. Watch Kirkpatrick and the others trying to oust, through the United States, **Butros-Butros and put in "a U.S. leader" as being "necessary" for continued functioning of the U.N. "honorably".** (??? WOW !!!)]

This may be the gravest miscarriage of justice in U.S. History and confirms a wide-spread view that media news is censored, biased and used to protect guilty persons. If you read *Inside News* in Australia, *Avenimenti* in Italy or *Pronto* in Spain you know more about the Nebraska child abuse scandal than if you read *Los Angeles Times* or *New York Times*.

Please remember as you read this that today there are young adults in Nebraska jails who were abused as children and railroaded into jail to keep their mouths SHUT. Yet the guilty, including former Omaha Police Chief Robert Wadham, *Omaha World Herald* publisher Harold Anderson, prominent corporate figures in Union Pacific and Con Agra, politicians and socialites, have yet to answer to a court of law the overwhelming evidence of guilt.

# The story is kept alive by honest former Nebraska State Senators, FBI agents, defense attorneys and individual Nebraska citizens. [H: Well, now, in 1996 I would say you certainly wouldn't realize that it has been "kept alive", would you?]

You will need a strong stomach. There is detail of child sacrifice and pedophilic practices that assault ones senses. (An assistant who read the material was thoroughly shaken and could only handle a few pages of the cited books at any one time.)

# [H: God help us, Mark and Cathy; we will do the best we can!]

# [H: How proud does the following full-page spread from *INSIDE NEWS*, Queensland, Australia, Nov. 1991, make you feel as a good American?]

# IS GEORGE BUSH THE WORLD'S LEADING CHILD MOLESTER?

On December 31 the President of the United States of America arrives in Australia for a visit. George Bush is arguably already the most powerful man on earth. Currently he is striving to introduce what he terms a "New World Order", supposedly for the benefit, prosperity, and peace of all mankind.

To give one man as much power as Mr. Bush craves could be dangerous, even if that man were the most honourable on earth. But is Mr. Bush honourable? Is he really the type of man to have control of our children's futures?

Is he a saint? Or is he a

#### HOMOSEXUAL CHILD ABUSER

& part of a powerful child exploitation & pornography ring that controls America & perhaps the Western World?

#### You decide. A Special Report from

#### "INSIDE NEWS"

And while we're at it, let us also look at the happening of Nugen Hand Bank whose president, Earl Yates, is still under scrutiny along with Clark Clifford's acquisition of the "HAMMER SYNDROME". HAMMER SYNDROME: disease, mainly affects elderly wheeler dealers, of debilitating proportions. Sudden onset, usually after grand jury indictment or court sentencing. Symptoms: announcement of stress and fatigue. While onset is rapid, within 24 hours of indictment or guilty verdict, the cure is also rapid, usually upon dismissal or suspension of sentence. **[H: Ah, but later, as with President Reagan, you could update the disease label to call this disorder** *ALZHEIMER'S*.]

#### THE FRANKLIN COVER UP IN OUTLINE

Larry King Jr., manager of Franklin Credit Union from 1970 to 1988, never earned more than \$16,000.00 a year. On November 4, 1988 government authorities closed down Franklin and audited the books. **They found almost \$40 million unaccounted for to match assets of only \$2.6 million.** Where did the missing funds go? Into a lavish flamboyant living style for Larry king. In just 13 months King spent \$4 million of Franklin funds on personal expenses including \$1 million for American Express, \$148,000 to Old Market Limousine Service, and \$70,000 to Floral Concepts.

The Nebraska Legislature began a probe initially focused only on illegal financial transactions and theft. After an initial session Senator Chambers extended the probe beyond financial abuses to charges of physical and sexual abuse of children.

On December 19, 1988 Carol Stitt, Dennis Carlson and Burrell Williams from the Nebraska Foster Care Review Board stunned the Committee with the following: Carlson, "The nature of these allegations are something that is going to shock the Committee. They deal with cult activities, they deal with sacrifices of small children, they deal with sexual abuse." [H: Yes I hear you, "But what does this have to do with South Africa, the murder of Palme and thus and so, or is your presentation, day after day, so disconnected that we cannot follow it all?" *IT IS ALL SO CONNECTED AS TO STUN YOU* 

# READERS AND I DO NOT EXAGGERATE ONE IOTA—IT WILL STUN YOU! We can even connect this all to the Rothschilds. Mr. Palme, it was reported at the time of his involvement, was having an affair with British/American millionairess Emma Rothschild.]

Foster Care Review Board personnel went on to detail the most extraordinary charges based on information in the FCRB files. Larry King was charged as the "organizer" of an extensive child abuse-pedophilic prostitution ring extending into the highest political circles.

Committee investigator Jerry Lowe stated, "The allegations regarding exploitation of children are indeed disturbing. What appears to be documented cases of child abuse and sexual abuse dating back several years with no enforcement action being taken by appropriate agencies is, on its face, mind boggling."

State officials called to account for the allegations stone-walled the Committee.

Subsequently Investigator Lowe resigned and was replaced by Gary Caradori. Within a short time Caradori was dead. Killed when his private plane exploded in mid air on a flight to Chicago.

However, Caradori VIDEOTAPED four of the victims and their testimony is recorded. A legacy to the valiant work of Caradori.

The Franklin Committee Did Not Survive. Chairman Schmidt received threats almost as soon as the Committee convened. One from Police Chief Robert Wadham, "I've got something on all of you." Committee members resigned and late last year the Nebraska Legislature refused to continue its existence.

A Douglas County Grand Jury convened in March 1990 was a farce. The foreman Michael Flanagan was himself involved in child abuse. A matter of record! Flanagan was a 27-year employee of Union Pacific Railroad and U.P. personnel were implicated in the Grand Jury exploration.

Further, Michael Flanagan had made "improper sexual advances" to a fellow employee (Pike). This accusation of pandering was settled with a "substantial sum of money by Union Pacific for Pike to keep quiet, go about his business and find other employment." The chairman of Union Pacific was also a member of the accused child abuse ring.

Michael Flanagan was appointed foreman of a Grand Jury investigating these self same charges. Its conclusion was foregone. It found the child abuse story to be a "carefully crafted hoax". The Grand Jury report did not explain how a bunch of scared, abused teenagers could "carefully craft" a story involving the most prominent persons in Omaha ([ex-FBI Ted] Gunderson's book takes the Grand Jury conclusions apart one by one).

Larry King Jr. was indicted by a Federal Grand Jury on financial charges only. Then a U.S. Magistrate ordered a "mental evaluation". King was sent to the Federal Psychiatric Facility in Springfield, Missouri (**Springfield is known for brain-washing research**). Subsequently King was sent to jail where he presently resides.

The child abuse victims were charged with **perjury**. Those victims who recanted their testimony supposedly under pressure from the FBI were allowed to go free. Those who stuck by their testimony

were accused of perjury and sent to jail.

About 15 key persons involved in the Franklin child abuse case have died in some manner since the investigation began. Including an energetic investigator Gary Cotadori (see DeCamp *Franklin Cover Up*, Appendix A, *Suspicious death tied to the Franklin case*. (*Pg*.250).

Note: the forward to the DeCamp book is a conversation between DeCamp and former CIA Director William E. Colby. Colby warned DeCamp "to get away from the Franklin child-abuse investigation, Larry King and anybody else linked with Franklin, as quickly as possible for the sake of life and safety." [H: You will note that things are still not so good for Colby as he was just "suicided" by drowning this year.]

The forward concludes with the following by Bill Colby: "...there really are people too powerful, interests too big, that the rich and the powerful even when doing evil, can and will succeed and you can do nothing about it **at the moment**. But you do the possible, recognize the impossible, and if you are right—and you are, and we both know it—there will be a time when victory will come and the good will triumph over evil."

This statement comes from former **[H: NOW DEAD]** CIA Director Bill Colby, with direct reference to the Franklin child-abuse scandal.

If a former CIA Director believes DeCamp to be right then that should be good enough for you and me.

[H: I think before we offer more on the "cover-up" we might well summarize this extraordinary pedophilic, satanic scandal. I would also like to remind you that one of Rick Martin's earlier contacts and information resources is Ted Gunderson, former FBI Senior Special Agent in charge in Los Angeles, a 28-year FBI veteran. Gunderson wrote a report on the pedophilic ring for the Nebraska Leadership Conference and includes the comment "I can state without hesitation that every statement in this book is documented by hard evidence." Gunderson was an FBI child-abuse specialist. There have been so many attempts to discredit Gunderson as to be shocking in themselves. The more recent one was sucking him into a tale of explosive material regarding the Oklahoma City bombing. It remains to be seen if he was simply fed bad information or incorrect data. We do not offer presenters as other than what they are—PRESENTERS and information resources.]

#### EVIDENCE LINKS **BUSH** TO THE OMAHA CHILD-ABUSE RING

There is extraordinary evidence linking President George Bush to the Omaha child-abuse ring. We balanced this evidence against the possibility of fabrication in an election year. If true the evidence will finish Bush as a political figure for all time. If not true it is an injustice of the gravest nature. **[H: Well, neither is true—he was not "finished" and the material <u>is true</u>.]** 

What we decided to do is present part of the evidence that links Mr. Bush in some manner, incidental or significant to the scandal **and allow you, the reader, to make your own conclusions**.

The naive will suggest that surely Democratic participants in the ongoing Presidential election would use this evidence against Mr. Bush. Unfortunately Democratic nominee Bill Clinton (also a Yale graduate) has skeletons in the closet, not the least being the Mena affair in which Clinton, as governor of Arkansas, reportedly covered up Bush/CIA misdeeds in Arkansas.

In any event we have copies and partial copies of documents originating with the State of Nebraska. Some documents came from Australia. They could be forged. We do not have notarized copies. That is why a Federal Special Investigator is necessary. We believe them to be authentic.

We hold no brief for Mr. Bush. We have a decade-long record of criticizing Bush and his links to the Yale secret society **Skull and Bones** with satanic features.

However we always criticize on the basis of **accurate** and **verifiable** evidence and we have no intention of changing this policy.

There follows documents linking President Bush to the satanic-pedophilic ring. We then reproduce an assessment made 15 years ago on the satanic aspects of Skull and Bones. This last information is apparently not known to the Nebraska accusers but is circumstantial support for their charges. You be the judge.

# NEBRASKA DOCUMENTS LINKING MR. BUSH TO OMAHA CHILD ABUSE

**Document #1** [see documents starting page \*\*\*] is a report to the Franklin Committee of the Nebraska State Legislature by Committee investigator Jerry Lowe dated May 8, 1989. It summarizes interviews with Eulice Washington. We reprint page 9 of one Lowe report. This places Bush at a pedophilic party and leaving with a "black male she identified as Brandt" (Plus bodyguards).

Jerry Lowe subsequently resigned and was replaced by investigator Gary Caradori. Caradori was killed when his light plane exploded in mid air.

**Document #2** is a request for juvenile protection written by Andrea L. Carpenter, a Protective Services Worker for the State of Nebraska. This report, written some years before the Lowe report, also cites Bush at pedophilic parties.

**Document #3** is the front page of *Inside News*, published in Australia November 1991. This speaks for itself but emphasizes the point of censorship within the United States: Australians know more about Omaha than do Americans!

## SATANIC ASPECTS OF SKULL AND BONES

Part Four of *America Secret Establishment* is entitled "The Secret Cult of the Order" (Liberty House Press, 2027 Iris Lane, Billings, MT 59102 \$20.00).

This section links **Skull and Bones to Satanism** through photographic and symbolic evidence. George Bush is of course a member of Skull and Bones and participated in satanist practices at least during the initiation ceremony.

The photographic evidence (page 207 et seq) consists of Skull and Bones club photographs of members accompanied by "crossed thigh bones and a skull". We also know that assorted human remains are kept within the Bones Temple on the Yale campus. We comment: (p. 207) "An obvious point is that these bones and skulls are former human beings. Instead of sacred treatment, they are exhibited and used for ceremonial purposes. Where the bones should be resting decently in a grave, they have become the center of a secret ceremony. In brief, the photographs reveal the men portrayed as grave robbers who reject human dignity and decency and use satanic devices." [H: The facts are that the Bush "big daddy" actually grave-robbed the grave of Chief Geronimo of the Native Americans—and retains the skull to this day.]

This paragraph written in the 1970s and published with evidence in the 1970s shows at least a predisposition on the part of George Bush to be associated with satanic symbolism and ceremony. This makes the Omaha charges more credible.

## [END QUOTING OF PHOENIX LETTER]

I ask that the accompanying documents be run in *CONTACT* even though the reprint quality of especially Doc. #1 is very poor. You can, by close magnification, see the reference to George Bush. We can only offer what we have been offered with which to work. I simply cannot urge you strongly enough to get backup material from *THE FRANKLIN COVER-UP* by John W. DeCamp [*Available from A.W.T., Inc., P.O. Box 85461, Lincoln, NE 68501 \$9.95 + \$2.00 postage & handling*]. Since this topic is rearing its ugly head again at this time—I will not reveal more than is public reference but would suggest that before the next edition of *CONTACT*, somebody research and locate our own prior writings so that we can offer what was previously presented.

Know, readers, that I have no interest in destroying such as George Bush. He is a manufacture of YOU, and You-The-People have allowed this kind of leadership and decay in your government and in your world—NOT ME. What YOU do is your business, but I assure you that until you do *something* to clean up your act, it is not going to get better. So be it.

We are out of time to longer spend time on this today. I have waited until today, however, to bring this topic back to public attention because of recent warnings received to NOT do so. I KEEP MY AGREE-MENTS, MR. BUSH—IT WOULD APPEAR THAT YOU DO NOT!

# 6 pages?? paste of nebraska docu from CONTACT 11/24/96

Thank you, readers, for your attention and, yes indeed, we certainly shall offer you a bit more discussion about Mr. Palme.

Perhaps it is time for you to wake up and at the least put a stop to the local evil-liars who work to badger your own Institute in which you participate, *CONTACT*, and personally, anyone who confronts their lies and evil actions. You are being heard IN THE LEGISLATURE OF NEVADA; THE SPEAKER OF THE HOUSE is now ordering an investigation through the BAR ASSOCIATION. Keep in touch and demand responses. And, thanks to you who have tried to look out for your own Corporations through this route of demanding attention to these assaults and the legal misfits involved. THIS IS THE ONLY WAY YOU CAN CHANGE FROM THE DASTARDLY TO SOME KIND OF DEMAND FOR JUSTICE AND PROTECTION. NO ONE CAN SIMPLY WALK INTO AN AGENT'S OFFICE AND STEAL CORPORATION BOOKS AND CLAIM THE CORPORATIONS—PERIOD. I don't care what might be the "reasoning" involved. There are lawful ways of handling everything and especially corporations. Breaking the Law is NOT ACCEPTABLE.

It becomes more and more evident that the local "team" is not being very careful about your own positions, for the enemy is among you, as I have warned, and they tell EVERYTHING to the Brigade that you even remotely share with them. Then, as you will have access when released from court—you will see that "they" have joined YOU TALKERS and SHARERS of information, even about your most PRIVATE AFFAIRS, with the conspirators heading the cases IN COURT. I have warned you and warned you about your "choices" and, now, we shall see how many of you are going to enjoy your private information and names being joined in THEIR cases? Your names have been revealed and you can now get ready for disclosure and USE as a tool of those criminals. It will be called "blackmail". I don't think you are going to like your names in LIGHTS as they try to use YOU to stay out of prison for their activities. They have managed to lump a few of you innocent watchers and "allowers" into even the embezzlement of the gold coins by George Green. I warned you that there was no honor among thieves, cheats and liars.

And by the way, the document file presented by Ann Beam is some 2-3 inches thick with your affidavits, names, locations and so on. Perhaps once a witch in a coven listing—always a witch? No, I do not call them witches—THEY CALL THEMSELVES WITCHES! Check it out in Tucson and find out for your-selves. And no, they aren't going to be able to make it look like Patricia was the only responsible prattler and information runner. This is also unacceptable. Perhaps it is time for all of you who think this some kind of cute communal/spiritualistic game—TO GROW UP AND STOP SHOOTING YOURSELVES IN YOUR FEET. There are some people who risk losing to these Hell Hounds, their resources—and they aren't going to TAKE IT ANY LONGER!

But aren't we scared? B.S.! The light from one Godly being can snuff out their dark and dank candle rings forever. THEY cannot stand the light of TRUTH and maybe it is time some of you wisen up—and get in there and tell what you KNOW—because "they" have indicted you by association.

I can name a few who have been NAMED: Jeff, Phyllis, Bud, Ed C., Claudia (by inference), Theresa

along with others who are named but only associated through inference in the immediate association purview. The neighbors Centanni and Cornellison, along with Jason Brent, Guden, et al., are also NAMED informers OF INFORMATION which has no bearing on anything but will be used later. We are finding it interesting that so much of our sorting work is being done FOR US. We thank you but find it important that if you do not wish to be "included" from perchance just "allowance" of nice friendly people within your spaces, that YOU take some kind of action to clean it up. If you privately shared "investigative" information from car "brands" to personality conflicts—you might wish to check it out—as a second thought.

If you also FEEL BETRAYED—join the crowd! Good morning.